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Narrative Statement 

1. Context 

The financial year 2023/24 continued the trend of recent years with a challenging macroeconomic background flavoured 

by the ongoing conflict in Ukraine, new conflict in the Middle-East, and political uncertainty within the UK. Inflation now 

seems to be reducing but the economic picture remains characterised by high interest rates and individual experiences 

of rising food, utility, and mortgage costs. As last year, the economic background had a mixed effect on the Council’s 

finances with rapidly rising costs offset by significantly higher investment income arising from the increase in interest 

rates. 

The General Fund budget for 2023/24 assumed a £1.3m use of reserves. In practice a combination of unbudgeted ad-

hoc government grants, stronger income streams in some areas (such as planning fees) and higher levels of interest 

receivable resulted in the General Fund Working Balance decreasing by just £0.1m to £6.6m by the year end. The 

underlying structural issues with the Council’s budget – uncertain and declining real-term government funding, 

increasing costs and potential regulatory challenges – remain, but the level of reserves provides an adequate buffer in 

line with the Council’s objective of being financially sustainable in the medium term. 

Operationally, the Council’s Landlord Services function continues to face challenges associated with the backlog of 

work arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, the availability of contractors, and significant cost inflation within the 

construction industry. However, the associated Housing Revenue Account is in a robust position with reserves totalling 

£20.4m to cover future debt repayment and capital investment in the housing stock. 

The current financial standing of the Council continues to be robust, with reserves held at a sufficient level to meet 

foreseeable future challenges and reductions in Government funding for local authorities in the medium term. There 

are good financial management and governance processes and procedures in place which are reviewed regularly by 

management and the internal audit team. Resources are allocated as part of the annual budget setting process, which 

considers service pressures and savings on a detailed basis. Overall, the Council’s financial position provides a sound 

base that enables service delivery in forthcoming years. 

Significant items within the Financial Statements 
Details of such items are included in Section 5, Major Items included in the accounts 2023/24. 

Financial Statements 
The purpose of the published statement of accounts is to give electors, local taxpayers, members of the Council and other 
interested parties clear information about the Council’s financial performance and economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources over the financial year. The aim is to provide users with information that is fair, balanced and 
understandable. A glossary of terms is included at the end of the document. The statements should inform readers of 

 The cost of services provided by the Council in the year 2023/24. 

 How services were paid for. 

 The Council’s assets and liabilities at the year-end and 

 The financial performance of the Council. 

The following Core Financial statements are also included: -

 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement which shows all of the Council’s income and 
expenditure for the financial year. The top part of the statement shows a breakdown by service and the 
bottom part relates to transactions and funding at a corporate level, which links the statement to budget 
monitoring reports that are produced for management throughout the year and are subject to Member 
scrutiny. 

 The Balance Sheet which sets out a ‘snapshot’ of the overall financial position of the Council at 31st March 
2024 showing its assets, liabilities and reserves. 

 The Movement in Reserves Statement. This statement shows the movement in the year on the different 
reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable reserves’ (i.e. those that arise out of interaction of 
legislation and proper accounting practice to store revaluation gains or as an adjustment). 

2 



 

 

 

 

                  
                

       
 

                 
           

 
           

 

               
          

                 
      

 

    
 

               
                        

                        
                      

                     
                    

                   
           

 

        
 

                   
                      

                      
                    

    
 

                     
                      

                  
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 The Cash Flow Statement which summarises the movements of cash and cash equivalents into and out of 
the Council arising from transactions with third parties. This also shows whether movements are due to 
operating activities, new investment or financing activities. 

 Notes to the Core Financial Statements which give an explanation of key figures within the statements 
and more detail on the Council’s accounting policies and individual transactions. 

The following Supplementary Financial Statements and supporting notes are included:-

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – separately identifies income and expenditure in respect of the 
Council’s statutory landlord function as a provider of social housing. 

 Collection Fund Statement - shows the transactions in relation to the collection and distribution of Council 
Tax and National Non-domestic Rates (‘NNDR’). 

2. Pension Fund Liability 

Charnwood Borough Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme through which pension provision is 
made for those of its employees who wish to join the scheme. Under the Code, the Council must include its share of the 
net Pension Fund Liability as at 31st March 2024 and this amounted to a £778k deficit. This is a decrease in the liability 
of £8,278k at 31st March 2023. Although this liability appears in the Council’s Balance Sheet it is offset by the Pensions 
Reserve and is not funded from Council Tax or Government Grants in the current year. However, it represents the amount 
that will need to be found from future budgets to pay for pension entitlements already incurred in delivering services. 
Actual employer’s contributions to the pension scheme during the year are paid out of the Council’s expenditure as funded 
by Government Grants, Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (business rates) 

3. Borrowing Facilities and Funding of Capital Expenditure 

The Council has sufficient resources, through both the use of reserves and revenue, to fund General Fund and capital 
expenditure without needing to borrow. It is expected that this position may change in the short term and if the Council 
were to borrow then it would be able to obtain funds from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB), which is part of 
Central Government, with relatively low rates. There is one old outstanding General Fund loan of £2m which due for 
repayment in June 2024. 

The HRA has external loans of £79.19m which arose from the change in the Housing Subsidy system in 2012. These 
are all with the PWLB and are repayable from 2024 to 2062 with fixed annual interest rates. The annual interest is 
covered by the HRA’s rental income. Both the General Fund and HRA work within treasury parameters agreed each 
year by Council. 
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4. General Fund Revenue Outturn Summary 2023/24 

Restated 
Actual 

2022/23 

£000 

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN 2023/24 

Original 
Budget 
2023/24 

£000 

Actual 
2023/24 

£000 

Variance 
2023/24 

£000 

18,829 

85 

1,302 

0 

280 

(1,076) 

Net Service Expenditure 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 

EZ LLEP Contribution 

NDR LCC Pilot Gain/NDR Net additional Income 

Interest Paid 

Less: Interest on Balances 

Total Borough Expenditure 

Contribution to (from) Reinvestment Reserve 

Contribution to/(from) Working Balance 
Contribution to/(from)Working Balance (Collection 
Fund) 
Contribution to/(from) NNDR S30 to Offset Future 
Deficit 

Contribution to/(from) Commercialisation Reserve 

NNDR MiRS Movement 

Contribution to/(from) Other Revenue Reserves 

Contribution to/(from) Capital Plan Reserve 

Precept Requirement 

NNDR 

RSG 

Council Tax Receipts 

Loughborough Special Levy 

Collection Fund Surplus/(Deficit) 

New Homes Bonus 

Services Grant 

Funding Guarantee Grant 

Other Government Grants 

Precept Income 

20,986 

0 

0 

0 

230 

(1,500) 

20,677 

116 

0 

0 

353 

(1,725) 

309 

(116) 

0 

0 

(123) 

225 

19,420 

5 

77 

122 

0 

200 

0 

(142) 

(35) 

19,716 

500 

(1,295) 

0 

0 

324 

0 

0 

0 

19,421 

(136) 

(136) 

0 

866 

324 

(1,091) 

1,019 

(84) 

295 

636 

(1,159) 

0 

(866) 

0 

1091 

(1,019) 

84 

19,647 19,245 20,183 (938) 

6,603 

174 

7,981 

1,346 

122 

1,631 

1,322 

0 

468 

6,400 

329 

8,314 

1,367 

0 

373 

167 

2,295 

0 

6,947 

329 

8,314 

1,367 

0 

373 

174 

2,289 

390 

(547) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

(7) 

6 

(390) 

19,647 19,245 20,183 (938) 

Revenue Reserves Balances 

6,568 

199 

0 

Working Balance 1st April 

Transfer from General Fund 

Transfer to Reinvestment Reserve 

Balance at 31 March 

Reinvestment Reserve 1st April 

Reinvestment Expenditure 

Transfers From/(to) General Fund 

Balance at 31 March 

Capital Plan Reserve 1st April 

Funding of Capital Expenditure 

Balance at 31 March 

NDR Deficit Reserve 1st April 

Funding of NDR Covid Deficit 

Balance at 31 March 

Business Rates Pool Reserve 1st April 

Transfers From/(to) General Fund 

Balance at 31 March 

Other Revenue Reserves 1st April 

Transferred From/(to) General Fund 

Balance at 31 March 

6,211 

(1,295) 

(500) 

6,767 

(136) 

0 

(556) 

(1,159) 

(500) 

6,767 4,416 6,631 (2,215) 

495 

(628) 

633 

328 

(328) 

500 

500 

(317) 

181 

(172) 

(11) 

319 

500 500 364 136 

1,909 

(35) 

1,695 

0 

1,874 

(84) 

(179) 

84 

1,874 1,695 1,790 (95) 

3,050 

(1,574) 

3 

(3) 

1,477 

866 

(1,474) 

(869) 

1,476 0 2,343 (2,343) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2,050 

0 

(2,050) 

0 0 2,050 (2,050) 

3,343 

59 

3,343 

324 

3,402 

1,355 

(59) 

(1,031) 

3,402 3,667 4,757 (1,090) 

14,019 TOTAL BALANCES 10,278 17,935 (7,657) 
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The main purpose of the General Fund Revenue Outturn Summary shown above is to compare the General Fund actual 
figures to the Original Budget set for 2023/24. This provides a summarised position of the Council’s balances held. Please 
note that the table does not form part of the formal Statement of Accounts. 

The Council’s General Fund, net outturn position was a deficit balance of £136k to reduce the working balance, compared 
to an Original deficit budget set at £1,295k, a favourable variance of £1,159k. The £136k deficit deducted from the working 
balance to give a working balance reserve of £6.6m at 31st March 2024. Overall the General Fund reserves 
including Earmarked Reserves which are held for specific purpose total balance of £17.9m. Further details of the Outturn 
Cabinet report for 2023/24 can be found on the Councils website. 

5. Major Items in the 2023/24 Statement of Accounts 
There are no major changes to the way the accounts have been compiled in 2023/24. The General Fund net 
controllable service expenditure is £20.6m in 2023/24 compared to £18.8m in 2022/23 an increase of £1.8m, 
9.6%, the major differences in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement being: -

The General Fund Gross Expenditure is £4.8m higher in 2023/24 than 2022/23, due to 

 Additional employee related costs £1.2m 

 Additional building related costs including utilities £0.3m 

 Increased supplies and services costs of £0.3m 

 Inflation pressures on contracts £1.2m 

 Additional grants received £0.6m 

 Additional Section 106 contributions of £0.3m 

 Additional income received from services £0.6m 

 The HRA net cost of service is £1,089k lower in 2023/24 than 2022/23, Gross expenditure has increased 
by £2,306k. This primarily includes increases of £496k on Supervision and Management, £606k on Repairs 
and Maintenance, £152k on council tax on empty homes, and £636k increase in Depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets. Gross income has increased by £1,280k primarily due to a rent increase 
of 7.1%, however there are higher void rentals of 7.4% in 2023/24 compared with 6.45% in 2022/2/3 by 
£342k have reduced the additional gross income levied. 

 The Council holds two Property Funds being valued at 31 March 2024 of £3.934m, (£4.35m in 2022/23). 
Lothbury Property Trust £1.817m, (£2.067m in 2022/23) and Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust 
£2.117m (£2.287m in 2022/23). These are accounted for as a long-term investment on the Balance Sheet 
as a Financial Instrument Reserve and the revaluation loss £0.421m, (£1.043m loss in 2022/23) on the 
property funds has been accounted for under financing and Investment Income in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 

 Interest Received has had a major favourable impact for both General Fund and HRA of £3.1m, this being 
an increase in the interest rates and the impact on Treasury Management Investments for 2023/24. 

 Net gains on Revaluation of Fixed Assets were £0.725m in 2023/2 compared to £30.157m in 2022/23, a 
reduction of £29.432. There was a desktop revaluation of assets held by the Council at 31st March 2023 with 
an increase primarily due to an increase in valuation of HRA Housing Stock and other Land and Buildings. 

 The Pension Liabilities on the Balance Sheet has decreased from £9m to £0.8m, primarily due to an actuarial 
gain in the pension fund of £10m. 
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6. Capital Expenditure 
The Council’s Capital spend for 2023/24 totalled £11,978k compared against the budget of £30,734k, an 
underspend of £18,756k, with carry forward budgets of £16,202 into 2024/25. 

Actual 
2022/23 

£'000 

Actual 
2023/24 

£'000 % 

7,794 

3,764 

85 

1,187 

226 

2,532 

Capital Expenditure 

Financed by:-

Major Repairs Reserve 

Revenue Contributions - General Fund 

Capital Receipts – General Fund 

Capital Receipts – HRA 

Capital Grants and Contributions – General Fund 

11,978 

6,474 

116 

1,980 

113 

3,295 

100 

54 

1 

17 

1 

27 

7,794 11,978 100 

7. Provisions 
31st 

using the same basis of 2022/23 and Council Tax Provision for bad debt 31st March 2024 is £1,244k (£1,240k at 31st 

March 2023), an increase of £4k. 

The NDR Provision for bad debt as at March 2024 is £1,159k (£1,543k at 31st March 2023), a decrease of £384k 

8. The Council’s Finances 
The Council’s budget for 2023/24 was approved with planned use of working balance reserves of £1,297k. The Medium 
Term Financial Outlook (MTFO) for 2024/25 estimates a use of reserves of £595k depending on Government Funding 
streams and this can be covered from the Council’s reserves. Efficiencies will be refreshed to ensure long term financial 
sustainability as part of the next budget setting process and a revised MTFO taken to Cabinet at the same time as the 
budget. At the time of writing, the intentions of the new government regarding the fairer funding review of local authority 
are not clear, with significant items such as the retention of business rates and the New Homes Bonus Scheme still 
under consideration. Changes, will be taken into account, if known, when the 2024/25 MTFO covering the 3 year period 
will be reported to Cabinet in February 2024 and Council. 

9. Non-Financial Performance 
The Council’s objectives are set out in the Corporate Plan and this is reviewed through Cabinet and wider consultation 
with local partners and the community. The achievement of the plan is monitored through performance management and 
review processes carried out by Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees as well as officers. The Corporate Plan and associated 
quarterly performance monitors and annual performance report are available through the Council’s website. 

A rigorous and robust annual service delivery and team planning process is in place that includes consultation with service 
users, which ensures that resources and budgets are aligned to the corporate objectives set out in the Corporate Plan, as 
well as providing for a controlled and objective means of identifying efficiency savings and opportunities for investment to 
improve service delivery. 
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10. Outlook and Risk 

Previous paragraphs have outlined the negative economic conditions which the Council is likely to face in the near future, 
in particular, those created by, the economic impacts of Brexit, War in Ukraine and the Middle-East, global inflation issues 
and the cost-of-living crisis. Another factor is the election of a new Labour government in the Summer of 2024, although it 
is too early to assess the precise impact of this event. These factors will impact government finances and resource 
allocation decisions (and hence the ability to fund public services), which in turn will influence the Council’s funding 
settlements in future years. 

This outlook combined with the MTFO structural budget deficit gives rise to further financial challenges with which the 
Council are already fully engaged in addressing and will be reviewed again as part of the budget setting process for 
2025/26 and a revised MTFO for 2025 – 2028 once we have notification of the government settlement in the autumn of 
2024. 

Underpinning these plans are ongoing initiatives targeted at increasing efficiencies, developing commercial opportunities 
and looking to leverage existing asset and treasury resources. 

As noted above, the Council has adequate levels of reserves for the next three years (and there is confidence that the 
Council can continue to provide services in a financially sustainable way). 

In terms of managing risk, a risk management framework has been established under which strategic risks may cause the 
Council to be unable to operate or provide key services leading to a significant adverse effect on public wellbeing are 
identified on an annual basis, are approved as reasonable and complete by Cabinet, and are subsequently monitored on 
a quarterly basis by senior managers and by the Audit Committee. Lower level corporate and operational risks are 
identified by the annual service delivery planning process and are monitored on an ongoing quarterly basis, with any 
exceptions or significant concerns being escalated to senior managers and to the Audit Committee. 

All Cabinet reports recommending decisions include details of any relevant financial and legal implications and contain a 
risk management section which sets out any identified risks together with their likelihood and impact, and actions planned 
to manage the risks. 

11. Statement of Authorisation 
The Statement of Accounts were authorised for presentation on 23rd July 2024 by Simon Jackson, Director Finance, 
Governance and Contracts and S.151 Officer. All financial events up to and including 23rd July 2024, have been 
considered in these accounts. 

12. Preparation of Accounts 
I would like to thank all staff who have been involved in the preparation of these accounts. 

13. Further Information 
Further information regarding the accounts may be obtained from: 

The Head of Finance 
Charnwood Borough Council, 
Southfield Road, 
Loughborough, 
LE11 2TU. 

Members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts on deposit for audit purposes and the availability of 
the accounts for inspection is advertised on the Council’s web site at www.charnwood.gov.uk and on public notices 
displayed in the Council Offices. 
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

The Council’s Responsibilities 

The Council is required to: 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers 
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that officer is the Director of 
Finance, Governance and Contracts (Deputy Chief Executive and s151 Officer). 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 

 Approve the Statement of Accounts. 

Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts, in accordance with 
proper practices as set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently. 

 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent. 

 Complied with the Code. 

 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date. 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 Assessed the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern; 

 Used the going concern basis of accounting on the assumption that the functions of the Authority will continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future; and 

 Maintained such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

I certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council at the 
reporting date and of its expenditure and income for the year ended 31st March 2024. 

Certified by the S151 Officer: 

SIMON JACKSON 
Director of Finance, Governance and Contracts (Deputy Chief Executive and s151 Officer) 

Date 31ST July 2024 

In accordance with section 9 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 No 234, the Statement of Accounts shall be 
signed and dated by the Chairman of the Audit committee who presided at the meeting at which approval was given. 

Certified by Chair of Audit Committee 

JANE NELLIST 
Chair of Audit Committee 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation and rents. Authorities raise taxation and rents to cover expenditure in 
accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the 
Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Gross 
Controllable 
Expenditure 

2022/23 

£'000 

Gross 
Controllable 

Income 

2022/23 

£'000 

Net 
Controllable 

Costs 

2022/23 

£'000 

Gross 
Controllable 
Expenditure 

2023/24 

£'000 

Gross 
Controllable 

Income 

2023/24 

£'000 

Net 
Controllable 

Costs 

2023/24 

£'000 

287 
665 

0 
(76) 

287 
589 

Chief Executives Team 

Head of Transformation and Strategy 

273 
1,090 

0 
0 

273 
1,090 

952 (76) 876 Chief Executive 1,363 0 1,363 

2,035 

870 

99 

53 

(1,174) 

(209) 

0 

0 

861 

661 

99 

53 

Head of Strategic Housing 
Housing and Wellbeing 

Director of Housing and Wellbeing 

Head of Neighbourhood Services 

1,882 

1,028 

11 

0 

(1,038) 

(173) 

(239) 

0 

845 

856 

(228) 

0 

3,057 (1,383) 1,674 Housing and Wellbeing 2,921 (1,450) 1,471 

265 

1,466 

1,026 

77 

(1,566) 

(1,250) 

(613) 

0 

(1,302) 

216 

414 

77 

Director of Commercial and Economic 
Development 
Head of Assets and Property Services 

Head of Economic Development and 
Regeneration 
Head of Leisure and Culture 

280 

1,567 

1,186 

0 

(1,636) 

(1,304) 

(1,157) 

0 

(1,356) 

263 

29 

0 

2,834 (3,429) (595) Commercial and Economic Development 3,033 (4,097) (1,064) 

10,698 

126 

2,100 

0 

0 

1,498 

(4,373) 

0 

(227) 

0 

0 

(10) 

6,325 

126 

1,873 

0 

0 

1,488 

Head of Contracts, Leisure, Waste and 
Environment 
Director of Finance, Governance and 
Contracts 
Head of Governance 

Head of Democracy and Monitoring Officer 

Head of Legal and Electoral Services 

Head of Finance 

12,193 

139 

68 

873 

1,254 

2,333 

(5,268) 

0 

0 

(5) 

(320) 

(33) 

6,925 

139 

68 

868 

934 

2,300 

14,422 (4,610) 9,812 Finance, Governance and Contracts 16,860 (5,626) 11,234 

100 

28,460 
3,274 

3,666 

0 

(22,936) 
(1,513) 

(2,119) 

100 

5,524 
1,761 

1,547 

Director of Customer Experience 

Customer Experience 
Head of Regulatory and Community Safety 

Head of Planning and Growth 

113 

29,798 
3,470 

3,974 

0 

(23,429) 
(1,586) 

(2,268) 

113 

6,369 
1,884 

1,706 

35,500 (26,568) 8,932 Customer Experience 37,355 (27,283) 10,071 

56,764 (36,065) 20,699 Total General Fund 61,532 (38,456) 23,076 

12,022 (22,414) (10,392) Housing Revenue Account 15,189 (23,694) (8,505) 

68,786 (58,479) 10,307 Cost of Service 76,721 (62,150) 14,571 

8,041 Net Recharges, REFCUS & Capital charges 5,991 

4,250 

0 

(1,304) 

Parish Precepts 

Contribution to Housing Pooled Capital Receipts 

(Gains)/Loss on Disposal Fixed Assets 

Other Operating Expenditure 

Interest Payable and similar charges 

Pensions Interest Costs and Returns on Assets 

Interest and Investment Income 

Business Rates Pool Increase/Decrease 

Investment Properties Change in Fair Value 

(Gains)/Losses Financial instruments Revaluation Property Funds 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

General Government Grant 

Capital Grants and Contributions 

Non Domestic Rates Distribution 

Council Tax Income 

Collection Fund 

Taxation and non-specific Grant Income 

(Surplus)/Deficit on provision of services 

(Gains)/Losses on revaluation of Fixed Assets 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on pension assets/liabilities 

Other comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Total comprehensive Income & Expenditure 

4,566 

0 

(117) 

2,946 4,449 

3,017 

1,647 

(1,576) 

0 

(93) 

1,043 

3,120 

390 

(3,384) 

(2,050) 

(237) 

421 

4,038 1,740 

(3,674) 

(1,154) 

(6,669) 

(13,577) 

(25) 

(3,413) 

(2,028) 

(7,089) 

(14,247) 

(30) 

(25,099) (26,807) 

233 (3,536) 

(30,157) 

(54,626) 

(725) 

(6,990) 

(84,783) (7,715) 

(84,550) (11,251) 
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. 
The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are 
reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may 
use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their 
use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The 
second category of reserves are those that the Council are not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves 
includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would 
only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations. 

Restated 31st 
March 2023 

£'000 
Note 

31st March 
2024 
£'000 

31st March 
2024 
£'000 

362,191 

61,184 

4,590 

23 

4,141 

0 

33 

Council Dwellings 

Other Land & Buildings 

Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 

Infrastructure Assets 

Community Assets 

Assets Under Construction 

Surplus Assets Not Held for Sale 

Property, Plant and Equipment Total 

Heritage Assets 

Investment Property 

Long Term Investments 

Intangible Assets 

Long Term Debtors 

Non-Current Assets (Sub-total) 

10 

10 

10 

10 

10 

10 

10/11 

13 

11 

14 

12 

15 

14 

364,375 

59,902 

4,510 

22 

4,309 

0 

103 

433,221 

279 

25,968 

3,935 

259 

5,262 

432,162 

279 

25,731 

4,356 

201 

1,274 

464,003 468,924 

20,000 Short -Term Investments 19,000 

81 Inventories 57 
15 

17,115 Short -Term Debtors 19,428 

(3,919) Bad Debt Impairments 15 (5,033) 

24,344 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Current Assets (Sub-Total) 

16 

16 

23,411 

57,621 56,863 

(1,287) Bank Overdraft (1,291) 
14 

0 Short-term Borrowing, under 12 months (4,000) 
18 

(23,678) Short-Term Creditors (19,888) 
19 

(919) Provisions 

Current Liabilities (Sub-Total) 

Long-Term Creditors 18 

(1,482) 

(25,884) (26,661) 

(3,508) (3,782) 

(82,538) Long-Term Borrowing, over 12 Months 14 (82,538) 

(9,052) Defined Benefit Pension Scheme Asset/(Liability) 33 (778) 

(5,801) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 

Long term Liabilities Total 

Net Assets Total 

28 (5,936) 

(100,899) (93,034) 

394,840 406,092 
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024 

31st March 
2023 
£’000 Note 

31st March 
2024 
£’000 

31st March 
2024 
£’000 

(13,385) 

(4,475) 

(6,752) 

(500) 

(2,143) 

(6,766) 

(603) 

(16,793) 

Capital Receipts Reserve 

HRA Major Repairs Reserve 

Revenue Reserves 

Reinvestment Reserve 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

General Fund Balance 

HRA Fund Balance 

HRA Financing Fund 

Usable Reserves Total 

20 

7 

7 

7 

20 

7 

21 

(12,813) 

(2,312) 

(10,939) 

(364) 

(2,760) 

(6,631) 

(607) 

(17,524) 

(51,417) (53,950) 

(1,143) Collection Fund Adjustment Account (83) 
21 

(264,199) Capital Adjustment Account (265,803) 
21 

442 Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve 863 
21 

9,052 Pension Reserve (Surplus)/Deficit 778 
21 

(88,144) Revaluation Reserve (88,495) 
21 

569 Accumulated Absences Account 

Unusable Reserves Total 

Total Reserves 

598 

(343,423) (352,142) 

(394,840) (406,092) 
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Movement in Reserves Statement 

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable 
reserves’ (i.e., those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The (Surplus) 
or Deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s services, more 
details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the 
statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue Account for council 
tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to the Earmarked 
Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance, before any 
discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 

Movement in Reserves Statement 2023/24 
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Opening Balance at the beginning of the period (6,767) (7,253) (603) (21,267) (13,385) (2,143) (51,418) (343,423) (394,840) 

(Surplus)/Deficit on provision of Services (accounting basis) - from 

STRGL spreadsheet (2,085) 0 (1,451) 0 0 0 (3,536) 0 (3,536) 

Other comprehensive income and expenditure STRGL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (7,715) (7,715) 

Total comprehensive income and expenditure (2,085) 0 (1,451) 0 0 0 (3,536) (7,715) (11,251) 

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve: 

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new Capital Expenditure 0 0 0 0 2,140 0 2,140 0 2,140 

Cash Proceeds 0 0 0 0 (1,569) 0 (1,569) 0 (1,569) 

Sub Total 0 0 0 0 572 0 572 0 572 

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital grants Unapplied Account: 

Application of Grants to Capital financing transferred to the Capital 

Adjustment Account 0 0 0 0 0 1,399 1,399 0 1,399 

Application of Grants to Capital financing transferred to the Capital 

Grants and Contributions Applied 0 0 0 0 0 (2,016) (2,016) 0 (2,016) 

Transfer to General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub Total 0 0 0 0 0 (617) (617) 0 (617) 

Adjustments Primarily involving the Major Repairs Reserve: 

Reversal of Major Repairs allowance credited to the HRA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Depreciation 0 0 0 (4,312) 0 0 (4,312) 0 (4,312) 

Use of the Major Repair Reserve to finance new capital Expenditure 0 0 0 6,474 0 0 6,474 0 6,474 

Sub Total 0 0 0 2,162 0 0 2,162 0 2,162 

Total - Adjustments 0 0 0 2,162 572 (617) 2,117 (2,117) 0 

Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 

Pension Fund Reserve 590 0 694 0 0 0 1,284 

Financial Instrument Reserve (421) 0 0 0 0 0 (421) 

Minimum Reserve Provision (MRP) Charge 601 0 0 0 0 0 601 

Collection Fund Account 30 0 0 0 0 0 30 

NNDR Account new &final renewable energy disregard (1,091) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,091) 

Accumulated Absences Account (21) 0 (7) 0 0 0 (29) 

Capital Adjustment Account 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Upward revaluation 858 0 16 0 0 0 874 

Downward Revaluation (538) 0 0 0 0 0 (538) 

GAIN on disposal of fixed assets 105 0 (1) 0 0 0 104 

REFCUS (4,213) 0 0 0 0 0 (4,213) 

Depreciation (1,709) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,709) 

Capital Expenditure charged against general fund and HRA balances 116 0 0 0 0 0 116 

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credits to the I&E 133 0 0 0 0 0 133 

Application of Grants to Capital Adjustment Account 3,717 0 15 0 0 0 3,733 

Capital Receipts Reserve 13 0 0 0 0 0 13 

Sub Total Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 

basis under regulations (1,829) 0 717 0 0 0 (1,113) 1,113 0 

Net Increase/(Decrease) before transfers to earmarked (3,914) 0 (734) 2,162 572 (617) (2,532) (8,719) (11,251) 

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves 4,050 (4,050) 731 (731) 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub Total Increase/(decrease) in the year 136 (4,050) (4) 1,431 572 (617) (2,532) (8,719) (11,251) 

Balance at the end of the period (6,631) (11,303) (607) (19,836) (12,813) (2,760) (53,949) (352,142) (406,092) 
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Movement in Reserves Statement 2022/23 
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Opening Balance at the beginning of the 

period 

(6,567) (8,798) (606) (18,823) (10,382) (1,081) (46,258) (264,033) (310,290) 

(Surplus)/Deficit on provision of Services 

(accounting basis) 

2,046 0 (1,813) 0 0 0 233 0 233 

Other comprehensive income and expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (84,783) (84,783) 

Total comprehensive income and expenditure 2,046 0 (1,813) 0 0 0 233 (84,783) (84,550) 

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:-

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new 

Capital Expenditure 

0 0 0 0 1,413 0 1,413 0 1,413 

Cash Proceeds 0 0 0 0 (4,416) 0 (4,416) 0 (4,416) 

Sub-Total - Adjustments Primarily involving 

the Capital Receipts Reserve 

0 0 0 0 (3,003) 0 (3,003) 0 (3,003) 

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital grants Unapplied Account:- 0 0 

Application of Grants to Capital financing 

transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 

0 0 0 0 0 459 459 0 459 

Application of Grants to Capital financing 

transferred to the Capital Grants and Contributions 

Applied 

0 0 0 0 0 (1,521) (1,521) 0 (1,521) 

Transfer to General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub-Total - Adjustments Primarily involving 

the Capital grants Unapplied Account 

0 0 0 0 0 (1,062) (1,062) 0 (1,062) 

Adjustments Primarily involving the Major Repairs Reserve:- 0 0 

Depreciation 0 0 0 (3,991) 0 0 (3,991) 0 (3,991) 

Use of the Major Repair Reserve to finance new 

capital Expenditure 

0 0 0 3,764 0 0 3,764 0 3,764 

Sub-Total - Adjustments Primarily involving 

the Major Repairs Reserve 

0 0 0 (227) 0 0 (227) 0 (227) 

Total Adjustments 0 0 0 (227) (3,003) (1,062) (4,291) 4,291 0 

Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations:-

Pension Fund Reserve (2,703) 0 (605) 0 0 0 (3,308) 

Financial Instrument Reserve (1,043) (1,043) 

Minimum Reserve Provision (MRP) Charge 592 0 0 0 0 0 592 

Collection Fund Account (98) 0 0 0 0 0 (98) 

NNDR Account new &final renewable energy 

disregard 

3,026 0 0 0 0 0 3,026 

Accumulated Absences Account 56 0 18 0 0 0 74 

Capital Adjustment Account 

Upward revaluation 924 0 56 0 0 0 980 

Downward Revaluation (1,594) 0 275 0 0 0 (1,318) 

GAIN on disposal of fixed assets 1,427 0 (146) 0 0 0 1,281 

REFCUS (3,087) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,087) 

Depreciation (1,626) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,626) 

Capital Expenditure charged against general fund 

and HRA balances 

86 0 0 0 0 0 86 

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credits 

to the I&E 

785 0 0 0 0 0 785 

Application of Grants to Capital Adjustment 

Account 

2,532 0 0 0 0 0 2,532 

Capital Receipts Reserve 23 0 0 0 0 0 23 

Sub Total Adjustments between accounting 

basis and funding basis under regulations 

(700) 0 (402) 0 0 0 (1,102) 1,102 0 

Net Increase/(Decrease) before transfers to 

earmarked reserves 

1,345 0 (2,214) (227) (3,003) (1,062) (5,160) (79,390) (84,550) 

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves (1,545) 1,545 2,217 (2,217) 0 0 0 - -

Sub Total Increase/(decrease) in the year (200) 1,545 3 (2,444) (3,003) (1,062) (5,160) (79,390) (84,550) 

Balance at the end of the period (6,767) (7,253) (603) (21,267) (13,385) (2,143) (51,417) (343,423) (394,840) 
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Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. 
The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as 
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key 
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from 
the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have 
been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising 
from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to 
the Council. 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

233 Net (Surplus)/Deficit on the provision of services (3,536) 

(6,048) Depreciation, Impairment, Amortisation of Non-current Assets (5,922) 

(3,308) Net Charges made for Retirement Benefit Scheme (1,284) 
(47) Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories (27) 

4,057 Increase/(Decrease) in Debtors (858) 

16,726 (Increase)/Decrease in Creditors 
Carrying Amount of non-current Assets and non-current Assets held for 

(2,903) 

(3,086) sale, sold or derecognised 
Other non-cash items charged to the net Surplus or Deficit on Provision 

1,452 

(5,013) of Services 1,440 

3,291 Adjustments to net Surplus/Deficit for non-cash movements (4,561) 

4,416 

0 

Adjustments for items that are Investing or Financing Activities 
Other Capital Receipts and (Gains)/Loss on Sale non-current Assets 
Other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash 
flows 

SubTotal Net Cash outflows/(inflows) from Operating Activities 

Net Capital Activities 

Net Change in Investments 

Net Cash outflows/(inflows) from Investing Activities (Note 23) 

Net Cash outflows/(inflows) from Financing Activities (Note 24) 

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period (Note 16) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

569 

3,170 

7,940 (4,358) 

(195) 

(5,690) 

10,368 

(4,536) 

(5,886) 5,832 

7,612 (537) 

9,667 937 

32,723 

23,057 

23,057 

22,120 

9,667 937 

14 



 

 

 

 

  

   

                  
                     

                  
                 

                
             

 

      

                      
 

                  
                

        

                
                
         

                   
               

               
            

                
                

       
 

    
                   

                       
                        
                     

              
 

    
                       
                   

    

     

                   
                     

                      
                     

       

      

                   
                   

   
 

                   
                    
                 

                     
                     

                
 

                   
                    

                   

Accounting Policies 

1. General Principles 

This Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2023/24 financial year and its position at 31st 

March 2024 year end. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audits 
Regulations 2015. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 (the Code) issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA). The Accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In 
particular: 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership to the purchaser, and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably the 
percentage of completion of the transaction, and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date 
supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as 
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and 
expenditure based on the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash 
flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

Debtors and Creditors 
The Council’s revenue accounts are maintained on an accrual’s basis in accordance with the Code. That this relates 
to sums due to or from the Council during the year are included whether or not the cash has actually been received or 
paid in the year. An exception to this principle relates to repayments of NNDR which are made on a cash basis in the 
year that the Council is notified of the necessity to refund and, although the amount is outside of the Council’s control, 
a provision has been established to cover the Council’s share of such possible refunds. 

Interest on balances 
General Fund interest for the year is accrued and accounted for in the accounts in the relevant period to which it relates. 
Interest is credited to the Housing Revenue Account based on an average rate of interest earned on the Council’s 
investments during the year. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not 
more than 24 hours. Cash Equivalents are investments that mature in no more than 3 months from the Balance Sheet 
date and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the cash 
flow, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of debit amounts with banks that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Council’s cash management. 

4. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation that 
probably requires settlement by transfer of economic benefits and where a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. 

Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the Council becomes aware of the 
obligation and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the 
obligation, considering relevant risks and uncertainties. When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the 
provision carried in the balance sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it 
becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will not now be required (or a lower settlement than 
anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service revenue account. 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is 
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not probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

5. Employee Benefits 

Benefits Payable During Employment - Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of 
the year end. They include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, and any bonuses for 
current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which the employees render service 
to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the 
year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rates 
applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is 
charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through Movement in Reserves 
Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

6. Retirement Benefits 

Most employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pensions Scheme (the ‘Scheme’), administered 
by Leicestershire County Council, which provides defined benefits to members, earned as employees work for the 
Council. 

The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis 
using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement 
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, staff turnover etc. and projections 
of projected earnings for current staff. Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 
4.80% (4.75% 2022/23) based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds as measured by the yield 
on iBoxx Sterling Corporate Index, AA over 15 years, at the IAS 19 valuation date. 

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into seven components: 

 Current service cost, which is the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year and is 
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the revenue accounts of services for 
the relevant employees. 

 Past service cost, the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in 
prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment. These costs are part of Non-Distributed Costs. 

 Interest cost, which is the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year and is debited 
to Net Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 Expected return on assets is the annual investment return on the Scheme’s fund based on the average of the 
expected long-term return and is credited to the Net Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 

 Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments which result from actions to relieve the Council of liabilities or 
events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees. This is debited or credited, 
as appropriate, to the Net Cost of Services as part of Non-Distributed Costs. 

 Actuarial gains and losses change to the net pension liability and arise because events have not coincided 
with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because those assumptions have been updated and 
these are debited to the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses. 

 Contributions paid to the Scheme as the employer’s contributions. 

Statutory provisions limit the Council to raising council tax to cover the amounts payable to the Scheme in the year. 
This results in appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement to remove the 
notional debits and credits and replace them with debits for cash paid and payable to the Scheme in the year. 

7. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Polices and Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Changes 
in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and 
do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides 
more reliable or relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s 
financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively, unless stated 
otherwise, by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy has always 
been applied. Should any material errors be discovered in prior period figures they are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
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8. Financial Instruments 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities are initially measured at fair value and are carried in the Balance Sheet at their amortised cost, 
which is based upon the nature of the liability concerned. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the 
carrying value of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For the borrowings that the 
Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus 
accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable 
for the loan in the agreement. 

Gains or losses arising on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowings are debited to Net Operating Expenditure 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. Where, however, the 
repurchase of borrowing has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or 
exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted or added to the amortised cost of 
the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over 
the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

 Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active 
market. 

 Available for Sale assets - assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or determinable 
payments. 

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of a financial instrument and are initially valued at fair value, based upon prevailing benchmark market rates 
for new borrowing. They are subsequently measured and carried on the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. PWLB loan 
fair value estimates are based upon new borrowing (certainty rate) discount rates. Annual credits to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 
the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable, interest is credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the 
contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of 
the revised future cash flows discounted at the investment’s original effective interest rate. 

Any gains and losses on de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited directly to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Available for sale assets are recognised when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially valued at fair value in the Balance Sheet. Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in 
the Available for Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit on Revaluation of Available for 
Sale Financial Assets. Any gains/losses on de-recognition are taken directly to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the Available For Sale 
Reserve. 

The Council also holds a very small amount of Government stock. This is treated as an Available for Sale asset under 
the Code. However, these are held at cost in the Balance Sheet as the difference between this and their market value 
is immaterial to the Council as a whole. 

The notes to the financial statements, show this information, where relevant, relating to the appropriate class of assets 
and liabilities. 

9. Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third-party contributions and donations 
are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that: 

 the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 the grants or contributions will be received. 
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Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that 
the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are 
required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned 
to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance 
Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line 
(attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue 
grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of 
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance 
capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

10. Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Council (e.g. 
software licences) is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the Council for more than one financial year. The balance 
is amortised to the relevant revenue account over the economic life of the investment to reflect the pattern of 
consumption of benefits. 

11. Heritage Assets 

The Council owns heritage assets such as civic regalia, statues, paintings and sculptures. Those valued at £10k or 
more are included on the Balance Sheet as Heritage Assets. The actual assets are situated in Council premises, parks 
and squares in Loughborough. Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation 
gains and losses) in accordance with the policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of the 
measurement rules are relaxed in relation to Heritage Assets in that heritage items are reported in the Balance Sheet 
at insurance valuation. 

12. Inventories 

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the latest purchase price. 

13. Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation. The definition is not 
met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the 
asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Properties are not depreciated. Gains and 
losses on revaluation and disposal are posted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact 
on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater 
than £10k) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

14. Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. No finance leases have been 
identified and currently all the Council’s leases are classified as operating leases. 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an 
expense of the service benefitting from the use of the leased property, plant or equipment. 

15. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Service revenue accounts, including support services and trading accounts, are debited with the following amounts to 
record the real cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service, 
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 revaluation and impairment losses, if relevant, on non-current assets used by the service, if there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written off, 

 Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service. 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, impairment, or amortisation and therefore these 
are reversed in the Movement in Reserves Statement on the General Fund Balance. 

16. Overheads 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in accordance 
with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2023/24. The total absorption costing 
principle is used - the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits 
received, with the exception of: 

 Corporate and Democratic Core - costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-functional, democratic 
organisation. 

 Non-Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and any 
depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-operational properties. 

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, 
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes that are expected to be used during more than one 
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an accrual 
basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow 
to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of 
non-current assets that do not enhance the asset or extend its useful economic life is charged directly to service revenue 
accounts. The de-minimus level for accounting for property, plant and equipment is £10k. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising of the purchase price and any costs attributable to bringing the asset 
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 Infrastructure assets, community assets and assets under construction are included in the balance sheet 
at depreciated historical cost. 

 Council dwellings have been valued using the ‘Beacon valuation’ method, whereby a sample of each 
category of dwelling is valued and then these valuations are applied to all similar dwellings to arrive at a 
gross valuation. They are valued at fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social 
housing (EUV-SH). 

 Land, operational properties and other operational assets are included in the balance sheet at existing use 
value, market value or depreciated replacement cost. 

Non-specialised operational properties are valued at either existing use or market value. Depreciated replacement cost 
is used for specialised operational properties and market value for investment properties and surplus assets. 

Revaluations of non-current assets take place at five yearly intervals. Annual desktop valuations are carried out with 
any changes to valuations of plus or minus £10k, to be adjusted for in the interim period, as they occur. Increases in 
valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, unless the increase is 
reversing a previous revaluation decrease charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services on the same asset. 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount 
of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gain). 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount is 
written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal 
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
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Impairment 

Non-Current Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable 
amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold 
land and certain community assets) and assets under construction. 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over either the remaining life of the asset or the following 
periods: 

Buildings (where appropriate – including HRA) 15 - 60 years 
Infrastructure 20 years 
Plant, vehicles and equipment (excluding computers) 7 - 8 years 
Computers and software licences 5 years 

No item of Property, Plant and Equipment has been identified as having major components whose cost is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item; therefore, no separate depreciation calculations are required. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation 
charged to assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred 
each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction 
rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is devalued immediately 
before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Depreciation is not 
charged to Assets Held for Sale. Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for 
Sale. 

Receipts from disposals are part of the gain or loss on disposal line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the assets at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10k are categorised as a capital receipt. A proportion of receipts relating 
to housing disposals are payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is credited to the Capital Receipts 
Reserve and can then only be used for new capital investment. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

18. Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves 
are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Expenditure to be funded from a reserve is charged to the appropriate service revenue account and reflected in the Net 
Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant amount is then transferred 
back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge to council tax for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, and 
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council. These reserves are explained 
elsewhere in these Accounting Policies. 

19. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

This is expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the 
creation of a non-current asset for the Council. This is charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account 
in the year. The cost of this expenditure is met from existing capital resources and a transfer to the Capital Adjustment 
Account then reverses out the amounts charged in the Movement in Reserves Statement so there is no impact on the 
level of council tax. 

20. Value Added Tax 

Income and expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all VAT collected is payable to HM Revenue and 
Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from them. 
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21. Accounting for Council Tax 

The Council Tax income for the year credited to the Collection Fund is the accrued income for the year but 
regulations determine when it should be released from the Collection Fund to the Council’s General Fund or to major 
preceptors. The amount credited to the General Fund under statute is Council’s demand for the year plus or minus 
its share of the surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund for the previous year. The Council Tax income included in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the Council’s share of the Collection Fund’s accrued income 
for the year. The difference between this amount and the amount credited to the General Fund is transferred to the 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The cash collected by the Council from Council Taxpayers belongs proportionately to the Council and the major 
preceptors. The difference between the amounts collected on behalf of the major preceptors and the payments 
made to them is reflected as a debtor or creditor balance as appropriate. 

22. Accounting for Business Rates 

The Business Rates income for the year credited to the Collection Fund is the accrued income for the year but 
regulations determine when it should be released from the Collection Fund to the Council’s General Fund or to major 
preceptors and the Government. The amount credited to the General Fund under statute is the Council’s estimated 
share of Business Rates for the year from the National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 1 return. 

The Business Rates income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the Council’s share 
of the Collection Fund’s accrued income for the year from the NNDR3 return. The difference between this amount 
and the amount credited to the General Fund is transferred to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The cash collected by the Council from Business Ratepayers belongs proportionately to the Council, the major 
preceptors, and the Government. The difference between the amounts collected on behalf of the major preceptors 
and Government, and the payments made to them is reflected as a debtor or creditor balance as appropriate. 

23. Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets 

The Council’s accounting policy for fair value measurement of financial assets is set out in the policy on financial 
instruments in Note 14. The Council also measures some of its non-financial assets such as investment properties and 
some of its financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset takes place either: 

 in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

 in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The Council measures the fair value of an asset using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Council’s 
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: 

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that theCouncil can access at the 
measurement date, 

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly 
or indirectly, 

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

Note 1 Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted 

There have been no substantial changes to the Council’s accounting policies in 2023/24. 

IFRS 16 Leases will be adopted from 1st April 2024 as required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting. IFRS 16 removes the distinction between operating leases and finance leases for lessees such that 
all leases are capitalised and presented on the balance sheet as both assets, known as the right-of-use (ROU) 
asset, and liabilities. The accounting treatment for leases under IFRS 16 results in the recognition of both 
depreciation and interest expense on the income statement. The adoption of IFRS 16 is not anticipated to have 
a material impact upon the financial statements. The estimated impact on the balance sheet and CIES at 31 
March 2024 if IFRS had been adopted is as follows: 

Description Amount 
£’000 

Increase in fixed assets 106 

Increase in accumulated depreciation 8 

Increase in liabilities 98 

Reduction in service costs (lease payments) 100 

Increase in depreciation charge 98 

Increase in interest charge 2 

Note 2 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying the accounting policies, the Council has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions 
or those involving uncertainty about future events. 

 There continues to be a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government, 
particularly concerning the rebasing of the business rates baseline and the Fairer Funding Review. 
Government has announced that it is unlikely to introduce any changes before 2026/27 but the timing 
and extent of any potential changes remain unconfirmed. The Council has determined that the 
information regarding this is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council 
might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

 One factor that has had a demonstrable impact in the past few years on the accounts concerns the 
assumptions surrounding pensions and the likelihood of legislative change and the impact of such 
change. 

 It is anticipated that no substantial legal claims or appeals will be made against the Council in the next 
financial year. 

 No contracts exist with other bodies which need to be accounted for as a service concession or contain 
an embedded lease. 

Note 3 Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council 
about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, 
current trends and other relevant factors. However, the actual results could be materially different from the 
assumptions and estimates. Major estimates are Pensions, Plant Property and Equipment, Property Funds 
and provisions in respect of NNDR. 
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Asset valuations for the council's property portfolio are based on market prices and are reviewed annually to 
ensure that the Council does not materially misstate its non-current assets. The Council's external valuers 
provided valuations as at 31 March 2024 

The carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment at 31st March 2024 is £433m (£432m 2022/23). 

Valuation techniques are used to determine the carrying amount of Freehold, Leasehold and Property funds. 

Where possible these valuation techniques are based on observable data but where this is not possible 
management uses the best available data. 

Note 4 Exceptional Items of Income and Expenditure 

There are no Exceptional Items for 2023/24. 

Note 5 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for presentation by the S151 Officer on 31st July 2024. Events 
taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place 
before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31st March 2024, the figures in the financial 
statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information. 

Note 6 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 

The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

2022/23 2023/24 
£’000 
Re-

instated 

£’000 

22,939 

49,922 

5,955 
3,017 

1,647 
4,250 

(23) 
731 

Expenditure 

Employee Benefits Expenses 

Other Services Expenses 
Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairments 

Interest Payments 

Net Pension Interest 
Parish Precepts 

Capital Receipt not related to Asset Disposal 
Loss on the Disposal of Assets 

Total Expenditure 

22,075 

56,477 
5,685 

3,120 

390 
4,566 

(13) 
(104) 

88,438 92,196 

(60,561) 
(1,577) 

1,043 

(20,356) 

(3,588) 
(1,154) 

Income 

Fees, Charges and Other Income 
Interest and Investment Income 
(Gains)/Losses on Revaluation of Property 
Funds 
Income from Council Tax and Non Domestic 
Rates 
Government Grants and Contributions 
Capital Grants 

Total Income 

(63,912) 
(3,384) 

421 

(23,416) 

(3,413) 
(2,028) 

(86,193) (95,732) 

2,245 (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 

(3,536) 
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Note 7 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves to 
provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts transferred out from earmarked reserves to 
meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2023/24. 

Revenue Reserves 

Balance at 
31st March 

2023 
£'000 

Transfers 
Out 

£'000 

Transfers 
in 

£'000 

Balance at 
31st March 

2024 

£'000 

Reinvestment Reserve 

Capital Plan Reserve 

NDR S31 Covid Reserve 

Other Reserves 

(500) 

(1,874) 

(1,477) 

(3,401) 

317 

84 

0 

512 

(181) 

0 

(866) 

(3,917) 

(364) 

(1,790) 

(2,343) 

(6,806) 

Total General Fund (7,252) 913 (4,964) (11,303) 

HRA Financing Fund (16,793) 0 (731) (17,524) 

HRA Major Repairs Reserve (4,475) 6,474 (4,311) (2,312) 

Note 8 Other Income and Expenditure 

Other income and expenditure included within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Cost of Service 
are Loughborough Special Expenses and the Building Control Account as detailed below: -

Loughborough Special Expenses 

Loughborough Special Expenses is the town precept comparable to parish precepts. These costs are included 
within specific service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

There was a debit balance of £15.5k in 2022/23. However, a credit of £75.5k was adjusted in the setting of the 
special expenses levy for 2024/25, leaving a credit balance of £91k to be adjusted for in future years. The 
2023/24 credit balance of £27k will be adjusted in the setting of the special expenses levy for 2025/26. 

Debit Credit 
Budget Actuals Balance Budget Actuals Balance 
2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

1,283 1,298 15 Total Levy 1,367 1,340 27 
Adjustments from Year 

63 63 0 2020/21 0 0 0 
Adjustments from Year 

0 0 0 2021/22 0 0 0 

1,346 1,361 15 Amended Total Levy 1,367 1,340 27 
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Building Control Account 

The Building (Local Council Charges) Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/404) requires the disclosure of information 
regarding the setting of charges for the administration of the building control function. However, the Building 
Control Unit cannot charge for building work solely required for disabled persons. The overriding objective is to 
ensure the chargeable account recovers costs for chargeable functions. The Building Control service have 
entered into a shared service with North West Leicester District Council from January 2021. 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

386 

(367) 

Chargeable Work 

Expenditure 

Income 

417 

(353) 

19 (Surplus)/Deficit 64 

317 

(162) 

Non-Chargeable Work 

Expenditure 

Income 

333 

(160) 

155 (Surplus)/Deficit 173 
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Note 9 Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government 
grants, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by 
authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It shows how this expenditure is allocated for 
decision making purposes between the council’s services. Income & Expenditure accounted for under generally accepted 
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. 

Net 

Expenditure 

Chargeable to 

Services 

Adjustments 

between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

Basis 

Net 

Expenditure 

in the CIES 

Net 

Expenditure 

Chargeable to 

Services 

Adjustments 

between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

Basis 

Net 

Expenditure 

in the CIES 

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

1 (1) (0) Chief Executive's Team (0) 0 0 

1 (1) 0 Head of Transformation, Strategy and Performance (1) 1 (0) 

2 (2) 0 Chief Executive (1) 1 (0) 

1,622 75 1,697 Head of Strategic Housing 1,500 (33) 1,467 

0 0 0 Director of Housing and Wellbeing 241 (10) 231 

799 89 888 Housing and Wellbeing 973 12 985 

2,421 164 2,585 Housing and Wellbeing 2,713 (31) 2,682 

(1,367) (86) (1,453) Director of Commercial and Economic Development (1,370) 228 (1,142) 

84 107 191 Head of Assets and Property 185 (110) 74 

680 899 1,579 Head of Economic Development and Regeneration 273 2,149 2,422 

(603) 920 317 Commercial and Economic Development (912) 2,266 1,355 

1 (1) 0 Director of Finance, Governance and Contracts (0) 0 0 

422 140 562 Head of Finance 961 (42) 919 

0 0 0 Head of Democracy and Monitoring Officer 2,037 (106) 1,931 

2,152 110 2,262 Head of Governance and Human Resources 0 0 0 

0 0 0 Head of Legal and Electoral Services 501 (15) 486 

7,091 2,575 9,666 Head of Contracts: Leisure,Waste and Environment 7,873 794 8,667 

9,666 2,824 12,490 Finance, Governance and Contracts 11,371 632 12,003 

(0) 0 (0) Director of Customer Experience (0) 0 0 

2,353 233 2,586 Customer Experience 2,915 55 2,968 

2,142 79 2,221 Head of Planning and Growth 2,269 (87) 2,182 

2,348 (3) 2,345 Head of Regulatory and Community Safety 2,517 (41) 2,476 

6,843 309 7,152 Customer Experience 7,701 (74) 7,626 

18,329 4,215 22,544 Total General Fund 20,872 2,794 23,666 

(8,441) 4,245 (4,196) Housing Reveue Account (6,713) 3,609 (3,104) 

9,888 8,460 18,348 Cost of Service 14,159 6,403 20,562 

2,238 708 2,946 Other Operating Expenditure 4,566 (117) 4,449 

4,038 0 4,038 Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure (1,740) 0 (1,740) 

(23,920) (1,179) (25,099) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (24,749) (2,058) (26,807) 

(7,756) 7,989 233 (Surplus)/Deficit on provision of services (7,764) 4,228 (3,536) 

(30,157) (Gains)/Losses on Revaluation of Fixed Assets (725) 

(54,626) Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pension Assets/Liabilities (6,990) 

(84,783) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (7,715) 

(84,550) Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (11,251) 
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Note 10 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Movements in 2023/24 
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Cost or Valuation 

At 1st April 2023 

Additions 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 
Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Provision of 
Services CAA 
Derecognition – disposals 

Asset Reclassification 

At 31st March 2024 

Accumulated Depreciation and 
impairment 

362,201 

6,573 

(1,095) 

0 

(2,200) 

0 

61,326 

118 

(1,266) 

44 

(94) 

(75) 

10,122 

762 

0 

0 

(149) 

0 

166 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

4,203 

185 

0 

0 

0 

0 

34 

0 

0 

0 

0 

75 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

438,052 

7,638 

(2,361) 

44 

(2,443) 

0 

365,479 60,053 10,735 166 4,388 109 0 440,930 

At 1st April 2023 (10) (142) (5,532) (143) (62) (1) 0 (5,890) 

Depreciation charge (4,262) (828) (842) (1) (17) (2) 0 (5,952) 

Depreciation written out to the 
Revaluation Reserve 

3,168 761 0 0 0 0 0 3,929 

Depreciation written out to the 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 
of Services 

0 55 0 0 0 0 0 55 

Derecognition – disposals 0 0 149 0 0 0 0 149 

Asset Reclassification 

At 31st March 2024 

0 3 0 0 0 (3) 0 0 

(1,104) (151) (6,225) (144) (79) (6) 0 (7,709) 

Net Book Value at 31st March 
2024 

364,375 59,902 4,510 22 4,309 103 0 433,221 

Net Book Value at 31st March 
2023 

362,191 61,184 4,590 23 4,141 33 0 432,162 
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Movements in 2022/23 
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Cost or Valuation 

At 1st April 2022 

Additions 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 
Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Provision of 
Services CAA 
Derecognition – disposals 

Asset Reclassification 

At 31st March 2023 

Accumulated Depreciation and 
impairment 

337,183 

3,990 

23,660 

49 

(2,681) 

0 

58,495 

219 

1,947 

(553) 

(26) 

1,244 

10,166 

271 

0 

0 

(315) 

0 

166 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

4,057 

146 

0 

0 

0 

0 

758 

0 

0 

0 

(724) 

0 

1,244 

0 

0 

0 

0 

(1,244) 

412,069 

4,626 

25,607 

(504) 

(3,746) 

0 

362,201 61,326 10,122 166 4,203 34 0 438,052 

At 1st April 2022 (10) (72) (5,041) (142) (48) (1) 0 (5,314) 

Depreciation charge (3,944) (792) (806) (1) (14) 0 0 (5,557) 

Depreciation written out to the 
Revaluation Reserve 

3,938 653 0 0 0 0 0 4,591 

Depreciation written out to the 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 
of Services 

6 67 0 0 0 0 0 73 

Derecognition – disposals 

At 31st March 2023 

0 2 315 0 0 0 0 317 

(10) (142) (5,532) (143) (62) (1) 0 (5,890) 

Net Book Value at 31st March 
2023 

362,191 61,184 4,590 23 4,141 33 0 432,162 

Net Book Value at 31st March 
2022 

337,173 58,423 5,125 24 4,009 757 1,244 406,755 
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Impairment Losses 

The code requires disclosure by class of assets of the amounts for impairment losses and impairment reversals 
charged to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services and to other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

These disclosures are consolidated in Notes 10 and 12 reconciling movement over the year in the Property, 
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset balances. 

Capital Budgets 

The major schemes in the Capital Programme in 2024/25, including slippage from 2023/24 are:-

Capital 
Programme 

2024/25 

£'000 

Shepshed Public Realm 

Bedford Square Gateway 

Enterprise Zone 

Town Deal and Regeneration 

Queens Park - improvements 

Planned Building Improvements 

Carillon – re-imaging Loughborough’s Iconic Tower 

Southfield’s Offices - accommodation 

Refuse Collection Vehicles 

Carbon Neutral Action Fund 

Car Parks - improvements 

CCTV 

Revenues and Benefits – IT Systems 

Private Sector Housing and Disabled Facilities Grants 

HRA Decent Homes and Neighbourhoods 

Other Commitments 

620 

1,007 

5,839 

7,552 

223 

743 

242 

500 

440 

695 

472 

227 

250 

2,908 

19,046 

2,898 

43,662 
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Revaluations 

There was a full revaluation of the Council’s Operational and Non-Operational non housing stock (Land and 
Property), on 1st April 2019. The valuation report was prepared by G S C Harbord MA MRICS IRRV (Hons) 
RICS Registered Valuer of Wilks Head and Eve LLP, Third Floor, 55 New Oxford Street, London (the “Valuer”). 
The valuations were made in accordance with RICS Valuation Standards the Red Book UK Appendix 5 – 
Valuation of Local Authority Assets. Each land parcel and property has been assessed for the most appropriate 
method of valuation. The valuation categories used are – open market value, existing use value and depreciated 
replacement cost. Where the parcel includes a property, this has been valued separately. The value of the site 
is the sum of the land value and the value of the property. Life expired buildings or infrastructure are given a 
notional value of one pound. The valuation included an inspection of all assets. 

The operational Housing Revenue stock comprising dwellings, shops, garages and a store were valued as at 
1st April 2019. The valuations were made by the Valuer in accordance with RICS Valuation Standards the Red 
Book UK Appendix 5 – Valuation of Local Authority Assets. The dwellings were valued using the Beacon 
approach. This valuation included: 

 an inspection of each beacon property for each archetype group 

 research on sales of directly comparable property which took place during the financial year. 

 information at local level showing house price movements 

 regional and national Indices 

 a review of the existing asset groups and archetypes 

The dwellings, store, shops and garages are valued on an existing use value. 

Council HRA dwellings, shops, garages and stores along with the Council’s Operational and Non-Operational 
non-housing stock (land and property) were revalued at the end of March 2023 on a ‘desktop’ basis by the 
Valuer to reflect their fair value as at that time. 

Note 11 Investment Properties 

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

(1,571) 

0 

Rental Income from Investment Property 
Direct Operating expenses arising from 
investment property 

(1,599) 

0 

(1,571) Total (1,599) 

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties. 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

25,638 

0 

93 

1st Balance at April 

Disposals 

Change in Fair Values 

25,731 

0 

237 

25,731 Balance at 31st March 25,968 
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Fair Value Hierarchy 

Details of the Council’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31st March 
2024 are as follows: 

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets for 
identical assets 

(Level 1) 

£'000 

Other significant 
observable 

inputs (Level 2) 

£'000 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs (Level 3) 

£'000 

Fair value as at 
31 March 2024 

£'000 

Investment Land 0 15,608 204 15,812 

Investment 
Properties 

0 9,977 180 10,157 

Surplus Assets 
Not Held for 
Sale 

0 32 0 32 

Total 0 25,617 384 26,001 

Valuation Techniques used to Determine Level 2 and 3 Fair Values for Investment Properties 

Significant Observable Inputs – Level 2 

Land, Office, Residential, Industrial and Retail assets have been based on the market approach using current 
market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets in the local 
authority area. Market conditions for these asset types are such that the level of observable inputs is 
significant leading to the properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. 

Significant Unobservable Inputs – Level 3 

Community Buildings, Sports Ground and Centres assets have been based on a comparable approach either 
by estimated market rental values as the majority of these assets are let at sub-market or subsidised passing 
rents. We have had to draw on a number of our own assumptions and utilised third-party resources in order 
to value these assets. These assets are therefore categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as the 
measurement technique uses significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value measurements (and 
there is no reasonably available information that indicates that market participants would use different 
assumptions). 

Typical valuation inputs which have been analysed in arriving at our Fair Valuations include: 

Market Rental and Sale Values 
Yields 
Void and Letting Periods 
Size 
Configuration, proportions and layout 
Location, visibility and access 
Condition 
Lease covenants 
Obsolescence 
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Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties 

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the properties is 
their current use. 

Valuation Techniques 

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 

Quantitative Information about Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties using Significant 
Unobservable Inputs – Level 3 

As at 31st 
March 2024 

£’000 

Valuation 
technique used 
to measure fair 

value 

Unobservable 
inputs 

Range Sensitivity 

Community 4 Comparative Rental Value £10 - £40 Changes in 
Centres based on limited 

rental evidence 

Yields 

psm 

10% - 14% 

rental growth, 
yields, 
occupancy will 
result in a lower 
or higher fair 
value 

Sports 380 Comparative Rental Value £5,000 - Changes in 
Ground based on limited £15,000/ha rental growth, 
and rental evidence yields, 
Centres Yields 8% - 12% occupancy will 

result in a lower 
or higher fair 
value 
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Note 12 Intangible Assets 

The Council accounts for its software purchases as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an 
integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. There is no internally generated software. 

All software assets are given a finite useful life of 5 years. The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised 
on a straight-line basis. 

Movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows: 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

2,837 

(2,657) 

1st Balance at April: 

Gross carrying amounts 

Accumulated Amortisation 

1st Net carrying amount at April 

Additions: Purchases 

Amortisation for the period 

Derecognition – disposals 

Derecognition – depreciation written out 

Net carrying amount at 31st March 

Gross carrying amounts 

Accumulated Amortisation 

2,802 

(2,601) 

180 

80 

(59) 

(116) 

116 

201 

127 

(69) 

(233) 

233 

201 259 

2,802 

(2,601) 

2,696 

(2,437) 

201 259 

Note 13 Heritage Assets 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

279 

0 

1st Balance at April 

Revaluations 

279 

0 

279 Balance at 31st March 279 
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Note 14 Financial Instruments 

The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the Balance Sheet: 

Financial Assets Long-Term Long-Term Long-Term Long-Term Short-Term Short-Term Short-Term Short-Term Total Total 

Investments Investments Debtors Debtors Investments Investments Debtors Debtors 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Long Term Investments 4,356 3,935 4,356 3,935 

Short Term Investments 20,000 19,000 20,000 19,000 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,056 22,120 23,056 22,120 

Trade Debtors 4,119 3,355 4,119 3,355 

Long Term Debtor 1,274 5,262 1,274 5,262 

Total Financial Assets 4,356 3,935 1,274 5,262 43,056 41,120 4,119 3,355 52,805 53,672 

Financial Liabilities Long-Term Long-Term Long-Term Long-Term Short-Term Short-Term Short-Term Short-Term Total Total 

Borrowings Borrowings Creditors Creditors Borrowings Borrowings Creditors Creditors 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

31st March 

2023 

31st March 

2024 

Amortised Cost £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Long Term Borrowings (82,538) (82,538) (82,538) (82,538) 

Short term Borrowings 0 (4,000) 0 (4,000) 

Trade Creditors (10,411) (11,446) (10,411) (11,446) 

Long Term Creditor (3,508) (3,782) (3,508) (3,782) 

Total Financial Liabilities (82,538) (82,538) (3,508) (3,782) 0 (4,000) (10,411) (11,446) (96,457) (101,766) 

In addition to the above, the Council holds 10.2% of the Ordinary Shares of the Great Central Railway (1986) 
plc. These cost £261k and the shares are fully paid-up and there is no further liability to pay any more to the 
company. The company is operated to re-create the best years of steam locomotives and experience mainline 
railway operation. The company has a non-profit distribution status, and its Memorandum and Articles of 
Association prohibits any distribution to shareholders. As such the shares have no current value and are shown 
at Nil as an Unquoted Equity Investment at amortised cost. 

Long Term Borrowing of £81.19m outstanding is classified as a ‘Financial liability at amortised cost’ under the 
Code and requires a fair value to be disclosed where this is different to the carrying amount stated in the Balance 
Sheet. £2m of these loans has been attributed a fair value of £2.058m, (new loan rate) at the date of the Balance 
Sheet, (£2.194m in 2022/23). The original loan dates back to 1984, and although it carries a LOBO, (Lender’s 
Option, Borrower’s Option) it is unlikely to be called in by the counterparty before the maturity date in June 2024. 
This would only occur if the prevailing interest rate became consistently above 11.625%. Therefore, the risk of 
replacement is slight. In this event, the Council has access to the Public Works Loan Board funds or could 
disinvest surplus cash. 

The fair value of the remaining £79.190m is £67.697m, (£70.661m in 2022/23) and these loans were taken out 
to fund a repayment to the government in order to ‘buy out’ the Council’s participation in the old Housing Subsidy 
system. All the loans are at fixed rates of interest maturing between 6 months and 38 years’ time and the loan 
interest will be serviced from housing rental income. The Council does not currently intend to pay off any of 
these loans early and they are therefore held at their face value, which is the same basis as in previous years 
when the fair value was less than the book value. 

The fair value of all the loans is determined by calculating the Net Present Value (NPV) of future cash flows 
which provides an estimate of the value of payments in the future. The discount rate used in the NPV calculation 
should be equal to the current rate in relation to the same instrument from a comparable lender or the new loan 
rate in respect of the £79.19m of PWLB loans. The discount/loan interest rates were evaluated at between 
2.82% and 3.53% by Link Treasury Services Ltd, the Council’s treasury adviser. 

These will be the rates applicable in the market on the date of valuation for an instrument of the same duration, 
i.e. equal to the outstanding period from valuation date to maturity. The structure and terms of the comparable 
instrument should be the same. Total interest of £2.696m is payable in two instalments on the loans each year 
and is charged directly to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Financial Liabilities in Creditors are in respect of various trade creditors and accruals which are classified as 
financial instruments and are shown at cost. 

Other Short-Term Investments 

Short-term lending is carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost at the Balance Sheet date. Therefore, the 
material accrued interest at 31 March 2024 is included in the above value for Balance Sheet purposes. Interest 
received during the year is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. There are no 
costs associated with these transactions. 

Long-Term Investments 

The Council holds a total at 31 March 2024 of £3.934m Long Term Investments, (£4.354m in 2022/23) in the 
Lothbury Property Trust and £1.817m, (£2.067m in 2022/23) and in Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust 
£2.117m, (£2.287m in 2022/23) as at the Balance Sheet date. These are accounted for as a long-term investment 
on the Balance Sheet as a Financial Instrument Reserve and the revaluation loss £0.420m, (£1.043m Loss in 
2022/23) on the property funds has been accounted for under financing and Investment Income in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments 

2022/23 2023/24 

Financial Financial 
Financial Liabilities Financial Liabilities 
Assets: at Assets: at 

Loans and Amortised Loans and Amortised 
Receivables Costs Total Receivables Costs Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Interest Expense 0 3,017 3,017 0 3,119 3,119 

Total Expense 0 3,017 3,017 0 3,119 3,119 
in Surplus or 
Deficit on the 
Provision of 
Services 

Interest Income (1,576) 0 (1,576) (3,384) 0 (3,384) 

Total Income in (1,576) 0 (1,576) (3,384) 0 (3,384) 
Surplus or 
Deficit on the 
Provision of 
Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
                 

       
 

   

 
                   

                   
                 

      
 

  

 
                   

               
                  

                 
                

      
 

 
        

 

   

  

 

  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  

        

              

        

  
   

   
  

 

      

        

   
  

   
  

 

      

  
 

      

 
  

  
 

   
 

  
 

      

  
   

      

Gain on 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Revaluation 

Surplus/deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 
arising on 
revaluation of 
Financial 
Assets in Other 
Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 

Net (Gain)/Loss 
for the Year 

(1,576) 3,017 1,441 (3,384) 3,119 (265) 
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Note 15 Short-Term & Long-Term Debtors 

31st March 
2023 

£'000 

31st March 
2024 

£'000 

538 

1,091 

2,974 

3,973 

957 

5,700 

978 

904 

Amounts falling due in one year: 

HM Revenue and Customs 

Housing Rents 

Reserved Debtors 

Sundry Debtors 

CBC Net Share of Council Tax Debtors 

Council Tax Preceptors Cash Paid in Advance 

Government Departments 

CBC Share of NNDR Arrears 

605 

1,047 

3,053 

4,821 

1,133 

6,835 

1,114 

820 

17,115 19,428 

Short-Term 

Debtors - most Debtors are considered to be Financial Instruments and are classified as Loans and 
Receivables. Statutory debts such as Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates are not Financial 
Instruments. Those that are Financial Instruments are measured at amortised cost at the Balance Sheet date. 
In effect that is the initial amount less any repayments or accrued interest. The Council does not routinely 
charge interest on the debtor accounts and impairment is dealt with as set out below. The impairment of these 
assets is considered in depth when calculating the provision for doubtful debts using the IFRS9 credit model 
loss and appropriate provision is made which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. There is a general provision for doubtful debts of £5,033k (2022/23 £3,919k). 

Long-Term Debtor - has three long term debtors: - £400k related to a bond payment for Bedford Square 
Gateway Deed S278 Agreement, £539k Loughborough Campus Enterprise Zone forward funding grant 
payment that will be repaid over the next 4 year period and £4,324k Campus forward funding grant payment 
that will be repaid over the next 14 years. 

Bad Debts Impairments 

The Provision for Bad Debt Impairments are analysed as follows: -

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

0 

(239) 

(1,749) 
(160) 

(1,144) 

(617) 

(10) 

Financial Instruments 

Bed and Breakfast 

Housing Benefits 
General Fund Other 

Housing Rents 

CBC Share of NNDR Bad/Doubtful Debt 

General Fund Rent 

(863) 

(315) 

(1,772) 
(501) 

(1,111) 

(463) 
(8) 

(3,919) (5,033) 
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Note 16 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

31st March 
2023 

£'000 

31st 
March 
2024 
£'000 

124 

24,220 

Cash held by the Council 

Short-term deposits with approved institutions 

211 

23,200 

24,344 23,411 

(1,287) Bank Overdraft (1,291) 

(1,287) (1,291) 

23,057 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 22,120 

Note 17 Surplus Assets Held for Sale 

The authority does not currently hold any Surplus Assets held for Sale. 

Note 18 Short and Long-Term Creditors 

31st March 
2023 

£'000 

31st March 
2024 

£'000 

(598) 

(4,671) 

(755) 

(738) 

(5,160) 

(3,166) 

(1,681) 

(756) 

(224) 

(569) 

(296) 

(3,797) 

(1,218) 

(49) 

HM Revenue and Customs 

Government Departments 

Leicestershire County Council 

Housing Rents 

Other Sundry Creditors 

Reserved Creditors 

Section 106 Developers’ Contributions 

Enterprise Zone 

CBC Share of Overpaid Council Tax 

Accumulated Absences Account 

NNDR Prepayments 

NNDR - Central Government 

NNDR - Leicestershire Pool 

Combined Fire Authority 

(795) 

(940) 

(526) 

(686) 

(6,007) 

(4,836) 

(1,976) 

(847) 

(234) 

(598) 

(114) 

(1,576) 

(727) 

(26) 

(23,678) (19,888) 

Creditors are regarded as financial instruments for accounting purposes except those in respect of items such 
as NNDR and payments due to certain government departments. All such items regarded as financial 
instruments are valued at fair value as at 31st March 2024. 

Long Term Creditor of £3,782k relates to a receipt relating to the Town Deal Funds which will be held and paid 
over to third parties when they fall due, and the work is complete. 
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Note 19 Provisions 

The Code requires that the accounts clearly differentiate the provisions from the reserves of the Council. 
Provisions are required for any liabilities of uncertain timing or amounts that have been incurred. 

2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£'000 

(1,035) 

116 

NNDR Provision for Appeals Brought 
Forward 1st April 

Changes to NNDR Provision: 
Decrease/(Increase) in Provision NNDR 

Appeals 

(919) 

(563) 

(919) Balance at 31st March (1,482) 

Note 20 Usable Reserves 

General Fund Balance 

Purpose of Reserve: Resources available to meet future running costs for non-housing services. The guideline 
used by the Council requires a balance to be maintained of at least £2.5m. 

Housing Revenue Account 

Purpose of Reserve: Resources available to meet future running costs for council houses. It is recommended 
that there is at least £110 per council house dwelling within this reserve. The actual dwelling amount at 31st 

March 2024 was £111 per council house dwelling. 

Movements in the Council’s Usable Reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement, being: -
General Fund Balance, General Fund Earmarked Reserves, HRA Balance, HRA Earmarked Reserves in 
addition to those Usable Reserves below:-

Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 

Purpose of Reserve: proceeds of non-current asset sales available to meet future capital investment. 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

(10,382) 

(2,990) 

(1,426) 

0 

1,413 

Balance at 1st April 

General Fund amounts receivable 

HRA amounts receivable – 1-4-1 receipts 

HRA amounts receivable – other 
Amounts applied to finance new capital 
investments 

(13,385) 

(669) 

(839) 

(60) 

2,140 

(13,385) Balance at 31st March (12,813) 
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Usable Capital Grants and Contributions Reserve 

Purpose of Reserve: proceeds of grants and contributions to meet future capital investment and specific 
revenue expenditure. 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

(1,081) 

(1,521) 

459 

Balance at 1st April 

Capital Grants 
Amounts applied to finance new capital 
investments 

(2,143) 

(2,016) 

1,399 

(2,143) Balance at 31st March (2,760) 

Note 21 Unusable Reserves 

Restated 
31st March 

2023 

£'000 

31st March 
2024 

£'000 

(1,143) 

(264,199) 

442 

9,052 

(88,144) 

569 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

Capital Adjustment Account 

Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve 

Pension Reserve Surplus 

Revaluation Reserve 

Accumulated Absences Account 

(83) 

(265,803) 

863 

778 

(88,495) 

598 

(343,423) (352,142) 
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Revaluation Reserve 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its 
Property. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost. 

 used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or 

 disposed of and the gains are realised. 
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, the date that the Reserve was 
created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

(58,638) 

(33,048) 

2,849 

25 

Balance at 1st April 

Upward Revaluation of Assets 
Downward Revaluation of Assets and 
Impairment 
Accumulated gains on assets sold or 
scrapped 

(3,110) 

1,542 

0 

(88,144) 

Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of non-
current assets not posted to the Surplus or 

(30,174) Deficit on the Provision of Services (1,568) 

318 De-recognition of components 
Difference between Fair Value Depreciation 

842 

350 and Historical Cost Depreciation 375 

1,217 668 
Amount written off to the Capital 
Adjustment Account 

(88,144) Balance at 31st March (88,495) 
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Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or 
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, 
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to 
convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the 
Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. The Account contains 
accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties that have yet to be consumed by the Council. The 
Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1st April 2007, 
the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gain. 

31st March 2023 
£'000 

31st March 
2024 

£'000 £'000 

5,001 

988 

59 

3,087 

3,087 

(267,592) 

12,222 

Balance at 1st April 

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 

Charges for Depreciation and Impairment on Non-current Assets 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amortisation of Intangible assets 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Amounts of Non-current Assets written off on disposal or sale as part 
of the gain/loss on disposal to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 

Net written out amount of the cost of Non-current Assets consumed 
in the year 

Capital financing applied in the year: 

Use of Capital Receipts to finance new capital expenditure 

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 

Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been Applied to capital 
financing 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged 
against the General Fund balance 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA 
balances 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Balance at 31st March 

5,853 

0 

69 

4,213 

1,452 

(264,199) 

11,587 

(375) (349) 

(2,093) 

(6,474) 

(3,295) 

(601) 

(116) 

(1,413) 

(3,764) 

(2,532) 

(592) 

(86) 

(255,719) (252,987) 

(12,579) 

(237) 

(8,387) 

(93) 

(264,199) (265,803) 
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Pension Reserve 

The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the arrangements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for 
post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned 
by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing 
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However statutory 
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employers contributions to pension 
funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pension 
Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the 
resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have 
been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 

2022/23 
£'000 

2023/24 
£'000 

60,370 

(54,626) 

7,723 

(4,415) 

Balance at 1st April 
Actuarial (gains) or losses on pension assets and 
liabilities 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Employers Pension Contributions in the year 

9,052 

(6,990) 

3,523 

(4,807) 

9,052 Balance at 31st March 778 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax 
income and proportionate shares of business rates in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as it falls due, compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from 
the Collection Fund. 

Purpose of Reserve: A separate fund is maintained by billing authorities for the collection and distribution of 
amounts due in respect of Council Tax and NNDR of which, in-year surpluses and deficits are due to/from 
precepting authorities in future years. This shows the amount owed (to)/from the Council towards the current 
Collection Fund balance and Notes to the Collection Fund Statement. 

31st March 
2023 
£’000 

31st March 
2024 
£’000 

1,785 

97 

(3,025) 

Balance at 1st April 

Amounts credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement are different from 
council tax income calculated for the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements: 

Council Tax 

NDR Business Rates 

(1,143) 

(30) 

1,090 

(1,143) Balance at 31st March (83) 
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Note 22 Cash Flow Statement 

Operating Activities include the following within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: -

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

(1,578) 

3,017 

Interest Received 

Interest Paid 

(3,384) 

3,119 

1,439 Cash (Inflow)/Outflow (264) 

Note 23 Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

4,221 

1 

0 

(4,416) 

(5,691) 

Purchase of Property, Plant, Equipment, Investment 
Property and Intangible Assets 

Purchase of short-term and long-term activities 

Other payments for investing activities 

Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant, Equipment, 
Investment Property and Intangible Assets 

Other Receipts for Investing Activities 

7,356 

0 

4,524 

(1,516) 

(4,536) 

(5,886) Cash (Inflow)/Outflow (5,832) 

Note 24 Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

0 Cash receipts of short and long term borrowing (4,000) 

7,612 Net Council Tax/NNDR Debtor and Creditors 3,463 

7,612 Cash (Inflow)/Outflow (537) 

Note 25 Trading Operations 

The Council’s trading operations include Loughborough Market, Shepshed Market, Woodgate Chambers and 
Museum Cafe. Increased expenditure relates to Markets Loughborough employee and support service charges 
and additional utility costs at Woodgate Chambers, which is part offset by additional income from these areas 
in 2023/24. 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

(339) 

439 

Income 

Expenditure 

(381) 

517 

100 (Surplus)/Deficit 136 
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Note 26 Members Allowances 

The Council paid the following amounts to Members during the year. Members Allowances exclude employer’s 
National Insurance. 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

379 Salaries/Allowances 392 

379 392 

Note 27 Officers’ Remuneration 

Details of the numbers of Council staff, whose remuneration is greater or equal to £50,000 per annum, grouped 
in rising bands of £5,000. Remuneration for these purposes includes all sums paid to or receivable by an 
employee, including expenses allowances, loss of office payments, compensation pay and the money value of 
any other benefits, but excluding employer’s normal pension contributions and any special pension contributions 
payable due to loss of office. 
Only relevant remuneration bands are shown. 

Total Number of 
Employees 

2022/23 Remuneration Band 

Total Number of 
Employees 

2023/24 

7 £50,000 - £54,999 12 

3 £55,000 - £59,999 7 

4 £60,000 - £64,999 3 

3 £65,000 - £69,999 2 

1 £70,000 - £74,999 1 

1 £75,000 - £79,999 2 

0 £80,000 - £84,999 1 

1 £85,000 - £89,999 0 

0 £90,000 - £94,999 1 

2 £115,000 - £119,999 0 

1 £145,000 - £149,999 0 

0 £150,000 - £154,999 1 

1 £155,000 - £159,999 0 
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Details of Remuneration 

The Chief Executive and the Directors are shown below, and their remuneration is also included in the previous 
table for completeness. 

Total 
Remuneration 

including 
Pension 

Contribution 
2022/23 

£ 

Post Holder Information (Post 
Title) 

Salary, Fees 
and 

Allowances 

£ 

Compensation 
for Loss of 
Office both 
Taxable and 
Non-Taxable 

£ 

Total 
Remuneration 

excluding 
Pension 

Contribution 
2023/24 

£ 

Employers 
Pension 

Contribution 

£ 

Total 
Remuneration 

including 
Pension 

Contribution 
2023/24 

£ 

199,148 
114,917 

107,478 

94,820 

91,174 

185,690 

Chief Executive 
Director of Finance, 
Governance and 
Contracts 
Director of Commercial 
and Economic 
Development 
Director of Housing and 
Wellbeing 
Director of Customer 
Experience 
Strategic Director of 
Community, Planning and 
Housing (left 27/11/22) 

153,534 
94,507 

80,734 

77,099 

77,098 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

153,534 
94,507 

80,734 

77,099 

77,098 

0 

55,739 
31,658 

27,024 

25,798 

25,798 

0 

209,273 
126,165 

107,758 

102,897 

102,896 

0 

793,227 482,972 0 482,972 166,017 649,989 
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Note 28 Grant Income 

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

2022/23 

£’000 
Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific 
Grant Income 

2023/24 

£’000 

(1,154) 

(1,631) 

0 

0 

(2,043) 

Capital Grants and Contributions 

New Homes Bonus 

Funding Guarantee Grant 

NNDR Section 31 Grant 

Other Government Grants/(Covid) 

Total Credited to Taxation and Non-
Specific Grant Income 

Benefit Grants Credited to Services 

(2,028) 

(373) 

(2,289) 

(4,936) 

(811) 

(4,828) (10,437) 

(14,095) Rent Allowance Subsidy (14,888) 

(7,470) Rent Rebate Subsidy (7,338) 

(373) Housing Benefit Administration Subsidy (298) 

0 Additional Subsidy 

Other Grants Credited to Services 

(61) 

(98) Crime and Disorder Reduction (91) 

(132) Localisation of Council Tax 
Leicestershire County Council Sports 

(12) 

(119) and Active Grant (131) 

(7) Armed Forces Covenant Grant (6) 

(2,168) Capital Grants and Contributions (2,788) 

(10) Local Plans 
Vulnerable Person Resettlement 

(0) 

(125) Scheme (168) 

(76) Safer Streets Grant (48) 

(501) Homelessness Prevention Fund (664) 

(29) Town Fund Deal (681) 

(151) UK Share Prosperity Fund 16 

0 Transparency Code New Burdens (8) 

0 Redmond Review Grant (22) 

(17) New Burden Tenants Satisfaction Grant (18) 

0 Lightbulb Service (87) 

(4) Re-open High Streets Safely 0 

0 Council Tax Support Grant (241) 

0 NNDR Cost of Collection Allowance (187) 

0 Pavement License New Burdens (5) 

0 Planning Skills Delivery (68) 

0 Affordable Housing New Burdens (2) 

0 Electoral New Burdens (83) 

(38) Other Government Grants 

Total Grants credited to Services 

(59) 

(25,413) (27,938) 
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The Council has received a number of capital grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income 
as they have conditions attached to them that may require the monies to be returned to the giver. The balances 
at the year-end are as follows: 

31st 
March 
2023 

£’000 

Capital Grants and Contributions -
Receipts in Advance 

31st March 2024 

£’000 

(4,444) 

(1,357) 

Balance Brought Forward 
S106 Developers Contributions and other 
Capital Grants and Contributions 

(5,801) 

(135) 

(5,801) Balance Carried Forward (5,936) 

The Council has a number of revenue grants and contributions that have not yet been recognised as they have 
conditions attached to them that may require the monies to be returned to the giver. The balances at the year-
end are as follows: 

31st March 
2023 

£’000 

Revenue Grants and Contributions -
Receipts in Advance 

31st March 
2024 

£’000 

(213) 
(510) 

S106 Developers’ Contributions 

Other Revenue Grants and Contributions 

(195) 
(376) 

(723) (571) 

Note 29 External Audit Costs 

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification 
of grant claims and statutory inspections provided by the Council’s external auditors. 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

67 

23 

Fees payable with regard to external audit services 
carried out by the appointed auditor 

Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and 
returns for the year 

181 

32 

90 213 
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Note 30 Related Parties 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have 
the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of 
these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its 
ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely 
with the Council. 

Central Government 

Central Government has a significant influence over the general operations of the Council – it is responsible for 
providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates. It provides a significant proportion of its 
funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with 
other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government departments and other 
grants received in advance are set out in Note 28. 

Members 

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total of 
members’ allowances paid in 2023/24 is shown in Note 26. No members of the Council or senior officers 
undertook any material related party transactions requiring disclosure during 2023/24. 

Leicester and Leicestershire Business Rates Pool 

Under the Local Government Finance Act 2012 local authorities are able to retain a proportion of the business 

rates generated in their area and rather than paying certain amounts to central government, they can create a 

‘pool’ locally. 

The Council along with Leicester City Council, Leicestershire County Council, Leicestershire Combined Fire 

Authority and all other Leicestershire District Councils agreed to operate a pooling agreement for business rates 

levies and safety net payments for 2013/14, the Leicester and Leicestershire Pool (LLP). The County Council 

was the lead authority for the LLP. The Pool was based on a “no better, no worse” position, with District Councils 

paying any levies into the Pool and any safety net payments being made from the Pool. 

The LLP partners decided not to continue with the Pool in 2014/15 but it was started again for the 2015/16 

financial year and has continued in successive financial years up to 31st March 2022, with the exception of 

2019/20 when Pool members participated in a 75% Business Rate Retention pilot and pilot rules applied, with 

locally agreed arrangements between participants. 

Other Public Bodies 

Local Government Pension Scheme is set out in Note 33. 
Precepts collected on behalf of other local authorities and bodies are shown in the Collection Fund Statement. 
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Note 31 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the 
resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by 
charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has 
yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

106,622 

4,627 

80 

3,087 

(1,413) 

(3,764) 

(2,532) 

(85) 

(592) 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 

Capital Investment 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Intangible Assets 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Sources of Finance 

Capital Receipts 

Major Repairs Reserve 

Government Grants and other Contributions 

Sums set aside from revenue: 

Direct Revenue Contributions 

Minimum Revenue Provision 

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 

Explanation of movements in year 

Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrowing 
(unsupported by government financial assistance) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 

106,030 

7,638 

127 

4,213 

(2,093) 

(6,474) 

(3,295) 

(116) 

(601) 

106,030 105,429 

(592) (601) 

(592) (601) 

Note 32 Termination Benefits 

The Council had 1 redundancy and 3 settlement agreements in 2023/24 incurring liabilities totalling £52k (there 
were 3 redundancies and one settlement agreement in 2022/23 totalling £401k). The redundancy payment was 
for an externally funded post within recreational services. Of the three settlement agreements, one was in 
committee administration and two were HRA employees within the central control team. None of the 2023/24 
employees were Directors. 
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Note 33 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 

Participation in Pension Schemes 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions towards the 
cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, 
the Council has a commitment to make payments that need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn 
their future entitlement. 

Charnwood Borough Council participates in a defined benefit scheme administered by Leicestershire County 
Council in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997, as amended. This is a 
funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a 
fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension’s liabilities with investment assets. 

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 

The cost of retirement benefits is reported in the cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather 
than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against 
council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is 
reversed out of the General Fund and HRA via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions 
have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via 
the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year. 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

2022/23 

£’000 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

2023/24 

£’000 

Current Service cost 

Past Service costs (including curtailments) 
Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure 
Net Pensions Interest costs and Expected return on 
scheme assets 

Total Post Employment Benefit charge to the 

5,854 

222 

1,647 

3,124 

9 

390 

(Surplus)/ Deficit on the Provision of Services 

Movement in Reserve Statement 

Reversal of net charges made to the (Surplus)/Deficit 
for the Provision of Services for post-employment 
benefits in accordance with the code 

Actual amount charged against the General fund 
balance for pension in the year 

7,723 

(3,308) 

3,523 

1,284 

4,415 4,807 

Actuarial Gains and (Losses) in the year 54,626 6,690 

There is a £32k actuarial gain (from CIES/STRGL spreadsheet) reconciling item in 2023/24; this is due to 
Charnwood Borough Council’s lower pension contributions in year compared to Hymans Valuation Report. 
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Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet. 

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of its defined 
benefits plan is as follows: 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

Fair Value of Employer Assets 

Present Value of Funded Liabilities 

Asset ceiling adjustment 

143,851 

(152,082) 

0 

156,970 

(153,942) 

(3,028) 

Net (Under)/Over funding in Funded Plans 

Present Value of Unfunded Liabilities 

(8,231) 

(821) 

0 

(778) 

Net Asset/(Liability) in Balance Sheet (9,052) (778) 

In 2023/24, the local government pension scheme (LGPS) has net assets of £3,028k due to changes in the 
financial assumptions and in particular the increase in the discount rate used. In accordance with proper 
accounting practice, an asset ceiling calculation has been undertaken which shows that the net asset cannot 
be realised. As a result, the Councils net assets (and the net pension liability) is reduced by £3,028k. 

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 

The basis for estimating assets and liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about 
mortality rates, salary levels etc. Leicestershire County Council’s Fund Liabilities have been assessed by 
Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries. 

Charnwood Borough Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme through which pension 
provision is made for those of its employees who wish to join the scheme. Under the Code, the Council must 
include its share of the net Pension Fund Asset as at 31st March 2024 and this amounted to £2,250k. This is a 
decrease of £11,302k on the position at 31st March 2023. Although this asset appears in the Council’s Balance 
Sheet, it is offset by the Pensions Reserve and is not funded from Council Tax or Government Grants. Actual 
employer’s contributions to the pension scheme during the year are paid out of the Council’s expenditure as funded 
by Government Grants and Council Tax. 

31st March 
2023 

% Per 
Annum Financial Assumptions: 

31st March 
2024 

% Per 
Annum 

3.00% 

3.50% 

4.75% 

Rate of Inflation/Pension Increase Rate 

Salary Increase Rate 

Discount Rate 

2.80% 

3.30% 

4.80% 

Mortality Assumptions: 
Males Females 

Longevity at 65 for pensioners 

Current Pensioners 

Future Pensioners 

21.4 years 

22.1 years 

24.1 years 

25.6 years 
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Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net 
Liability 

Assets 
2022/23 

£’000 

Obligations 
2022/23 

£’000 

Net (Liability) 
/Asset 

2022/23 
£’000 

Assets 
2023/24 

£’000 

Obligations 
2023/24 

£’000 

Net (Liability) 
/Asset 

2023/24 
£’000 

150,681 

(210,005) 

(1,046) 

150,681 

(210,005) 

(1,046) 

Fair Value of employer assets 

Present value of funded liabilities 

Present value of unfunded liabilities 

143,851 

(152,082) 

(821) 

143,851 

(152,082) 

(821) 

150,681 (211,051) (60,370) Opening Position as at 31st March 143,851 (152,903) (9,052) 

(5,854) 

(222) 

(5,854) 

(222) 

Current Service Cost 
Past Service Cost (including 
Curtailments) 

(3,124) 

(9) 

(3,124) 

(9) 

0 (6,076) (6,076) Total Service Cost 0 (3,133) (3,133) 

4,067 

(5,714) 

4,067 

(5,714) 

Interest Income on plan assets 
Interest Cost on defined benefit 
obligation 

6,818 

(7,208) 

6,818 

(7,208) 

4,067 (5,714) (1,647) Total Net Interest 6,818 (7,208) (390) 

4,067 (11,790) (7,723) 
Total Defined Benefit Cost 
Recognised in Profit or (Loss) 6,818 (10,341) (3,523) 

855 

4,576 

80 

(5,358) 

(80) 

(855) 

5,358 

80 

0 

4,576 

80 

0 

0 

Cashflows 

Plan Participants Contributions 

Employers Contributions 
Contributions in respect of unfunded 
benefits 

Benefits paid 

Unfunded Benefits Paid 

926 

4,757 

82 

(6,312) 

(82) 

(926) 

6,312 

82 

0 

4,757 

82 

0 

0 

73 4,583 4,656 Total Cashflows (629) 5,468 4,839 

154,821 (218,258) (63,437) Expected Closing Position 150,040 (157,776) (7,736) 

(5,056) 

(5,914) 

71,425 

1,364 

(7,434) 

71,425 

1,364 

(12,490) 

(5,914) 

Remeasurements 

Changes in financial assumptions 
Changes in demographic 
assumptions 

Other experience 

Return on assets excluding amounts 
included in net interest 6,930 

7,012 

922 

(4,878) 

7,012 

922 

(4,878) 

6,930 

(10,970) 65,355 54,385 
Total Measurements recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income 6,930 3,056 9,986 

143,851 (152,903) (9,052) Total Expected Closing Position 156,970 (154,720) 2,250 

143,851 

(152,082) 

(821) 

143,851 

(152,082) 
0 

(821) 

Fair Value of employer assets 

Present value of funded liabilities 
Asset ceiling adjustment 
Present value of unfunded liabilities 

156,970 

(153,942) 

(778) 

156,970 

(153,942) 
(3,028) 

(778) 

143,851 (152,903) (9,052) Closing Position 156,970 (154,720) (778) 
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% of % of 
31st March Total 31st March Total 

Value of Employers Assets 2023 Assets 2024 Assets 

£’000 £’000 

Equity Securities: 

Total Equity Securities 

Debt Securities: 

UK Government 

Other 

Private Equity 
Real Estate – UK Property 

Investment Funds and Unit Trusts: 

Equities 

Bonds 

Hedge Funds 

Commodities 

Infrastructure 

Other 

Derivatives – Foreign Exchange 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Closing Balance at 31st March 

452 

6,625 

608 

9,848 
10,195 

62,989 

0 

1 

3,695 

11,768 

34,368 

66 

3,236 

0% 

5% 

0% 

7% 

7% 

44% 

0% 

0% 

3% 

8% 

24% 

0% 

2% 

493 

7,230 

663 

10,747 
11,124 

68,734 

0 

1 

4,032 

12,841 

37,502 

72 

3,531 

0% 

5% 

0% 

7% 

7% 

44% 

0% 

0% 

3% 

8% 

24% 

0% 

2% 

143,851 100% 156,970 100% 

Sensitivity Analysis 

Approximate % 
Increase to Employer 

Liability 

Approximate 
Monetary 

Amount £’000 

0.1% Decrease in Real Discount Rate 
2% 2,557 

1 year increase in member life expectancy 
4% 6,189 

0.1% Increase in the Salary Increase Rate 
0% 259 

0.1% Increase in the Pension Increase Rate 
2% 2,342 

The Sensitivity Analysis above has been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes 
while all other assumptions remain constant. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the 
accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. 
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change from those used 
in the previous period. 
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Scheme History 2023/24 

£’000 

2022/23 

£’000 

2021/22 

£’000 

2020/21 

£’000 

2019/20 

£’000 

Fair Value of Employer 
Assets 
Present Value of Defined 
Benefit Obligation 
Asset ceiling adjustment 

156,970 

(154,720) 
(3,028) 

143,851 

(152,903) 

150,681 

(211,051) 

135,706 

(220,410) 

109,203 

(172,909) 

Surplus/(Deficit) (778) (9,052) (60,370) (84,704) (63,706) 

The liability shows the underlying commitments that the Council has, in the long run, to pay retirement benefits. 
The total liability of £778k has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the balance 
sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council 
remains healthy. 

The deficit of the Local Government Scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining 
working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary. The estimated total employers’ contributions for 
2025 will be approximately £4,799k. 

Note 34 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

The Council does not have any Contingent Liabilities or Contingent Assets. 

Note 35 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 

The Council’s activities expose it to a number of financial risks, the main ones being: 

 Credit Risk – the possibility that other parties may fail to pay the amounts due. 

 Liquidity Risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments. 

 Market Risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in 
such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

The Council’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and 
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is 
carried out by the central Finance team, under policies approved by the Council in the annual Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement. The Council provides written principles for overall risk management, as well 
as written policies covering specific areas, such as borrowing strategy, investment policy, creditworthiness policy 
and investment strategy. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to the Council’s 
own customers. 

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with 
financial institutions unless they meet minimum credit criteria. The Council has a contract with Link Treasury 
Services Ltd (‘LAS’) who advise on investment policy and supply credit ratings for use on the day-to-day 
management of investments. These criteria are based on such factors as: 

 Credit ratings of counter parties, 

 Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies, 

 Credit Default Swaps spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings, and 

 Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 
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These ratings will alter throughout the year and various limits are set on the type of investments which can be 
made. These are based on Specified and Non-Specified investments for local authorities and further inner limits 
are set and periodically reviewed as between investments of the same type, such as banks with a similar credit 
rating. Short term investments are typically rated F1 and amounts with each institution, or group, was limited to 
a maximum of £18m. 

Appropriate checks are made on customers for goods and services based on the size and/or length of contract 
with them. The Council’s maximum exposure in relation to its investments in banks and other financial 
institutions can rise to over £60m during the year and it cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution 
failing to make interest payments and repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. There 
is always a potential risk of not recovering investments and this applies to all of the Council’s deposits, but there 
was no evidence at 31 March 2024 that this was likely to crystallise. 

The Council does allow credit for some types of service and amounts that are due, but not impaired, included 
as part of sundry debtors are as follows: 

31st March 
2023 

£’000 

31st March 
2024 

£’000 

1,175 

257 

12 

152 

Less than three months 

Three to six months 

Six months to one year 

More than one year 

749 

360 

128 

282 

1,596 1,519 

Liquidity Risk 

The Council needs to manage cash flow to have sufficient funds to pay debts when due. This is done by 
investing surplus cash when available and by arranging investments to cover the expected liability dates. The 
Council works to a balanced budget in accordance with legislation with a reserve of revenue balances to manage 
the cash flow. This is continually changing during the year as creditors and debtors accounts mature. The 
Council always has access to borrowing through the Public Works Loan Board. Council borrowing, if required, 
is secured on the revenues of the Council. The Council, through its counterparty policy, also seeks to ensure 
that each counter party is of sufficient size to be able to repay the amounts loaned on the due date. 

The Council has two long term investments, Lothbury Property Trust with a value of £1.817m (£2.067m in 
2022/23) and Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust £2.117m (£2.287m in 2022/23). Whilst this is intended to 
be a longer-term investment redemption notices are settled quarterly therefore can be recalled on this basis. 
Following the consultation undertaken by the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities [DLUHC] 
on IFRS 9, the Government has extended the mandatory statutory override for local authorities to reverse out 
all unrealised fair value movements resulting from pooled investment funds to 31st March 2025. Local 
authorities are required to disclose the net impact of the unrealised fair value movements in a separate 
unusable reserve throughout the duration of the override in order for the Government to keep the override 
under review and to maintain a form of transparency. 

Market Risk 

The Council is exposed to changes in the interest rate on one of its borrowings. This £2m borrowing is at a high 
interest rate and it is not anticipated that interest rates will reach this level in the short to medium term, so 
effectively rendering this rate as fixed. The remainder of the Council’s borrowings are at fixed interest rates and 
do not contain a market risk. The £2m borrowing is due to be redeemed in June 2024. 

In-house lending is mainly for cash flow purposes and is all for under two years. This lowers risk but prevents 
the strategic longer-term lending which would help to mitigate the variations in interest rates. The interest rates 
move in cycles and the Council clearly receives lower interest receipts at the bottom of the cycle. This is 
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managed by having a Treasury Strategy in place that forecasts the movements in rates and therefore allows 
the budget to be informed of the expected interest receipts so that spending plans are not based on unrealistic 
interest receipt assumptions. Based on the Short-Term investments at Balance Sheet date of £10m, a 1% 
change in interest rate would equate to £100k higher or lower receipt to the Council in revenue. 

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus have no exposure 
to losses arising from movements in exchange rates. 
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Supplementary Statements and Notes 

HRA Income and Expenditure Statement 

The Housing Revenue Account reflects a statutory obligation under legislation to account separately for local 
council housing provision. The Account is “ring-fenced” and has to be self-financing. The costs of HRA activities, 
not met by subsidy or other income, are met by the rents payable and deficits on the HRA cannot be made good 
by the council taxpayer. 

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing housing services 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from rents 
and government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with the legislative 
framework; this may be different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis 
on which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account. 

2022/23 

£’000 

Note 2023/24 

£’000 

6,693 
6,507 

947 

3,660 
22 

13 

Expenditure 
Supervision and Management 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Rents, Rates, Taxes and other 
charges 
Depreciation/Revaluation 
increase/Impairment of non-
current assets 
Debt management costs 
Movement in the allowance for 
bad debts (not specified by the 
code) 

Total Expenditure 

Income 

7,189 
7,113 

1,099 

4,296 
20 

431 

17,842 20,148 

(21,001) Dwellings rent 1 (22,226) 
(398) Non-dwelling rents (392) 
(711) Charges for Services and Facilities (740) 
(116) Contributions towards expenditure (130) 
(188) Other Income 

Total Income 

Net cost of HRA Services as 
included in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

(205) 

(22,414) (23,694) 

(4,572) 

378 

Statement 
HRA services’ share of Corporate 
and Democratic Core 

Net Cost for HRA Services 
HRA share of the operating 
income and expenditure 
included in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement 
Capital grants and contributions 

(3,546) 

441 

(4,194) (3,105) 

0 receivable 
Loss on disposal of HRA non-

(15) 

146 current assets 1 
(501) Interest and investment income (1,100) 
2,737 Interest Payable 

Net Cost/(Income) of HRA 
Services 

2,767 

(1,812) (1,452) 

57 



 

 

 

 

 

 

     
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

    

 
          

    

 
         

     

 
     

       

 
       

    

       

          

 
          

    

 
 

         
  

 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

    

  
     

        

          

       

          

         

      

           

 
       

       

         

      

 
 

 
 
 
 

Movement on the HRA Statement 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

(606) 
Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous 
year 

Surplus for the year on the HRA Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

Adjustments between accounting basis and 
funding basis under statute 

Net increase before transfers to or from 
reserves 

Transfers to reserves 

(Increase)/Decrease in year on the HRA 

Balance on the HRA at the end of the current 
year 

(603) 

(1,812) 

203 

(1,452) 

23 

(1,609) (1,429) 

(1,612) (1,425) 

3 (4) 

(603) (607) 

Reconciling Items for the Statement of Movement on the 
HRA Balance 

2022/23 

£’000 

Note 2023/24 

£’000 

(146) 

18 

0 

331 

Adjustments between accounting basis and 
funding basis under statute 

Loss on sale of HRA non-current assets 

Accumulated Absences Account 

Reversal of Capital Grants and Contributions 

Reversal of Gain on Revaluation 

(1) 

(7) 

15 

16 

203 23 

(605) 

2,217 

Transfers (to) or from reserves 

HRA share of contributions to/(from) the Pension 
Reserve 

Transfer to/(from) the Housing Financing Fund 

7 

8 

694 

731 

1,612 1,425 
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Notes to the Housing Revenue Account 

Note 1 Gross Rents 

Gross rent due in the year, after allowance is made for empty properties, was £22,226k compared with 
£21,001k in 2022/23. The rent loss caused by empty properties was 7.46% for 2023/24 compared with 6.46% 
in 2022/23. The average rent for 2023/24 on a 52 week basis was £85.22 (£79.28 in 2022/23). 

Rent Arrears 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£’000 

538 

445 

1 

Arrears at 31st March: 

Current Tenants 

Former Tenants 

Garages and Shops 

488 

457 

1 

984 946 

5.15% 

97 

139 

36 

Arrears & court costs as % of gross debit 

Court Costs 

Rent Write-off/irrecoverable 

Rechargeable Repairs Write-off/irrecoverable 

4.67% 

93 

142 

21 

A Provision for Bad Debts has been made in the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code 
of Practice. The provision includes an element in respect of rent rebate overpayments. Rent rebates were 
transferred to the General Fund on 1st April 2004. This provision relates to overpayments made prior to that date 
which were financed by the HRA. Landlord Services rechargeable repairs relates to a provision for bad debts 
where damage to HRA property has been recharged to its perpetrators. 

A bad debt provision of £303k has been allocated to anticipated losses in the Council’s property investment fund. 
The HRA Investment return is calculated to include the beneficial return on the property fund, so this is in terms of 
anticipated losses. 

Bad Debt Provision 

31st March 
2023 

£'000 

31st March 
2024 

£'000 

1,081 

2 

40 

21 

Rent 

Overpaid Rent Rebate 

Landlord Services rechargeable repairs 

Leaseholder Charges 

1,039 

1 

41 

30 

1,144 1,111 
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Note 2 Depreciation Charge and Capital Credit 

Total Capital Financing Charges of £20k was debited to the HRA in 2023/24 and £22k in 2022/23 in accordance 
with the Item 8 determinations for the year. Depreciation Charge is analysed below: -

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

3,944 

34 

8 

5 

Depreciation: 

Dwellings 

Garages and Shops 

Plant, Vehicles and Equipment 

Intangibles 

4,263 

34 

8 

7 

3,991 4,312 

(331) 

Net Revaluation increase of non-current 

assets (16) 

3,660 4,296 

Note 3 Housing Stock 

The Council was responsible for managing 5,444 HRA dwellings as at 31st March 2024. This excludes one shared 
ownership dwelling, which is shared on a 50% equity basis. The stock was made up as follows: -

Number of Number of 
Dwellings Dwellings 
31st March 31st March 

2023 2024 

2,692 Flats/Maisonettes 2,662 

2,790 Houses/Bungalows 2,782 

5,482 5,444 

The change in stock can be summarised as follows: -

Number of 
Dwellings 
31 March 

2023 

Number of 
Dwellings 
31 March 

2024 

5,505 

5 

(28) 

0 

Stock at 1st April 
Add: New properties, acquisitions and 
Appropriations 

Property Sales 

Demolished 

5,482 

4 

(23) 

(19) 

5,482 Stock at 31st March 5,444 
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On 31st March 2024 there were 3 void properties withheld from letting (9 at 31st March 2023) for major 
refurbishment. Two HRA properties are being used as community centres on a temporary basis. The figure of 
5,444 represents the actual HRA dwelling stock the Council owns. 

The dwellings are classified as operational assets within the Housing Revenue Account. In addition, there was 
no movement to the number of non-dwelling assets which were 818 garages, 12 shops and 1 store in 2023/24. 

Note 4 Balance Sheet Value of Council’s Housing Stock 

31st March 
2023 
£'000 

31st March 
2024 
£'000 

362,191 

5,001 

1,089 

Dwellings 

Other land and buildings 

Garages 

Shops and Store 

364,375 

5,132 

982 

368,281 Net carrying amount at 31st March 370,489 

Dwellings, Garages, Shops and Stores are all Operational Assets. There are no Non-Operational Assets. 

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 

31st March 
2023 

£'000 

31st March 
2024 

£'000 

20 

0 

(8) 

1st Balance at April 

Additions: Purchases 

Depreciation 

12 

0 

(8) 

12 Net carrying amount at 31st March 4 

Intangibles 

31st March 
2023 

£'000 

31st March 
2024 

£'000 

14 

0 

(5) 

1st Balance at April 

Additions: Purchases 

Depreciation 

9 

27 

(7) 

9 Net carrying amount at 31st March 29 

The valuation at 1 April 2023 of £362.2m and at 31 March 2024 of £364.4m is lower than the vacant possession 
value on the open market of £862.4m and £867.6m respectively. 

The difference between the vacant possession value and the opening balance sheet value within the HRA 
represents the economic cost to government of providing council housing at less than open market rents. The 
adjustment factor for the economic cost of providing Council Housing for the East Midlands of 42% has been used 
as noted in the latest Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities guidance on Stock Valuation at the 
time the accounts were closed. 
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Note 5 Summary Total of Capital Expenditure and Receipts 

Housing capital expenditure during the financial year was £6,600k. 

Capital expenditure is shown as follows: -

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

3,990 

3,764 

0 

226 

Capital Expenditure 

Financed By: 

Major Repairs Reserve 

Other Capital Contributions 

HRA Capital Receipts 

6,600 

6,474 

12 

114 

3,990 6,600 

Total capital receipts from the sale of HRA assets were £2,843k as follows: -

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

2,417 

(36) 

Council House Sales 

Less: Administration costs 

2,881 

(25) 

2,381 

0 

Net Council House Sales 

Reclaimable Discount from Council House Sales 

2,856 

(13) 

2,381 2,843 

Note 6 Major Repairs Reserve 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

(4,248) 

(3,991) 

3,764 

Balance at 1st April 

Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve 
Capital Expenditure funded from Major Repairs 
Reserve 

(4,475) 

(4,312) 

6,474 

(4,475) Balance at 31st March (2,313) 
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Note 7 Pension Fund 

In accordance with IAS19, Accounting for Retirement Benefits, accounting adjustments have been made in the 
Housing Revenue Account to report pension liabilities. In 2023/24, this represented a decrease of £694k to net 
cost of service compared to an increase of £605k in 2022/23. 

Note 8 HRA Financing Fund 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£000 

(14,576) 

(2,217) 

1st Balance as at April 

Contribution to Financing Fund 

(16,793) 

(731) 

(16,793) Balance as at 31st March (17,524) 
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Collection Fund Statement 2023/24 

Business 
Rates 

2022/23 

£'000 

Council 
Tax 

2022/23 

£'000 

Total 

2022/23 

£'000 

Note 

Business 
Rates 

2023/24 

£'000 

Council 
Tax 

2023/24 

£'000 

Total 

2023/24 

£'000 

0 

(45,927) 

(119,083) 

(25) 

0 

(119,083) 

(25) 

(45,927) 

Income 

Council Tax Receivable 

Covid 19 Discretionary Grant from General Fund 

Business Rates Receivable 

Expenditure 
Apportionment of Previous Year 
Surplus/(Deficit) 

Central Government 

Charnwood Borough Council 

Leicestershire County Council 

Leicestershire Police and Crime Commissioner 

Combined Fire Authority 

Precept, Demands and Shares 

Central Government 

Charnwood Borough Council 

Leicestershire County Council 

Leicestershire Police and Crime Commissioner 

Combined Fire Authority 

Charges to the Collection Fund 

Less Write Offs of Non-Collectable Amounts 

Less Increase/(Decrease) In Bad Debt Provision 
Less Increase/(Decrease) In Provision For 

Appeals 

Less Cost of Collection 
Transitional Protection Payments Payable 

To/(from) Central Government 

Less Disregarded Amounts 

(Surplus)/Deficit arising during the year 

(Surplus)/Deficit brought forward 1st April 

(Surplus)/Deficit carried forward 31st March 

2 

3 

4 

7 

6 

8/9/11 

0 

(46,881) 

(125,778) 

(241) 

0 

(125,778) 

(241) 

(46,881) 

(45,927) (119,108) (165,035) (46,881) (126,019) (172,900) 

(2,753) 

(2,202) 

(496) 

0 

(55) 

0 

122 

774 

136 

38 

(2,753) 

(2,080) 

278 

136 

(17) 

974 

779 

175 

0 

20 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

974 

779 

175 

0 

20 

(5,506) 1,070 (4,436) 1,948 0 1,948 

21,037 

16,830 

3,787 

0 

421 

0 

13,577 

85,461 

15,189 

4,370 

21,037 

30,407 

89,248 

15,189 

4,791 

23,313 

18,650 

4,196 

0 

466 

0 

14,247 

90,287 

16,171 

4,693 

23,313 

32,897 

94,483 

16,171 

5,159 

42,075 118,597 160,672 46,625 125,398 172,023 

219 

416 

(290) 

186 

161 

1,490 

294 

3 

0 

0 

0 

0 

513 

419 

(290) 

186 

161 

1,490 

299 

(384) 

1,409 

187 

(1,805) 

1,721 

409 

(56) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

708 

(440) 

1,409 

187 

(1,806) 

1,721 

2,182 297 2,479 1,427 353 1,779 

(7,176) 856 (6,320) 3,119 (269) 2,850 

4,595 (874) 3,721 (2,581) (18) (2,599) 

(2,581) (18) (2,599) 538 (286) 252 
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Notes to the Collection Fund Statement 

Note 1 General 

This account reflects the statutory requirements for billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund, 
which shows the transactions of the billing Council in relation to non-domestic rates and the Council Tax and 
illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to preceptors and the General Fund. The Collection 
Fund is consolidated with the other accounts of the billing Council. The transactions are prescribed by legislation 
and are prepared on an accruals basis. 

The major items contained within the Fund are: 
* Council Tax collected from Borough Residents 

* Business Rates collected from businesses within the Borough 
* Transitional Relief granted to Council Taxpayers 
* Precepts, Demands and Shares on the collection fund paid out to: 

* Central Government 
* Charnwood Borough Council 
* Leicestershire County Council 
* Leicestershire Police and Crime Commissioner 
* Leicestershire Combined Fire Authority 

* The cost of collection allowance for Business Rates retained by the Billing Authority 
* Additional items, such as 

* Write offs of non-collectable amounts 
* Provision for possible bad and doubtful debts 
* Provision for appeals on NNDR bills 
* Other disregarded amounts 

* The deficit or surplus relating to Council Tax. This is then distributed between billing authorities and 
precepting authorities on the basis of an estimate made on of January in each year. 15th 

* The deficit or surplus relating to Business rates. This is distributed between billing authorities, 
precepting authorities and central government on the basis of an estimate made during January in 
each year. 

Note 2 Council Tax 

The basis of Council Tax is a property valuation. Properties are valued at April 1991 prices and included within 
eight bands. The standard Council Tax is calculated at Band D and all bands are expressed as a Band D 
equivalent to ascertain a total tax base for the Council. The 2023/24 base is shown below. Note that there is 
now a reduced ‘Band A’ for properties in ‘A’ that are reduced for those with approved Disabled Adaptations. 

Valuation 
Band Range of Values 

Relationship 
to Band D 

Number of 
Properties 

Band D 
Equivalent 

X Reductions on Band A 
Up to and including 

5/9 24.75 13.8 

A £40,000 6/9 10,352.75 6,901.8 

B £40,001 - £52,000 7/9 18,986.50 14,767.3 

C £52,001 - £68,000 8/9 17,187.00 15,277.3 

D £68,001 - £88,000 1 10,178.75 10,178.8 

E £88,001 - £120,000 11/9 6,949.25 8,493.5 

F £120,001 - £160,000 13/9 3,183.75 4,598.8 

G £160,001 - £320,000 15/9 1,947.25 3,224.4 

H More than £320,000 18/9 180.75 361.5 

Contributions in lieu 
Estimated growth in Band 

23.2 

D equivalents 331.2 

Total (Tax Base) 64,192.6 
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The gross tax base, 64,192.6 as per the council tax resolution is adjusted for the Band D equivalent of dwellings 
receiving Council Tax Support to give an adjusted tax base of 60,087.6. Finally, an estimated collection rate of 
98.5% for 2023/24 is then applied to the adjusted Band D figure producing a Council Tax Base of 59,186.3 
which equates to £2,118.70 for a Band D property. This provides a total requirement of £125.4m. 

The actual position is as follows: 

2022/23 
£'000 

2023/24 
£'000 

136,140 

(17,057) 

Gross Council Tax due 

Relief, Exemptions and Transitional Relief 
Granted 

144,666 

(18,888) 

119,083 Council Tax 125,778 

Note 3 National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 

NNDR is organised on a local basis. The Council is responsible for collecting rates due from ratepayers within 
the Borough and the total amounts billed to business ratepayers are included within the Collection Fund, less 
the various relief and exemptions granted. This amount is paid, during the year, to the other precepting 
authorities and to central government based on their proportionate shares. The amounts paid over form part of 
the financing of the billing and precepting authorities General Fund. 

2022/23 
£'000 

2023/24 
£'000 

66,054 

(20,127) 

0 

Gross Non-Domestic Rates due 

Reliefs and Exemptions 

Transitional Protection Payment due 
to/(from) the Council 

68,332 

(21,428) 

0 

45,927 Net Business Rates Receivable 46,904 

The Government specifies an amount (51.2 p in 2023/24 and same in 2022/23) and, subject to the effects of 

transition arrangements and rate relief schemes, local businesses pay rates calculated by multiplying their 

rateable value by that amount. The Rateable Value for the Council’s area at 31st March 2024 was £143.28m 

(£133.29m at 31st March 2023). 
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Note 4 Charnwood Borough Council Tax Precept 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

17,862 

4,250 

(122) 

Charnwood Precept 

Parish Precepts 

Collection Fund Deficit/(Surplus) 

19,245 

4,566 

0 

21,990 

(8,413) RSG and NNDR Redistributed Pool 

23,811 

(9,564) 

13,577 14,247 

Note 5 Provision for Non-Payment 

Council Tax 

There is a cumulative provision held as at 31st March 2024 amounting to £1,245k for doubtful debts, including 
costs. (£1,240k as at 31st March 2023) 

NNDR 

There is a cumulative provision held as at 31st March 2024 amounting to £1,159k for doubtful debts, including 
costs. (£1,543k as at 31st March 2023) 

Note 6 Contributions to Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

3 

416 

Council Tax 

NNDR 

(56) 

(384) 

419 (440) 

Note 7 Write-off of Bad Debts 

2022/23 

£'000 

2023/24 

£'000 

294 

219 

Council Tax 

NNDR 

409 

299 

513 708 
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Note 8 Council Tax (Surplus)/Deficit on the Collection Fund 

There was a Surplus balance on the Collection Fund at 31st March 2024 of £286k (£18k Surplus at 31st March 
2023). This will be carried forward to 2024/25 and taken into account in the future calculation of charges to be 
met by Council Taxpayers. Further analysis is provided in Note 10 below. 
There were no net contributions paid out. Together with the Surplus brought forward of £18k, a reduction in Bad 
Debt Provision of £56k and an increase the in-year surplus of £213k gives a surplus of £286k which is carried 
forward. 

Note 9 Council Tax Collection Fund Balance 

The Collection Fund is a statutory fund in which the Council records transactions for Council Tax. The balance 
on the fund has to be taken into account by the major precepting authorities in determining their respective 
requirements to be raised through Council Tax in future financial years. The surplus on the Collection Fund is 
apportioned as follows: 

Amounts 
accounted for 

in 2024/25 

£'000 

Amounts to 
account for 
in 2025/26 

£'000 

Total 

£'000 

Leicestershire County Council 
Leicestershire Police and 
Crime Commissioner 

Charnwood Borough Council 

Combined Fire Authority 

52 

9 

8 

3 

155 

27 

24 

8 

207 

36 

32 

11 

Total Net Surplus 72 214 286 
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Note 10 Council Tax Accounting for the Collection Fund Balance 

On the basis that surpluses and deficits on the Collection Fund are shared with Leicestershire County Council, 
Leicestershire Police and Crime Commissioner, Leicestershire Combined Fire Authority and the Borough 
Council pro-rata to the precepts levied, the Council accounted for the Collection Fund Balance in the 2023/24 
accounts as follows: 

In the Balance Sheet at 31st March 2024, the Council included an overall surplus of £286k (£18k surplus at 31st 

March 2023) of which £254k relates to Preceptors Share of surplus (£16k at 31st March 2023 Preceptors share 
of Surplus) in the proportions shown below and the balance of £32k (£2k at 31st March 2023) related to 
Charnwood Borough Council’s share of the Collection Fund Surplus. 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

(2) 

(13) 

(2) 

(1) 

Charnwood Borough Council 

Leicestershire County Council 

Leicestershire Police and Crime Commissioner 

Leicestershire Combined Fire Authority 

32 

207 

36 

11 

(18) Deficit/(Surplus) – Balance as at 31st March 286 

Note 11 Business Rates (Surplus)/Deficit on the Collection Fund 

Shares of non-domestic rating income to major preceptors and billing authorities are paid out of the collection 
fund and credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements of precepting and billing 
authorities. However the transactions presented in the collection fund statement are limited to the cash flows 
permitted by statute for the financial year, whereas each authority will recognise income on a full accruals basis, 
i.e. sharing out in full the (surplus) or deficit on the Collection Fund at the end of the year, even though it will be 
distributed to or recovered by the authorities in subsequent financial years. 

2022/23 

£’000 

2023/24 

£’000 

(1,032) 

(232) 

(26) 

(1,291) 

Charnwood Borough Council 

Leicestershire County Council 

Leicestershire Combined Fire Authority 

Central Government 

215 

48 

5 

269 

(2,581) Deficit/(Surplus) - Balance as at 31st March 537 
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Glossary of Terms 

Accounting Period - The period of time covered by the accounts is normally 12 months commencing on 1st 
April for local authorities. 
Accruals - Sums included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to the accounting 
period but for which payment has not been made/received at the balance sheet date. 
Capital Charges - Charges made to service revenue accounts based on the value of the assets they use and 
comprising depreciation. 
Capital Expenditure - Expenditure on new assets such as land and buildings, or on enhancements to existing 
assets which significantly prolong their useful life or increase their value. 
Capital Financing Costs - The annual cost of borrowing (principal repayments and interest charges), leasing 
charges and other costs of funding capital expenditure. 
Capital Receipt - Income from the sale of capital assets such as council houses, land or other buildings. 
Creditors - Amounts owed by the Council at 31st March for goods received or services rendered but not yet 
paid for. 
Current Assets - Assets which can be expected to be consumed or realised during the next accounting period. 
Current Liabilities - Amounts which will become due or could be called upon during the next accounting period. 
Debtors - Amounts owed to the Council, which are collectable or outstanding at 31st March. 
Depreciation - The estimated losses in value of an asset, owing to age, wear and tear, deterioration, or 
obsolescence. 
Fair Value - The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
Finance Lease – These are lease payments to acquire an asset, these are classified as assets on the Balance 
Sheet. 
Government Grants - Payments by central government towards local Council expenditure. They may be 
specific or general. 
Net Non-Controllable Costs – are those amounts charged to the CIES as required by Statute and reversed 
out as part of the Movement in Reserves Statement so that they are not charged to the taxpayer. These are 
items such as Depreciation, Revaluation of Fixed Assets, Pension valuation costs, Accumulated absences. 
Non-Current Asset - Assets which can be expected to be of use or benefit to the Council in providing its 
services for more than one accounting period. 
Operating Lease - A lease under which the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor; for practical 
purposes it is equivalent to contract hiring. 
Precepts - The amount which local authorities cannot charge a council tax directly to the public (for example a 
County Council) and requires Charnwood Borough Council to collect on its behalf. 
Reserves - Amounts set aside in the accounts for the purpose of meeting particular future expenditure. A 
distinction is drawn between reserves and provisions, which are set up to meet known liabilities. 
Revenue Expenditure - Spending on day-to-day items including employees’ pay, premises costs and supplies 
and services. 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) - Expenditure of a capital nature but 
for which there is no tangible asset, for example renovation grants. 
Revenue Support Grant - The main grant paid by central government to a local Council towards the costs of 
its services. 

Abbreviations used in the accounts: 

CIPFA - Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy 

EUV-SH – Existing Use Value for Social Housing 

EZ – Enterprise Zone HRA - Housing Revenue Account 

PWLB – Public Works Loan Board MRA - Major Repairs Allowance 

IFRS – International Financial Reporting 
Standard 

NNDR - National Non-domestic Rates 

PSM – Price Sensitivity Measurement CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 

DWP – Department of Works and Pensions BID – Business Improvement District 

MRP - Minimum Revenue Provision VAT – Value Added Tax 
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	1 
	NarrativeStatement 
	NarrativeStatement 
	1. 
	Context 

	Thefinancialyear2023/24continuedthetrendofrecentyearswithachallengingmacroeconomicbackgroundflavoured bytheongoingconflictinUkraine,newconflictintheMiddle-East,andpoliticaluncertaintywithintheUK.Inflationnow seemstobereducingbuttheeconomicpictureremainscharacterisedbyhighinterestratesandindividualexperiences ofrisingfood,utility,andmortgagecosts. Aslastyear,theeconomicbackgroundhadamixedeffectontheCouncil’s finances with rapidly rising costs offset by significantly higher investment income arising from the 
	TheGeneralFundbudgetfor2023/24assumeda£1.3museofreserves.Inpracticeacombinationofunbudgetedadhoc government grants,stronger income streams in some areas (such as planningfees)and higher levels ofinterest receivable resulted in the General Fund Working Balance decreasing by just £0.1m to £6.6m by the year end. The underlying structural issues with the Council’s budget – uncertain and declining real-term government funding, increasingcostsandpotentialregulatorychallenges–remain,butthelevelofreservesprovidesan
	-

	Operationally, the Council’s Landlord Services function continues to face challenges associated with the backlog of work arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, the availability of contractors, and significant cost inflation within the constructionindustry. However,theassociatedHousingRevenueAccountisinarobustpositionwithreservestotalling £20.4mtocoverfuturedebtrepaymentandcapitalinvestmentinthehousingstock. 
	The current financial standing of the Council continues to be robust, with reserves held at a sufficient level to meet foreseeable future challenges and reductions in Government funding for local authorities in the medium term. There aregood financial management and governance processes and procedures in placewhich arereviewedregularly by managementandtheinternalauditteam.Resourcesareallocatedaspartoftheannualbudgetsettingprocess,which considersservicepressuresandsavingsonadetailedbasis.Overall,theCouncil’s
	DetailsofsuchitemsareincludedinSection5,MajorItemsincludedintheaccounts2023/24. 
	SignificantitemswithintheFinancialStatements 

	FinancialStatements Thepurposeofthepublishedstatementofaccountsistogiveelectors,localtaxpayers,membersoftheCouncilandother interestedpartiesclearinformationabouttheCouncil’sfinancialperformanceandeconomy,efficiencyandeffectiveness in its use of resources over the financial year. The aim is to provide users with information that is fair, balanced and understandable.Aglossaryoftermsisincludedattheendofthedocument.Thestatementsshouldinformreadersof 
	 ThecostofservicesprovidedbytheCouncilintheyear2023/24. 
	 
	 
	 
	Howserviceswerepaidfor. 

	 
	 
	TheCouncil’sassetsandliabilitiesattheyear-endand 

	 
	 
	ThefinancialperformanceoftheCouncil. 


	ThefollowingCoreFinancialstatementsarealsoincluded:
	-

	 
	 
	 
	 
	The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement which shows all of the Council’s income and expenditure for the financial year. The top part of the statement shows a breakdown by service and the bottom part relates to transactions and funding at a corporate level, which links the statement to budget monitoring reports that are produced for management throughout the year and are subject to Member scrutiny. 

	 TheBalanceSheetwhichsetsouta‘snapshot’oftheoverallfinancialpositionoftheCouncilat31stMarch 2024showingitsassets,liabilitiesandreserves. 

	 
	 
	TheMovementinReservesStatement.Thisstatementshowsthemovementintheyearonthedifferent reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable reserves’ (i.e. those that arise out of interaction of legislationandproperaccountingpracticetostorerevaluationgainsorasanadjustment). 

	 
	 
	TheCashFlowStatementwhichsummarisesthemovementsofcashandcashequivalentsintoandoutof the Council arising from transactions with third parties. This also shows whether movements are due to operatingactivities,newinvestmentorfinancingactivities. 

	 
	 
	Notes to the Core Financial Statements which give an explanation of key figures within the statements andmoredetailontheCouncil’saccountingpoliciesandindividualtransactions. 
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	ThefollowingSupplementaryFinancialStatementsandsupportingnotesareincluded:
	-

	 
	 
	 
	Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – separately identifies income and expenditure in respect of the Council’sstatutorylandlordfunctionasaproviderofsocialhousing. 

	 
	 
	CollectionFundStatement-showsthetransactionsinrelationtothecollectionanddistributionofCouncil TaxandNationalNon-domesticRates(‘NNDR’). 



	2. PensionFundLiability 
	2. PensionFundLiability 
	CharnwoodBoroughCouncilparticipatesintheLocalGovernmentPensionSchemethroughwhichpensionprovisionis madeforthoseofitsemployeeswhowishtojointhescheme. UndertheCode,theCouncilmustincludeitsshareofthe netPensionFundLiabilityasat31stMarch2024andthisamountedtoa£778kdeficit. Thisisadecreaseintheliability of£8,278kat31stMarch2023. AlthoughthisliabilityappearsintheCouncil’sBalanceSheetitisoffsetbythePensions ReserveandisnotfundedfromCouncilTaxorGovernmentGrantsinthecurrentyear. However,itrepresentstheamount that wil

	3. BorrowingFacilitiesandFundingofCapitalExpenditure 
	3. BorrowingFacilitiesandFundingofCapitalExpenditure 
	TheCouncilhassufficientresources,throughboththeuseofreservesandrevenue,tofundGeneralFundandcapital expenditurewithoutneedingtoborrow. ItisexpectedthatthispositionmaychangeintheshorttermandiftheCouncil weretoborrowthenitwouldbeabletoobtainfundsfromthePublicWorksLoansBoard(PWLB),whichispartof CentralGovernment,withrelativelylowrates. ThereisoneoldoutstandingGeneralFundloanof£2mwhichduefor repaymentinJune2024. 
	TheHRAhasexternalloansof£79.19mwhicharosefromthechangeintheHousingSubsidysystemin2012. These areallwiththePWLBandarerepayablefrom2024to2062withfixedannualinterestrates. Theannualinterestis coveredbytheHRA’srentalincome.BoththeGeneralFundandHRAworkwithintreasuryparametersagreedeach yearbyCouncil. 
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	4. GeneralFundRevenueOutturnSummary2023/24 
	4. GeneralFundRevenueOutturnSummary2023/24 
	Restated Actual 2022/23 £000 
	Restated Actual 2022/23 £000 
	Restated Actual 2022/23 £000 
	GENERALFUNDOUTTURN 2023/24 
	Original Budget 2023/24 £000 
	Actual 2023/24 £000 
	Variance 2023/24 £000 

	18,829 85 1,302 0 280 (1,076) 
	18,829 85 1,302 0 280 (1,076) 
	NetServiceExpenditure RevenueContributiontoCapital EZLLEP Contribution NDRLCCPilotGain/NDRNetadditionalIncome InterestPaid Less:InterestonBalances TotalBoroughExpenditure Contributionto(from)ReinvestmentReserve Contributionto/(from)WorkingBalance Contributionto/(from)WorkingBalance(Collection Fund) Contributionto/(from)NNDRS30toOffsetFuture Deficit Contributionto/(from)CommercialisationReserve NNDRMiRS Movement Contributionto/(from)OtherRevenueReserves Contributionto/(from)CapitalPlanReserve PreceptRequirem
	20,986 0 0 0 230 (1,500) 
	20,677 116 0 0 353 (1,725) 
	309 (116) 0 0 (123) 225 

	19,420 5 77 122 0 200 0 (142) (35) 
	19,420 5 77 122 0 200 0 (142) (35) 
	19,716 500 (1,295) 0 0 324 0 0 0 
	19,421 (136) (136) 0 866 324 (1,091) 1,019 (84) 
	295 636 (1,159) 0 (866) 0 1091 (1,019) 84 

	19,647 
	19,647 
	19,245 
	20,183 
	(938) 

	6,603 174 7,981 1,346 122 1,631 1,322 0 468 
	6,603 174 7,981 1,346 122 1,631 1,322 0 468 
	6,400 329 8,314 1,367 0 373 167 2,295 0 
	6,947 329 8,314 1,367 0 373 174 2,289 390 
	(547) 0 0 0 0 0 (7) 6 (390) 

	19,647 
	19,647 
	19,245 
	20,183 
	(938) 

	TR
	RevenueReservesBalances 

	6,568 199 0 
	6,568 199 0 
	WorkingBalance1stApril TransferfromGeneralFund TransfertoReinvestmentReserve Balanceat31March ReinvestmentReserve1stApril ReinvestmentExpenditure TransfersFrom/(to)GeneralFund Balanceat31March CapitalPlanReserve1stApril FundingofCapitalExpenditure Balanceat31March NDRDeficitReserve1stApril FundingofNDRCovidDeficit Balanceat31March BusinessRatesPoolReserve1stApril TransfersFrom/(to)GeneralFund Balanceat31March OtherRevenueReserves1stApril TransferredFrom/(to)GeneralFund Balanceat31March 
	6,211 (1,295) (500) 
	6,767 (136) 0 
	(556) (1,159) (500) 

	6,767 
	6,767 
	4,416 
	6,631 
	(2,215) 

	495 (628) 633 
	495 (628) 633 
	328 (328) 500 
	500 (317) 181 
	(172) (11) 319 

	500 
	500 
	500 
	364 
	136 

	1,909 (35) 
	1,909 (35) 
	1,695 0 
	1,874 (84) 
	(179) 84 

	1,874 
	1,874 
	1,695 
	1,790 
	(95) 

	3,050 (1,574) 
	3,050 (1,574) 
	3 (3) 
	1,477 866 
	(1,474) (869) 

	1,476 
	1,476 
	0 
	2,343 
	(2,343) 

	0 0 
	0 0 
	0 0 
	0 2,050 
	0 (2,050) 

	0 
	0 
	0 
	2,050 
	(2,050) 

	3,343 59 
	3,343 59 
	3,343 324 
	3,402 1,355 
	(59) (1,031) 

	3,402 
	3,402 
	3,667 
	4,757 
	(1,090) 

	14,019 
	14,019 
	TOTAL BALANCES 
	10,278 
	17,935 
	(7,657) 


	4 
	ThemainpurposeoftheGeneralFundRevenueOutturnSummaryshownaboveistocomparetheGeneralFundactual figurestotheOriginalBudgetsetfor2023/24.ThisprovidesasummarisedpositionoftheCouncil’sbalancesheld. Please notethatthetabledoesnotformpartoftheformalStatementofAccounts. 
	TheCouncil’sGeneralFund,netoutturnpositionwasadeficitbalanceof£136ktoreducetheworkingbalance,compared toanOriginaldeficitbudgetsetat£1,295k,afavourablevarianceof£1,159k.The£136kdeficitdeductedfromtheworking balancetogiveaworkingbalancereserveof£6.6mat31March2024.OveralltheGeneralFundreserves includingEarmarkedReserveswhichareheldforspecificpurposetotalbalanceof£17.9m.FurtherdetailsoftheOutturn Cabinetreportfor2023/24canbefoundontheCouncilswebsite. 
	st 


	5. MajorItemsinthe2023/24StatementofAccounts 
	5. MajorItemsinthe2023/24StatementofAccounts 
	There are no major changes to the way the accounts have been compiled in 2023/24. The General Fund net controllable service expenditure is £20.6m in 2023/24 compared to £18.8m in 2022/23 an increase of £1.8m, 9.6%,themajordifferencesintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatementbeing:
	-

	TheGeneralFundGrossExpenditureis£4.8mhigherin2023/24than2022/23,dueto 
	       
	Additionalemployeerelatedcosts£1.2m 
	Additionalbuildingrelatedcostsincludingutilities£0.3m 
	Increasedsuppliesandservicescostsof£0.3m 
	Inflationpressuresoncontracts£1.2m 
	Additionalgrantsreceived£0.6m 
	AdditionalSection106contributionsof£0.3m 
	Additionalincomereceivedfromservices£0.6m 

	 
	 
	 
	TheHRAnetcostofserviceis £1,089k lowerin2023/24than2022/23,Gross expenditurehas increased by£2,306k.Thisprimarilyincludesincreasesof£496konSupervisionandManagement,£606konRepairs and Maintenance, £152k on council tax on empty homes, and £636k increase in Depreciation and impairmentofnon-currentassets.Grossincomehasincreasedby£1,280kprimarilyduetoarentincrease of 7.1%, however there are higher void rentals of 7.4% in 2023/24 compared with 6.45% in 2022/2/3 by £342khavereducedtheadditionalgrossincomelevied. 

	 
	 
	 
	The Council holds two Property Funds being valued at 31 March 2024 of £3.934m, (£4.35m in 2022/23). Lothbury Property Trust £1.817m, (£2.067m in 2022/23) and Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust £2.117m (£2.287m in 2022/23).Theseareaccountedforas along-term investmentonthe BalanceSheet as a Financial Instrument Reserve and the revaluation loss £0.421m, (£1.043m loss in 2022/23) on the propertyfundshasbeenaccountedforunderfinancingandInvestmentIncomeintheComprehensiveIncome andExpenditureStatement. 

	 InterestReceivedhashadamajorfavourableimpactforbothGeneralFundandHRAof£3.1m,thisbeing anincreaseintheinterestratesandtheimpactonTreasuryManagementInvestmentsfor2023/24. 

	 
	 
	Net gains on Revaluation of Fixed Assets were £0.725m in 2023/2 compared to £30.157m in 2022/23, a reductionof£29.432.TherewasadesktoprevaluationofassetsheldbytheCouncilat31March2023with anincreaseprimarilyduetoanincreaseinvaluationofHRAHousingStockandotherLandandBuildings. 
	st 



	 ThePensionLiabilitiesontheBalanceSheethasdecreasedfrom£9mto£0.8m,primarilyduetoanactuarial gaininthepensionfundof£10m. 
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	6. CapitalExpenditure 
	6. CapitalExpenditure 
	The Council’s Capital spend for 2023/24 totalled £11,978k compared against the budget of £30,734k, an underspendof£18,756k,withcarryforwardbudgetsof£16,202into2024/25. 
	Actual 2022/23 £'000 
	Actual 2022/23 £'000 
	Actual 2022/23 £'000 
	Actual 2023/24 £'000 
	% 

	7,794 3,764 85 1,187 226 2,532 
	7,794 3,764 85 1,187 226 2,532 
	CapitalExpenditure Financedby:-MajorRepairsReserve RevenueContributions-GeneralFund CapitalReceipts–GeneralFund CapitalReceipts–HRA CapitalGrantsandContributions–GeneralFund 
	11,978 6,474 116 1,980 113 3,295 
	100 54 1 17 1 27 

	7,794 
	7,794 
	11,978 
	100 



	7. Provisions 
	7. Provisions 
	31st using the samebasis of 2022/23andCouncilTax Provision forbad debt31March2024 is £1,244k (£1,240k at31March2023),anincreaseof£4k. 
	st 
	st 

	TheNDRProvisionforbaddebtasat March2024is£1,159k(£1,543kat31March2023),adecrease of£384k 
	st 


	8. TheCouncil’sFinances 
	8. TheCouncil’sFinances 
	TheCouncil’sbudgetfor2023/24wasapprovedwithplanneduseofworkingbalancereservesof£1,297k. TheMedium TermFinancialOutlook(MTFO)for2024/25estimatesauseofreservesof£595kdependingonGovernmentFunding streamsandthiscanbecoveredfromtheCouncil’sreserves. Efficiencieswillberefreshedtoensurelongtermfinancial sustainabilityaspartofthenextbudgetsettingprocessandarevisedMTFOtakentoCabinetatthesametimeasthe budget.Atthetimeofwriting,theintentionsofthenewgovernmentregardingthefairerfundingreviewoflocalauthority are not clea
	9. Non-FinancialPerformance 
	The Council’s objectives areset out in the Corporate Plan andthis is reviewed through Cabinet and widerconsultation withlocalpartnersandthecommunity.Theachievementoftheplanismonitoredthroughperformancemanagementand reviewprocessescarriedoutbyCabinetandScrutinyCommitteesaswellasofficers.TheCorporatePlanandassociated quarterlyperformancemonitorsandannualperformancereportareavailablethroughtheCouncil’swebsite. 
	Arigorousandrobustannualservicedeliveryandteamplanningprocessisinplacethatincludesconsultationwithservice users,whichensuresthatresourcesandbudgetsarealignedtothecorporateobjectivessetoutintheCorporatePlan,as wellasprovidingforacontrolledandobjectivemeansofidentifyingefficiencysavingsandopportunitiesforinvestmentto improveservicedelivery. 
	6 
	10. OutlookandRisk 
	PreviousparagraphshaveoutlinedthenegativeeconomicconditionswhichtheCouncilislikelytofaceinthenearfuture, inparticular,thosecreatedby,theeconomicimpactsofBrexit,WarinUkraineandtheMiddle-East,globalinflationissues andthecost-of-livingcrisis.AnotherfactoristheelectionofanewLabourgovernmentintheSummerof2024,althoughit is too early to assess the precise impact of this event. These factors will impact government finances and resource allocation decisions (and hence the ability to fund public services), which in t
	This outlook combined with the MTFO structural budget deficit gives rise to further financial challenges with which the Council are already fully engaged in addressing and will be reviewed again as part of the budget setting process for 2025/26andarevisedMTFOfor2025–2028oncewehavenotificationofthegovernmentsettlementintheautumnof 2024. 
	Underpinningtheseplansareongoinginitiativestargetedatincreasingefficiencies,developingcommercialopportunities andlookingtoleverageexistingassetandtreasuryresources. 
	As noted above, the Council has adequate levels ofreserves for the next three years (and there is confidence that the Councilcancontinuetoprovideservicesinafinanciallysustainableway). 
	Intermsofmanagingrisk,ariskmanagementframeworkhasbeenestablishedunderwhichstrategicrisksmaycausethe Council to be unable to operate or provide key services leading to asignificant adverse effect on public wellbeing are identifiedonanannualbasis,areapprovedasreasonableandcompletebyCabinet,andaresubsequentlymonitoredon a quarterly basis by senior managers and by the Audit Committee. Lower level corporate and operational risks are identified by the annual service delivery planning process and are monitored on 
	AllCabinetreportsrecommendingdecisionsincludedetailsofanyrelevantfinancialandlegalimplicationsandcontaina riskmanagementsectionwhichsetsoutanyidentifiedriskstogetherwiththeirlikelihoodandimpact,andactionsplanned tomanagetherisks. 
	11. StatementofAuthorisation 
	The Statement of Accounts were authorised for presentation on 23July 2024 by Simon Jackson, Director Finance, Governance and Contracts and S.151 Officer. All financial events up to and including 23July 2024, have been consideredintheseaccounts. 
	rd 
	rd 

	12. PreparationofAccounts 
	Iwouldliketothankallstaffwhohavebeeninvolvedinthepreparationoftheseaccounts. 
	13. FurtherInformation 
	13. FurtherInformation 
	Furtherinformationregardingtheaccountsmaybeobtainedfrom: 
	TheHeadofFinance CharnwoodBoroughCouncil, SouthfieldRoad, Loughborough, LE112TU. 
	Membersofthepublichaveastatutoryrighttoinspecttheaccountsondepositforauditpurposesandtheavailabilityof the accounts for inspection is advertised on the Council’s web site at and on public notices displayedintheCouncilOffices. 
	www.charnwood.gov.uk 
	www.charnwood.gov.uk 
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	StatementofResponsibilitiesfortheStatementofAccounts 
	StatementofResponsibilitiesfortheStatementofAccounts 
	TheCouncil’sResponsibilities 
	TheCouncilisrequiredto: 
	 
	 
	 
	Makearrangementsfortheproperadministrationofitsfinancialaffairsandtosecurethatoneofitsofficers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that officer is the Director of Finance,GovernanceandContracts(DeputyChiefExecutiveands151Officer). 

	 
	 
	Manageitsaffairstosecureeconomic,efficientandeffectiveuseofresourcesandsafeguarditsassets. 

	 
	 
	ApprovetheStatementofAccounts. 



	ChiefFinancialOfficer’sResponsibilities 
	ChiefFinancialOfficer’sResponsibilities 
	TheChiefFinancialOfficerisresponsibleforthepreparationoftheCouncil’sStatementofAccounts,inaccordancewith properpracticesassetoutintheCIPFACodeofPracticeonLocalAuthorityAccountingintheUnitedKingdom(theCode). 
	Inpreparingthisstatementofaccounts,theChiefFinancialOfficerhas: 
	 
	 
	 
	Selectedsuitableaccountingpoliciesandthenappliedthemconsistently. 

	 
	 
	Madejudgementsandestimatesthatwerereasonableandprudent. 

	 
	 
	CompliedwiththeCode. 

	 
	 
	Keptproperaccountingrecordswhichwereuptodate. 

	 
	 
	Takenreasonablestepsforthepreventionanddetectionoffraudandotherirregularities. 

	 
	 
	AssessedtheAuthority’sabilitytocontinueasagoingconcern,disclosing,asapplicable,mattersrelatedto goingconcern; 

	 
	 
	UsedthegoingconcernbasisofaccountingontheassumptionthatthefunctionsoftheAuthoritywillcontinue inoperationalexistencefortheforeseeablefuture;and 

	 
	 
	Maintained such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statementsthatarefreefrommaterialmisstatement,whetherduetofraudorerror. 


	IcertifythattheStatementofAccountsgivesatrueandfairviewofthefinancialpositionoftheCouncilatthe reportingdateandofitsexpenditureandincomefortheyearended31stMarch2024. 
	CertifiedbytheS151Officer: 
	SIMONJACKSON 
	DirectorofFinance,GovernanceandContracts(DeputyChiefExecutiveands151Officer) 
	DirectorofFinance,GovernanceandContracts(DeputyChiefExecutiveands151Officer) 
	Date31July2024 
	ST 

	In accordance with section 9of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 No 234, the Statement of Accounts shall be signedanddatedbytheChairmanoftheAuditcommitteewhopresidedatthemeetingatwhichapprovalwasgiven. 

	CertifiedbyChairofAuditCommittee 
	CertifiedbyChairofAuditCommittee 
	JANENELLIST ChairofAuditCommittee 
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	ComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement 
	ComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement 
	Thisstatementshowstheaccountingcostintheyearofprovidingservicesinaccordancewithgenerallyacceptedaccounting practices,ratherthantheamounttobefundedfromtaxationandrents.Authoritiesraisetaxationandrentstocoverexpenditurein accordancewithstatutoryrequirements;thismaybedifferentfromtheaccountingcost.Thetaxationpositionisshowninthe ExpenditureandFundingAnalysisandtheMovementinReservesStatement. 
	Gross Controllable Expenditure 2022/23 £'000 
	Gross Controllable Expenditure 2022/23 £'000 
	Gross Controllable Expenditure 2022/23 £'000 
	Gross Controllable Income 2022/23 £'000 
	Net Controllable Costs 2022/23 £'000 
	Gross Controllable Expenditure 2023/24 £'000 
	Gross Controllable Income 2023/24 £'000 
	Net Controllable Costs 2023/24 £'000 

	287 665 
	287 665 
	0 (76) 
	287 589 
	ChiefExecutivesTeam HeadofTransformationandStrategy 
	273 1,090 
	0 0 
	273 1,090 

	952 
	952 
	(76) 
	876 
	ChiefExecutive 
	1,363 
	0 
	1,363 

	2,035 870 99 53 
	2,035 870 99 53 
	(1,174) (209) 0 0 
	861 661 99 53 
	HeadofStrategicHousing HousingandWellbeing DirectorofHousingandWellbeing HeadofNeighbourhoodServices 
	1,882 1,028 11 0 
	(1,038) (173) (239) 0 
	845 856 (228) 0 

	3,057 
	3,057 
	(1,383) 
	1,674 
	HousingandWellbeing 
	2,921 
	(1,450) 
	1,471 

	265 1,466 1,026 77 
	265 1,466 1,026 77 
	(1,566) (1,250) (613) 0 
	(1,302) 216 414 77 
	DirectorofCommercialandEconomic Development HeadofAssetsandPropertyServices HeadofEconomicDevelopmentand Regeneration HeadofLeisureandCulture 
	280 1,567 1,186 0 
	(1,636) (1,304) (1,157) 0 
	(1,356) 263 29 0 

	2,834 
	2,834 
	(3,429) 
	(595) 
	CommercialandEconomicDevelopment 
	3,033 
	(4,097) 
	(1,064) 

	10,698 126 2,100 0 0 1,498 
	10,698 126 2,100 0 0 1,498 
	(4,373) 0 (227) 0 0 (10) 
	6,325 126 1,873 0 0 1,488 
	HeadofContracts,Leisure,Wasteand Environment DirectorofFinance,Governanceand Contracts HeadofGovernance HeadofDemocracyandMonitoringOfficer HeadofLegalandElectoralServices HeadofFinance 
	12,193 139 68 873 1,254 2,333 
	(5,268) 0 0 (5) (320) (33) 
	6,925 139 68 868 934 2,300 

	14,422 
	14,422 
	(4,610) 
	9,812 
	Finance,GovernanceandContracts 
	16,860 
	(5,626) 
	11,234 

	100 28,460 3,274 3,666 
	100 28,460 3,274 3,666 
	0 (22,936) (1,513) (2,119) 
	100 5,524 1,761 1,547 
	DirectorofCustomerExperience CustomerExperience HeadofRegulatoryandCommunitySafety HeadofPlanningandGrowth 
	113 29,798 3,470 3,974 
	0 (23,429) (1,586) (2,268) 
	113 6,369 1,884 1,706 

	35,500 
	35,500 
	(26,568) 
	8,932 
	CustomerExperience 
	37,355 
	(27,283) 
	10,071 

	56,764 
	56,764 
	(36,065) 
	20,699 
	TotalGeneralFund 
	61,532 
	(38,456) 
	23,076 

	12,022 
	12,022 
	(22,414) 
	(10,392) 
	HousingRevenueAccount 
	15,189 
	(23,694) 
	(8,505) 

	68,786 
	68,786 
	(58,479) 
	10,307 
	CostofService 
	76,721 
	(62,150) 
	14,571 

	TR
	8,041 
	NetRecharges,REFCUS&Capitalcharges 
	5,991 

	TR
	4,250 0 (1,304) 
	ParishPrecepts ContributiontoHousingPooledCapitalReceipts (Gains)/LossonDisposalFixedAssets OtherOperatingExpenditure InterestPayableandsimilarcharges PensionsInterestCostsandReturnsonAssets InterestandInvestmentIncome BusinessRatesPoolIncrease/Decrease InvestmentPropertiesChangeinFairValue (Gains)/LossesFinancialinstrumentsRevaluationPropertyFunds FinancingandInvestmentIncomeandExpenditure GeneralGovernmentGrant CapitalGrantsandContributions NonDomesticRatesDistribution CouncilTaxIncome CollectionFund Taxa
	4,566 0 (117) 

	2,946 
	2,946 
	4,449 

	3,017 1,647 (1,576) 0 (93) 1,043 
	3,017 1,647 (1,576) 0 (93) 1,043 
	3,120 390 (3,384) (2,050) (237) 421 

	4,038 
	4,038 
	1,740 

	(3,674) (1,154) (6,669) (13,577) (25) 
	(3,674) (1,154) (6,669) (13,577) (25) 
	(3,413) (2,028) (7,089) (14,247) (30) 

	(25,099) 
	(25,099) 
	(26,807) 

	233 
	233 
	(3,536) 

	(30,157) (54,626) 
	(30,157) (54,626) 
	(725) (6,990) 

	(84,783) 
	(84,783) 
	(7,715) 

	(84,550) 
	(84,550) 
	(11,251) 
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	BalanceSheetasat31stMarch2024 
	BalanceSheetasat31stMarch2024 
	TheBalanceSheetshowsthevalueasattheBalanceSheetdateoftheassetsandliabilitiesrecognisedbytheCouncil. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reportedintwocategories.Thefirstcategoryofreservesareusablereserves,i.e.thosereservesthattheCouncilmay usetoprovideservices,subjecttotheneedtomaintainaprudentlevelofreservesandanystatutorylimitationsontheir use(forexampletheCapitalReceipts Reservethatmay only beusedtofundcapitalexpenditureorre
	Restated31st March2023 £'000 
	Restated31st March2023 £'000 
	Restated31st March2023 £'000 
	Note 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	362,191 61,184 4,590 23 4,141 0 33 
	362,191 61,184 4,590 23 4,141 0 33 
	CouncilDwellings OtherLand& Buildings Vehicles,Plant& Equipment InfrastructureAssets CommunityAssets AssetsUnderConstruction SurplusAssetsNotHeldforSale Property,PlantandEquipmentTotal HeritageAssets InvestmentProperty LongTermInvestments IntangibleAssets LongTermDebtors Non-CurrentAssets(Sub-total) 
	10 10 10 10 10 10 10/11 13 11 14 12 15 14 
	364,375 59,902 4,510 22 4,309 0 103 
	433,221 279 25,968 3,935 259 5,262 

	432,162 279 25,731 4,356 201 1,274 
	432,162 279 25,731 4,356 201 1,274 

	464,003 
	464,003 
	468,924 

	20,000 
	20,000 
	Short-TermInvestments 
	19,000 

	81 
	81 
	Inventories 
	57 

	TR
	15 

	17,115 
	17,115 
	Short-TermDebtors 
	19,428 

	(3,919) 
	(3,919) 
	BadDebtImpairments 
	15 
	(5,033) 

	24,344 
	24,344 
	CashandCashEquivalents CurrentAssets(Sub-Total) 
	16 16 
	23,411 

	57,621 
	57,621 
	56,863 

	(1,287) 
	(1,287) 
	BankOverdraft 
	(1,291) 

	TR
	14 

	0 
	0 
	Short-termBorrowing,under12months 
	(4,000) 

	TR
	18 

	(23,678) 
	(23,678) 
	Short-TermCreditors 
	(19,888) 

	TR
	19 

	(919) 
	(919) 
	Provisions CurrentLiabilities(Sub-Total) Long-TermCreditors 
	18 
	(1,482) 

	(25,884) 
	(25,884) 
	(26,661) 

	(3,508) 
	(3,508) 
	(3,782) 

	(82,538) 
	(82,538) 
	Long-TermBorrowing,over12Months 
	14 
	(82,538) 

	(9,052) 
	(9,052) 
	DefinedBenefitPensionSchemeAsset/(Liability) 
	33 
	(778) 

	(5,801) 
	(5,801) 
	CapitalGrantsReceiptsinAdvance LongtermLiabilitiesTotal NetAssetsTotal 
	28 
	(5,936) 

	(100,899) 
	(100,899) 
	(93,034) 

	394,840 
	394,840 
	406,092 
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	BalanceSheetasat31stMarch2024 
	BalanceSheetasat31stMarch2024 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	Note 
	31stMarch 2024 £’000 
	31stMarch 2024 £’000 

	(13,385) (4,475) (6,752) (500) (2,143) (6,766) (603) (16,793) 
	(13,385) (4,475) (6,752) (500) (2,143) (6,766) (603) (16,793) 
	CapitalReceiptsReserve HRAMajorRepairsReserve RevenueReserves ReinvestmentReserve CapitalGrantsUnapplied GeneralFundBalance HRAFundBalance HRAFinancingFund UsableReservesTotal 
	20 7 7 7 20 7 21 
	(12,813) (2,312) (10,939) (364) (2,760) (6,631) (607) (17,524) 

	(51,417) 
	(51,417) 
	(53,950) 

	(1,143) 
	(1,143) 
	CollectionFundAdjustmentAccount 
	(83) 

	TR
	21 

	(264,199) 
	(264,199) 
	CapitalAdjustmentAccount 
	(265,803) 

	TR
	21 

	442 
	442 
	FinancialInstrumentsRevaluationReserve 
	863 

	TR
	21 

	9,052 
	9,052 
	PensionReserve(Surplus)/Deficit 
	778 

	TR
	21 

	(88,144) 
	(88,144) 
	RevaluationReserve 
	(88,495) 

	TR
	21 

	569 
	569 
	AccumulatedAbsencesAccount UnusableReservesTotal TotalReserves 
	598 

	(343,423) 
	(343,423) 
	(352,142) 

	(394,840) 
	(394,840) 
	(406,092) 
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	MovementinReservesStatement 
	MovementinReservesStatement 
	This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’(i.e.,thosethatcanbeappliedtofundexpenditureorreducelocaltaxation)andotherreserves.The(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutoryamountsrequiredtobechargedtotheGeneralFundBalanceandtheH
	MovementinReservesStatement2023/24 GeneralFundBalanceEarmarkedGeneralFundReservesHousingRevenueAccountEarmarkedHousingRevenueAccountReservesCapitalReceiptsReserveCapitalGrantsUnappliedTotalUsableReservesUnusableReservesTotalAuthorityReserves £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 OpeningBalanceatthebeginningoftheperiod (6,767) (7,253) (603) (21,267) (13,385) (2,143) (51,418) (343,423) (394,840) (Surplus)/Deficit on provision of Services (accounting basis) -from STRGL spreadsheet (2,085) 0 (1,
	12 
	MovementinReservesStatement2022/23 GeneralFundBalanceEarmarkedGeneralFundReservesHousingRevenueAccountEarmarkedHousingRevenueAccountReservesCapitalReceiptsReserveCapitalGrantsUnappliedTotalUsableReservesUnusableReservesTotalAuthorityReserves £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 OpeningBalance atthe beginning ofthe period (6,567) (8,798) (606) (18,823) (10,382) (1,081) (46,258) (264,033) (310,290) (Surplus)/Deficit onprovisionofServices (accountingbasis) 2,046 0 (1,813) 0 0 0 233 0 233 Other
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	CashFlowStatement 
	CashFlowStatement 
	TheCashFlowStatementshowsthechangesincashandcashequivalentsoftheCouncilduringthereportingperiod. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extenttowhichthe operations ofthe Council arefunded by way oftaxation and grant incomeorfrom therecipientsofservicesprovidedbytheCouncil.Investingactivitiesrepresentthee
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	233 
	233 
	Net(Surplus)/Deficitontheprovisionofservices 
	(3,536) 

	(6,048) 
	(6,048) 
	Depreciation,Impairment,AmortisationofNon-currentAssets 
	(5,922) 

	(3,308) 
	(3,308) 
	NetChargesmadeforRetirementBenefitScheme 
	(1,284) 

	(47) 
	(47) 
	Increase/(Decrease)inInventories 
	(27) 

	4,057 
	4,057 
	Increase/(Decrease)inDebtors 
	(858) 

	16,726 
	16,726 
	(Increase)/DecreaseinCreditors CarryingAmountofnon-currentAssetsandnon-currentAssetsheldfor 
	(2,903) 

	(3,086) 
	(3,086) 
	sale,soldorderecognised Othernon-cashitemschargedtothenetSurplusorDeficitonProvision 
	1,452 

	(5,013) 
	(5,013) 
	ofServices 
	1,440 

	3,291 
	3,291 
	AdjustmentstonetSurplus/Deficitfornon-cashmovements 
	(4,561) 

	4,416 0 
	4,416 0 
	AdjustmentsforitemsthatareInvestingorFinancingActivities OtherCapitalReceiptsand(Gains)/LossonSalenon-currentAssets Otheritemsforwhichthecasheffectsareinvestingorfinancingcash flows SubTotalNetCashoutflows/(inflows)fromOperatingActivities NetCapitalActivities NetChangeinInvestments NetCashoutflows/(inflows)fromInvestingActivities(Note23) NetCashoutflows/(inflows)fromFinancingActivities(Note24) Net(Increase)/DecreaseinCashandCashEquivalents CashandCashEquivalentsatthebeginningoftheperiod CashandCashEquivalen
	569 3,170 

	7,940 
	7,940 
	(4,358) 

	(195) (5,690) 
	(195) (5,690) 
	10,368 (4,536) 

	(5,886) 
	(5,886) 
	5,832 

	7,612 
	7,612 
	(537) 

	9,667 
	9,667 
	937 

	32,723 23,057 
	32,723 23,057 
	23,057 22,120 

	9,667 
	9,667 
	937 
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	AccountingPolicies 
	AccountingPolicies 
	1. GeneralPrinciples 
	1. GeneralPrinciples 
	ThisStatementofAccountssummarisestheCouncil’stransactionsforthe2023/24financialyearanditspositionat31March2024yearend. TheCouncilisrequiredtoprepareanannualStatementofAccountsbytheAccountsandAudits Regulations 2015. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 (the Code) issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy(CIPFA). TheAccountingconventionadoptedintheStatementofAccountsisprincipallyhistorical
	st 


	2. AccrualsofIncomeandExpenditure 
	2. AccrualsofIncomeandExpenditure 
	Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In particular: 
	 
	 
	 
	RevenuefromthesaleofgoodsisrecognisedwhentheCounciltransfersthesignificantrisksandrewards of ownership to the purchaser, and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated withthetransactionwillflowtotheCouncil. 

	 
	 
	Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably the percentageofcompletionofthetransaction,anditisprobablethateconomicbenefitsorservicepotential associatedwiththetransactionwillflowtotheCouncil. 

	 
	 
	Suppliesarerecordedasexpenditurewhentheyareconsumed–wherethereisagapbetweenthedate suppliesarereceivedandtheirconsumption;theyarecarriedasinventoriesontheBalanceSheet. 

	 
	 
	Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as expenditurewhentheservicesarereceivedratherthanwhenpaymentsaremade. 

	 
	 
	Interestreceivableoninvestmentsandpayableonborrowingsisaccountedforrespectivelyasincomeand expenditurebased on the effective interest rate for therelevant financial instrumentrather thanthe cash flowsfixedordeterminedbythecontract. 


	TheCouncil’s revenueaccounts aremaintained onan accrual’s basis inaccordancewiththeCode. Thatthis relates tosumsduetoorfromtheCouncilduringtheyearareincludedwhetherornotthecashhasactuallybeenreceivedor paidintheyear. AnexceptiontothisprinciplerelatestorepaymentsofNNDRwhicharemadeonacashbasisinthe yearthattheCouncilisnotifiedofthenecessitytorefundand,althoughtheamountisoutsideoftheCouncil’scontrol, aprovisionhasbeenestablishedtocovertheCouncil’sshareofsuchpossiblerefunds. 
	DebtorsandCreditors 

	GeneralFundinterestfortheyearisaccruedandaccountedforintheaccountsintherelevantperiodtowhichitrelates. Interest is credited to the Housing Revenue Account based on an average rate of interest earned on the Council’s investmentsduringtheyear. 
	Interestonbalances 


	3. CashandCashEquivalents 
	3. CashandCashEquivalents 
	Cashisrepresentedbycashinhandanddepositswithfinancialinstitutionsrepayablewithoutpenaltyonnoticeofnot morethan24hours. CashEquivalentsareinvestmentsthatmatureinnomorethan3monthsfromtheBalanceSheet date andthat arereadily convertible to knownamounts ofcash with insignificant risk ofchange in value. In the cash flow,cashandcashequivalentsareshownnetofdebitamountswithbanksthatarerepayableondemandandforman integralpartoftheCouncil’scashmanagement. 

	4. ProvisionsandContingentLiabilities 
	4. ProvisionsandContingentLiabilities 
	Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation that probablyrequiressettlementbytransferofeconomicbenefitsandwhereareliableestimatecanbemadeoftheamount oftheobligation. 
	ProvisionsarechargedtotheappropriateservicerevenueaccountintheyearthattheCouncilbecomesawareofthe obligation and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation,consideringrelevantrisksanduncertainties. Whenpaymentsareeventuallymade,theyarechargedtothe provisioncarriedinthebalancesheet. Estimatedsettlementsarereviewedattheendofeachfinancialyear–whereit becomesmorelikelythannotthatatransferofeconomicbenefitswillnotnowberequired(oralowersettleme
	AcontingentliabilityariseswhereaneventhastakenplacethatgivestheCouncilapossibleobligationwhoseexistence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where aprovision would otherwise be made but either it is 
	15 
	notprobablethatanoutflowofresourceswillberequired,ortheamountoftheobligationcannotbemeasuredreliably. ContingentliabilitiesarenotrecognisedintheBalanceSheetbutdisclosedinanotetotheaccounts. 

	5. EmployeeBenefits 
	5. EmployeeBenefits 
	Benefits PayableDuringEmployment-Short-termemployeebenefits arethose duetobesettledwithin12months of the year end. They include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, and any bonuses for currentemployees andare recognised as an expense forservices in theyear in whichthe employees renderservice totheCouncil. Anaccrualismadeforthecostofholidayentitlements earnedbyemployeesbutnottakenbeforethe year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is mad

	6. RetirementBenefits 
	6. RetirementBenefits 
	MostemployeesoftheCouncilaremembersoftheLocalGovernmentPensionsScheme(the‘Scheme’),administered by Leicestershire County Council, which provides defined benefits to members, earned as employees work for the Council. 
	The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessmentof the future payments that willbe made in relation to retirement benefitsearnedtodatebyemployees,basedonassumptionsaboutmortalityrates,staffturnoveretc.andprojections ofprojectedearningsforcurrentstaff. Liabilitiesarediscountedtotheirvalueatcurrentprices,usingadiscountrateof 4.80%(4.75%2022/23)basedontheindicativerateofreturnonhighquality
	Thechangeinthenetpensionliabilityisanalysedintosevencomponents: 
	 
	 
	 
	Currentservicecost,whichistheincreaseinliabilitiesasaresultofyearsofserviceearnedthisyearandis allocatedintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatementtotherevenueaccountsofservicesfor therelevantemployees. 

	 
	 
	Past servicecost, thechange in the presentvalue of the defined benefitobligationforemployee service in priorperiods,resultingfromaplanamendment.ThesecostsarepartofNon-DistributedCosts. 

	 
	 
	Interestcost,whichistheexpectedincreaseinthepresentvalueofliabilitiesduringtheyearandisdebited toNetOperatingExpenditureintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement. 

	 
	 
	ExpectedreturnonassetsistheannualinvestmentreturnontheScheme’sfundbasedontheaverageofthe expected long-term return and is credited to the Net Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income andExpenditureStatement. 

	 
	 
	Gains/lossesonsettlementsandcurtailmentswhichresultfromactionstorelievetheCouncilofliabilitiesor eventsthatreducetheexpectedfutureserviceoraccrualofbenefitsofemployees. Thisisdebitedorcredited, asappropriate,totheNetCostofServicesaspartofNon-DistributedCosts. 

	 
	 
	Actuarialgains andlosses changetothenetpension liability andarise becauseevents havenotcoincided withassumptionsmadeatthelastactuarialvaluationorbecausethoseassumptionshavebeenupdatedand thesearedebitedtotheStatementofTotalRecognisedGainsandLosses. 

	 
	 
	ContributionspaidtotheSchemeastheemployer’scontributions. 


	Statutory provisions limit the Council to raising council tax to cover the amounts payable to the Scheme in the year. ThisresultsinappropriationstoandfromthePensionsReserveintheMovementinReservesStatementtoremovethe notionaldebitsandcreditsandreplacethemwithdebitsforcashpaidandpayabletotheSchemeintheyear. 

	7. PriorPeriodAdjustments,ChangesinAccountingPolicesandEstimatesandErrors 
	7. PriorPeriodAdjustments,ChangesinAccountingPolicesandEstimatesandErrors 
	Priorperiodadjustmentsmayariseasaresultofachangeinaccountingpoliciesortocorrectamaterialerror. Changes inaccountingestimatesareaccountedforprospectively,i.e.inthecurrentandfutureyearsaffectedbythechangeand donotgiverisetoapriorperiodadjustment. 
	Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively, unless stated otherwise,byadjustingopeningbalancesandcomparativeamountsforthepriorperiodasifthenewpolicyhasalways been applied. Should any material errors be discovered in prior per
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	8. FinancialInstruments 
	8. FinancialInstruments 
	FinancialLiabilities Financial Liabilities are initially measured at fair value and are carried in the Balance Sheet at their amortised cost, whichisbaseduponthenatureoftheliabilityconcerned.AnnualchargestotheFinancingandInvestmentIncomeand Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carryingvalueoftheliability,multipliedbytheeffectiverateofinterestfortheinstrument. Fortheborrowingsthatthe Council has, this means that the amount presented in t
	GainsorlossesarisingontherepurchaseorearlysettlementofborrowingsaredebitedtoNetOperatingExpenditure intheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatementintheyearofrepurchase/settlement. Where,however,the repurchaseofborrowinghastakenplaceaspartofarestructuringoftheloanportfoliothatinvolvesthemodificationor exchangeofexistinginstruments,thepremiumordiscountisrespectively deductedoraddedtotheamortisedcostof thenewormodifiedloanandthewrite-downtotheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatementisspreadover thelifeofthe
	FinancialAssets Financialassetsareclassifiedintotwotypes: 
	 
	 
	 
	Loansandreceivables–assetsthathavefixedordeterminablepaymentsbutarenotquotedinanactive market. 

	 
	 
	AvailableforSaleassets-assetsthathaveaquotedmarketpriceand/ordonothavefixedordeterminable payments. 


	Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisionsofafinancialinstrumentandareinitiallyvaluedatfairvalue,baseduponprevailingbenchmarkmarketrates fornewborrowing.TheyaresubsequentlymeasuredandcarriedontheBalanceSheetatamortisedcost. PWLBloan fairvalueestimatesarebaseduponnewborrowing(certaintyrate)discountrates.AnnualcreditstotheComprehensive IncomeandExpenditureStatementforinterestreceivablearebasedonthecarryingamountoftheassetmultipliedb
	Whereassetsareidentifiedasimpairedbecauseofalikelihoodarisingfromapasteventthatpaymentsdueunderthe contractwillnotbemade,theassetiswrittendownandachargemadetotheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditure Statement. Theimpairmentlossismeasuredasthedifferencebetweenthecarryingamountandthepresentvalueof therevisedfuturecashflowsdiscountedattheinvestment’soriginaleffectiveinterestrate. 
	Anygainsandlossesonde-recognitionofanassetarecreditedordebiteddirectlytotheComprehensiveIncomeand ExpenditureStatement. 
	AvailableforsaleassetsarerecognisedwhentheCouncilbecomesapartytothecontractualprovisionsofafinancial instrumentandareinitiallyvaluedatfairvalueintheBalanceSheet. Changesinfairvaluearebalancedbyanentryin theAvailableforSaleReserveandthegain/lossis recognisedinthesurplus ordeficitonRevaluationof Availablefor Sale Financial Assets. Any gains/losses on de-recognition are taken directly to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the 
	TheCouncilalsoholdsaverysmallamountofGovernmentstock. ThisistreatedasanAvailableforSaleassetunder theCode. However,theseareheldatcostintheBalanceSheetasthedifferencebetweenthisandtheirmarketvalue isimmaterialtotheCouncilasawhole. 
	Thenotestothefinancialstatements,showthisinformation,whererelevant,relatingtotheappropriateclassofassets andliabilities. 

	9. GovernmentGrantsandContributions 
	9. GovernmentGrantsandContributions 
	Whetherpaidonaccount,byinstalmentsorinarrears,governmentgrantsandthird-partycontributionsanddonations arerecognisedasduetotheCouncilwhenthereisreasonableassurancethat: 
	 
	 
	 
	theCouncilwillcomplywiththeconditionsattachedtothepayments,and 

	 
	 
	thegrantsorcontributionswillbereceived. 
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	AmountsrecognisedasduetotheCouncilarenotcreditedtotheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are requiredtobeconsumedbytherecipientasspecified,orfutureeconomicbenefitsorservicepotentialmustbereturned tothetransferor. 
	Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grantsandallcapitalgrants)intheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement. 
	WherecapitalgrantsarecreditedtotheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement,theyarereversedoutof the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capitalexpenditure,itispostedtotheCapitalGrantsUnappliedReserve. Whereithasbeenapplied,itispostedtothe CapitalAdjustmentAccount. AmountsintheCapitalGrantsUnappliedreservearetransferredtotheCapitalAdjustment Accountoncetheyhavebeenappliedtofundcapitalexpenditure. 

	10.IntangibleAssets 
	10.IntangibleAssets 
	Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Council (e.g. softwarelicences)iscapitalisedwhenitwillbringbenefitstotheCouncilformorethanonefinancialyear. Thebalance is amortised to the relevant revenue account over the economic life of the investment to reflect the pattern of consumptionofbenefits. 

	11.HeritageAssets 
	11.HeritageAssets 
	The Council owns heritage assets such as civic regalia, statues, paintings and sculptures. Those valued at £10k or moreareincludedontheBalanceSheetasHeritageAssets. TheactualassetsaresituatedinCouncilpremises,parks andsquares inLoughborough. HeritageAssetsarerecognisedandmeasured(includingthetreatmentofrevaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of the measurementrulesarerelaxedinrelationtoHeritageAssetsinthatheritageitemsarereportedintheBala

	12.Inventories 
	12.Inventories 
	InventoriesareincludedintheBalanceSheetatthelatestpurchaseprice. 

	13.InvestmentProperty 
	13.InvestmentProperty 
	Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation. The definition is not metifthepropertyisusedinanywaytofacilitatethedeliveryofservicesorproductionofgoodsorisheldforsale. 
	Investmentpropertiesaremeasuredinitiallyatcostandsubsequently atfairvalue,basedontheamountatwhichthe assetcouldbeexchangedbetweenknowledgeablepartiesatarm’slength. Propertiesarenotdepreciated. Gainsand lossesonrevaluationanddisposalarepostedtotheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement. 
	Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.Revaluationanddisposalgainsandlossesarenotpermittedbystatutoryarrangementstohaveanimpact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than£10k)theCapitalReceiptsReserve. 

	14.Leases 
	14.Leases 
	Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidentaltoownershipoftheproperty,plantorequipmentfromthelessortothelessee. Nofinanceleaseshavebeen identifiedandcurrentlyalltheCouncil’sleasesareclassifiedasoperatingleases. 
	Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expenseoftheservicebenefittingfromtheuseoftheleasedproperty,plantorequipment. 

	15.ChargestoRevenueforNon-CurrentAssets 
	15.ChargestoRevenueforNon-CurrentAssets 
	Servicerevenueaccounts,includingsupportservices andtradingaccounts,aredebitedwiththefollowingamountsto recordtherealcostofholdingnon-currentassetsduringtheyear: 
	 
	 
	 
	depreciationattributabletotheassetsusedbytherelevantservice, 

	 
	 
	revaluationandimpairment losses,ifrelevant,onnon-currentassets usedby the service,ifthereare no accumulatedgainsintheRevaluationReserveagainstwhichtheycanbewrittenoff, 

	 
	 
	Amortisationofintangiblenon-currentassetsattributabletotheservice. 


	18 
	TheCouncilisnotrequiredtoraisecounciltaxtocoverdepreciation,impairment,oramortisationandthereforethese arereversedintheMovementinReservesStatementontheGeneralFundBalance. 

	16.Overheads 
	16.Overheads 
	Thecostsofoverheadsandsupportservicesarechargedtothosethatbenefitfromthesupplyorserviceinaccordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2023/24. The total absorption costing principleisused-thefullcostofoverheadsandsupportservicesaresharedbetweenusersinproportiontothebenefits received,withtheexceptionof: 
	 
	 
	 
	Corporate and Democratic Core -costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-functional, democratic organisation. 

	 
	 
	Non-Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and any depreciationandimpairmentlosseschargeableonnon-operationalproperties. 



	17.Property,PlantandEquipment 
	17.Property,PlantandEquipment 
	 Assetsthathavephysicalsubstanceandareheldforuseintheproductionorsupplyofgoodsorservices, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes that are expected to be used during more than one financialyearareclassifiedasProperty,PlantandEquipment. 
	Expenditureontheacquisition,creationorenhancementofProperty,PlantandEquipmentiscapitalisedonanaccrual basis,providedthatitisprobablethatthefutureeconomicbenefitsorservicepotentialassociatedwiththeitemwillflow totheCouncilandthecostoftheitemcanbemeasuredreliably. Expenditureon routinerepairs andmaintenanceof non-currentassetsthatdonotenhancetheassetorextenditsusefuleconomiclifeischargeddirectlytoservicerevenue accounts.Thede-minimuslevelforaccountingforproperty,plantandequipmentis£10k. 
	Recognition 

	Measurement Assetsareinitiallymeasuredatcost,comprisingofthepurchasepriceandanycostsattributabletobringingtheasset tothelocationandconditionnecessaryforittobecapableofoperatinginthemannerintendedbymanagement. 
	AssetsarethencarriedintheBalanceSheetusingthefollowingmeasurementbases: 
	 
	 
	 
	Infrastructureassets,communityassetsandassetsunderconstructionareincludedinthebalancesheet atdepreciatedhistoricalcost. 

	 
	 
	Council dwellings have been valued using the ‘Beacon valuation’ method, whereby a sample of each category ofdwelling is valued and then these valuations are applied to all similar dwellings to arrive at a grossvaluation. Theyarevaluedatfairvalue,determinedusingthebasisofexistingusevalueforsocial housing(EUV-SH). 

	 
	 
	Land,operationalpropertiesandotheroperationalassetsareincludedinthebalancesheetatexistinguse value,marketvalueordepreciatedreplacementcost. 


	Non-specialisedoperationalpropertiesarevaluedateitherexistinguseormarketvalue.Depreciatedreplacementcost isusedforspecialisedoperationalpropertiesandmarketvalueforinvestmentpropertiesandsurplusassets. 
	Revaluations of non-current assets take place at five yearly intervals. Annual desktop valuations are carried out with any changes tovaluations ofplus orminus £10k,tobeadjustedforintheinterim period,as they occur. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, unless the increase is reversingapreviousrevaluationdecreasechargedtoSurplusorDeficitontheProvisionofServicesonthesameasset. 
	Wheredecreasesinvalueareidentified,theyareaccountedforby: 
	 
	 
	 
	WherethereisabalanceofrevaluationgainsfortheassetintheRevaluationReserve,thecarryingamount oftheassetiswrittendownagainstthatbalance(uptotheamountoftheaccumulatedgain). 

	 
	 
	Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount is writtendownagainsttherelevantserviceline(s)intheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement 


	The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. GainsarisingbeforethatdatehavebeenconsolidatedintotheCapitalAdjustmentAccount. 
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	Non-CurrentAssetsareassessedateachyearendastowhetherthereisanyindicationthatanassetmaybeimpaired. 
	Impairment 

	DepreciationisprovidedforonallProperty,PlantandEquipmentassetsbythesystematicallocationoftheirdepreciable amounts overtheirusefullives. Anexceptionis madeforassetswithoutadeterminablefiniteuseful life(i.e.freehold landandcertaincommunityassets)andassetsunderconstruction. Depreciationisprovidedusingthestraight-linemethodovereithertheremaininglifeoftheassetorthefollowing periods: 
	Depreciation 

	Buildings(whereappropriate–includingHRA) 
	Buildings(whereappropriate–includingHRA) 
	Buildings(whereappropriate–includingHRA) 
	15
	-
	60 
	years 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	20 
	years 

	Plant,vehiclesandequipment(excludingcomputers) 
	Plant,vehiclesandequipment(excludingcomputers) 
	7
	-8 
	years 

	Computersandsoftwarelicences 
	Computersandsoftwarelicences 
	5 
	years 


	NoitemofProperty,PlantandEquipmenthasbeenidentifiedashavingmajorcomponentswhosecostissignificantin relationtothetotalcostoftheitem;therefore,noseparatedepreciationcalculationsarerequired. 
	Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation chargedtoassetsandthedepreciationthatwouldhavebeenchargeablebasedontheirhistoricalcostbeingtransferred eachyearfromtheRevaluationReservetotheCapitalAdjustmentAccount. 
	Whenitbecomesprobablethatthecarryingamountofanassetwillberecoveredprincipallythroughasaletransaction ratherthanthroughitscontinuinguse,itisreclassifiedasanAssetHeldforSale. Theassetis devaluedimmediately beforereclassificationandthencarriedatthelowerofthisamountandfairvaluelesscoststosell. Depreciationisnot chargedtoAssetsHeldforSale. AssetsthataretobeabandonedorscrappedarenotreclassifiedasAssetsHeldfor Sale. 
	DisposalsandNon-CurrentAssetsHeldforSale 

	Receipts from disposals are part of the gain or loss on disposal line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the assets at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulatedfortheassetintheRevaluationReservearetransferredtotheCapitalAdjustmentAccount. Amountsreceivedforadisposalinexcessof£10karecategorisedasacapitalreceipt. Aproportionofreceiptsrelating to housing disposals are payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is credited 

	18.Reserves 
	18.Reserves 
	The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. ExpendituretobefundedfromareserveischargedtotheappropriateservicerevenueaccountandreflectedintheNet Costof Services in theComprehensiveIncome andExpenditure Statement. The relevantamountis thentransferred backintotheGeneralFundBalancesothatthereisnonetchargetocounciltaxfortheexpenditure. 
	Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, and retirementandemployeebenefitsanddonotrepresentusableresourcesfortheCouncil. Thesereservesareexplained elsewhereintheseAccountingPolicies. 

	19.RevenueExpenditureFundedfromCapitalunderStatute 
	19.RevenueExpenditureFundedfromCapitalunderStatute 
	Thisisexpenditureincurredduringtheyearthatmaybecapitalisedunderstatutoryprovisionsbutdoesnotresultinthe creationofanon-currentassetfortheCouncil. Thisischargedasexpendituretotherelevantservicerevenueaccount intheyear. ThecostofthisexpenditureismetfromexistingcapitalresourcesandatransfertotheCapitalAdjustment AccountthenreversesouttheamountschargedintheMovementinReservesStatementsothereisnoimpactonthe levelofcounciltax. 

	20.ValueAddedTax 
	20.ValueAddedTax 
	Income and expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all VAT collected is payable to HM Revenue and CustomsandallVATpaidisrecoverablefromthem. 
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	21.AccountingforCouncilTax 
	21.AccountingforCouncilTax 
	The Council Tax income for the year credited to the Collection Fund is the accrued income for the year but regulationsdeterminewhenitshouldbereleasedfromtheCollectionFundtotheCouncil’sGeneralFund or to major preceptors. The amount credited to the General Fund under statute isCouncil’s demandfor the year plus or minus its share of the surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund forthepreviousyear. The Council Tax income included in theComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatementistheCouncil’sshareoftheCollection
	The cash collected by the Council from Council Taxpayers belongs proportionately to the Council and the major preceptors. Thedifferencebetweentheamountscollectedonbehalfofthemajorpreceptorsandthepayments madetothem isreflected asadebtor orcreditor balanceasappropriate. 
	22. AccountingforBusinessRates 
	22. AccountingforBusinessRates 
	The Business Rates income for the year credited to the Collection Fund is the accrued income for the year but regulationsdeterminewhenitshouldbereleasedfromtheCollectionFundtotheCouncil’sGeneralFundortomajor preceptorsand the Government.The amountcreditedto the GeneralFundunder statuteis the Council’sestimated shareof BusinessRatesfortheyearfromtheNationalNonDomesticRates(NNDR)1return. 
	TheBusinessRatesincomeincludedintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatementistheCouncil’sshare of the Collection Fund’s accrued income for the year from the NNDR3 return. The difference between this amount and the amount credited to the General Fund is transferred to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account via the MovementinReservesStatement. 
	The cash collected by the Council from Business Ratepayers belongs proportionately to the Council, the major preceptors, and the Government.The difference between the amounts collected on behalfof the majorpreceptors andGovernment,andthepaymentsmadetothemisreflectedas adebtororcreditorbalanceasappropriate. 


	23.FairValueMeasurementofNon-FinancialAssets 
	23.FairValueMeasurementofNon-FinancialAssets 
	The Council’s accounting policy for fair value measurement of financial assets is set out in the policy on financial instrumentsinNote14.TheCouncilalsomeasuressomeofitsnon-financialassetssuchasinvestmentpropertiesand some of its financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sellanassetinanorderlytransactionbetweenmarketparticipantsatthemeasurementdate. Thefairvaluemeasurementassumesthatthetransactiontoselltheassettakesplaceeither: 
	 
	 
	 
	intheprincipalmarketfortheassetorliability,or 

	 
	 
	intheabsenceofaprincipalmarket,inthemostadvantageousmarketfortheassetorliability. 


	TheCouncilmeasuresthefairvalueofanassetusingtheassumptionsthatmarketparticipantswouldusewhenpricing theasset,assumingthatmarketparticipantsactintheireconomicbestinterest. 
	Whenmeasuringthefairvalueofanon-financialasset,theCounciltakes intoaccountamarketparticipant’sabilityto generateeconomicbenefitsbyusingtheassetinitshighestandbestuseorbysellingittoanothermarketparticipant thatwouldusetheassetinitshighestandbestuse. 
	The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available,maximisingtheuseofrelevantobservableinputsandminimisingtheuseofunobservableinputs. 
	Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Council’s financialstatementsarecategorisedwithinthefairvaluehierarchy,asfollows: 
	 Level1–quotedprices(unadjusted)inactivemarketsforidenticalassetsthattheCouncilcanaccessatthe measurementdate, 
	 Level2–inputsotherthanquotedpricesincludedwithinLevel1thatareobservablefortheasset,eitherdirectly orindirectly, 
	 Level3–unobservableinputsfortheasset. 
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	NotestotheFinancialStatements 
	NotestotheFinancialStatements 
	Note1AccountingStandardsIssued,NotAdopted 
	TherehavebeennosubstantialchangestotheCouncil’saccountingpoliciesin2023/24. 
	IFRS 16 Leases will be adopted from 1April 2024 as required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.IFRS16removesthedistinctionbetweenoperatingleasesandfinanceleasesforlesseessuchthat allleasesarecapitalisedandpresentedonthebalancesheetasbothassets,knownastheright-of-use(ROU) asset, and liabilities. The accounting treatment for leases under IFRS 16 results in the recognition of both depreciationandinterestexpenseontheincomestatement.TheadoptionofIFRS16isnotanticipatedtohave amaterial impact up
	st 

	Description 
	Description 
	Description 
	Amount £’000 

	Increaseinfixedassets 
	Increaseinfixedassets 
	106 

	Increaseinaccumulateddepreciation 
	Increaseinaccumulateddepreciation 
	8 

	Increaseinliabilities 
	Increaseinliabilities 
	98 

	Reductioninservicecosts(leasepayments) 
	Reductioninservicecosts(leasepayments) 
	100 

	Increaseindepreciationcharge 
	Increaseindepreciationcharge 
	98 

	Increaseininterestcharge 
	Increaseininterestcharge 
	2 


	Note2CriticalJudgementsinApplyingAccountingPolicies 
	Inapplyingtheaccountingpolicies,theCouncilhashadtomakecertainjudgementsaboutcomplextransactions orthoseinvolvinguncertaintyaboutfutureevents. 
	 
	 
	 
	Therecontinuestobeahighdegreeofuncertaintyaboutfuturelevelsoffundingforlocalgovernment, particularly concerning the rebasing of the business rates baseline and the Fairer Funding Review. Government has announcedthat it is unlikely to introduceany changes before2026/27butthe timing and extent of any potential changes remain unconfirmed. The Council has determined that the information regarding this is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council mightbeimpairedasaresultofaneedto

	 
	 
	One factor that has had a demonstrable impact in the past few years on the accounts concerns the assumptions surrounding pensions and the likelihood of legislative change and the impact of such change. 

	 
	 
	ItisanticipatedthatnosubstantiallegalclaimsorappealswillbemadeagainsttheCouncilinthenext financialyear. 

	 
	 
	Nocontractsexistwithotherbodieswhichneedtobeaccountedforasaserviceconcessionorcontain anembeddedlease. 


	Note3AssumptionsMadeabouttheFutureandOtherMajorSourcesofEstimation Uncertainty 
	The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council aboutthefutureorthatareotherwiseuncertain. Estimatesaremadetakingintoaccounthistoricalexperience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, the actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. Major estimates are Pensions, Plant Property and Equipment, Property Funds andprovisionsinrespectofNNDR. 
	Assetvaluationsforthecouncil'spropertyportfolioarebasedonmarketpricesandarereviewedannuallyto ensurethattheCouncildoesnotmateriallymisstateitsnon-currentassets. TheCouncil'sexternalvaluers providedvaluationsasat31March2024 
	ThecarryingvalueofProperty,PlantandEquipmentat31stMarch2024is£433m(£432m2022/23). 
	Valuationtechniquesareusedtodeterminethecarryingamountof Freehold,LeaseholdandPropertyfunds. Wherepossiblethesevaluationtechniquesarebasedonobservabledatabutwherethisisnotpossible managementusesthebestavailabledata. 
	Note4ExceptionalItemsofIncomeandExpenditure 
	TherearenoExceptionalItemsfor2023/24. 
	Note5EventsaftertheBalanceSheetDate 
	The Statement of Accounts was authorised for presentation by the S151 Officer on 31July 2024. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place beforethisdateprovidedinformationaboutconditionsexistingat31stMarch2024,thefiguresinthefinancial statementsandnoteshavebeenadjustedinallmaterialrespectstoreflecttheimpactofthisinformation. 
	st 

	Note6ExpenditureandIncomeAnalysedbyNature 
	TheCouncil’sexpenditureandincomeisanalysedasfollows: 
	2022/23 
	2022/23 
	2022/23 
	2023/24 

	£’000 Reinstated 
	£’000 Reinstated 
	-

	£’000 

	22,939 49,922 5,955 3,017 1,647 4,250 (23) 731 
	22,939 49,922 5,955 3,017 1,647 4,250 (23) 731 
	Expenditure EmployeeBenefitsExpenses OtherServicesExpenses Depreciation,Amortisation,Impairments InterestPayments NetPensionInterest ParishPrecepts CapitalReceiptnotrelatedtoAssetDisposal LossontheDisposalofAssets TotalExpenditure 
	22,075 56,477 5,685 3,120 390 4,566 (13) (104) 

	88,438 
	88,438 
	92,196 

	(60,561) (1,577) 1,043 (20,356) (3,588) (1,154) 
	(60,561) (1,577) 1,043 (20,356) (3,588) (1,154) 
	Income Fees,ChargesandOtherIncome InterestandInvestmentIncome (Gains)/Losses on Revaluation of Property Funds Income from Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates GovernmentGrantsandContributions CapitalGrants TotalIncome 
	(63,912) (3,384) 421 (23,416) (3,413) (2,028) 

	(86,193) 
	(86,193) 
	(95,732) 

	2,245 
	2,245 
	(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	(3,536) 


	Note7Transfersto/fromEarmarkedReserves 
	ThisnotesetsouttheamountssetasidefromtheGeneralFundandHRAbalancesinearmarkedreservesto provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts transferred out from earmarked reserves to meetGeneralFundandHRAexpenditurein2023/24. 
	RevenueReserves 
	RevenueReserves 
	RevenueReserves 
	Balanceat 31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	Transfers Out £'000 
	Transfers in £'000 
	Balanceat 31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	ReinvestmentReserve CapitalPlanReserve NDRS31CovidReserve OtherReserves 
	ReinvestmentReserve CapitalPlanReserve NDRS31CovidReserve OtherReserves 
	(500) (1,874) (1,477) (3,401) 
	317 84 0 512 
	(181) 0 (866) (3,917) 
	(364) (1,790) (2,343) (6,806) 

	TotalGeneralFund 
	TotalGeneralFund 
	(7,252) 
	913 
	(4,964) 
	(11,303) 

	HRAFinancingFund 
	HRAFinancingFund 
	(16,793) 
	0 
	(731) 
	(17,524) 

	HRAMajorRepairsReserve 
	HRAMajorRepairsReserve 
	(4,475) 
	6,474 
	(4,311) 
	(2,312) 


	Note8OtherIncomeandExpenditure 
	OtherincomeandexpenditureincludedwithintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureCostofService areLoughboroughSpecialExpensesandtheBuildingControlAccountasdetailedbelow:-
	LoughboroughSpecialExpenses 
	LoughboroughSpecialExpensesisthetownpreceptcomparabletoparishprecepts.Thesecostsareincluded withinspecificservicelinesintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement. 
	Therewasadebitbalanceof£15.5kin2022/23. However,acreditof£75.5kwasadjustedinthesettingofthe special expenses levy for 2024/25, leaving a credit balance of £91k to be adjusted for in future years. The 2023/24creditbalanceof£27kwillbeadjustedinthesettingofthespecialexpenseslevyfor2025/26. 
	Table
	TR
	Debit 
	Credit 

	Budget 
	Budget 
	Actuals 
	Balance 
	Budget 
	Actuals 
	Balance 

	2022/23 
	2022/23 
	2022/23 
	2022/23 
	2023/24 
	2023/24 
	2023/24 

	£’000 
	£’000 
	£’000 
	£’000 
	£’000 
	£’000 
	£’000 

	1,283 
	1,283 
	1,298 
	15 
	TotalLevy 
	1,367 
	1,340 
	27 

	TR
	AdjustmentsfromYear 

	63 
	63 
	63 
	0 
	2020/21 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	TR
	AdjustmentsfromYear 

	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	2021/22 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	1,346 
	1,346 
	1,361 
	15 
	AmendedTotalLevy 
	1,367 
	1,340 
	27 


	BuildingControlAccount 
	BuildingControlAccount 
	The Building (Local Council Charges) Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/404) requires the disclosure of information regarding the setting of charges for the administration of the building control function. However, the Building ControlUnitcannotchargeforbuildingworksolelyrequiredfordisabledpersons. Theoverridingobjectiveisto ensure the chargeable account recovers costs for chargeable functions. The Building Control service have enteredintoasharedservicewithNorthWestLeicesterDistrictCouncilfromJanuary2021. 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	386 (367) 
	386 (367) 
	ChargeableWork Expenditure Income 
	417 (353) 

	19 
	19 
	(Surplus)/Deficit 
	64 

	317 (162) 
	317 (162) 
	Non-ChargeableWork Expenditure Income 
	333 (160) 

	155 
	155 
	(Surplus)/Deficit 
	173 


	Note9ExpenditureandFundingAnalysis 
	TheExpenditureandFundingAnalysisshowshowannualexpenditureisusedandfundedfromresources(government grants,counciltaxandbusinessrates)bylocalauthoritiesincomparisonwiththoseresourcesconsumedorearnedby authoritiesinaccordancewithgenerallyacceptedaccountingpractices.Itshowshowthisexpenditureisallocatedfor decisionmakingpurposesbetweenthecouncil’sservices. Income&Expenditureaccountedforundergenerallyaccepted accountingpracticesispresentedmorefullyintheComprehensiveIncome&ExpenditureStatement. 
	Net Expenditure Chargeable to Services Adjustments between Fundingand Accounting Basis Net Expenditure in the CIES Net Expenditure Chargeable to Services Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis Net Expenditure inthe CIES 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 1 (1) (0) ChiefExecutive's Team (0) 0 0 1 (1) 0 HeadofTransformation, Strategy andPerformance (1) 1 (0) 2 (2) 0 ChiefExecutive (1) 1 (0) 1,622 75 1,697 HeadofStrategic Housing 1,500 (33) 1,467 0 0 0
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	Note10Property,PlantandEquipment 
	Movementsin2023/24 
	Movementsin2023/24 
	Movementsin2023/24 
	CouncilDwellings£'000 
	£'000 OtherLandandBuildings
	£'000 Vehicles,Plant, Furniture&Equipment
	£'000 InfrastructureAssets
	£'000 CommunityAssets
	£'000 SurplusAssets 
	£'000 AssetsunderConstruction
	£'000 TotalPlant,PropertyandEquipment 

	CostorValuation At1stApril2023 Additions Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognisedintheRevaluation Reserve Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognisedintheProvisionof ServicesCAA Derecognition–disposals AssetReclassification At31stMarch2024 AccumulatedDepreciationand impairment 
	CostorValuation At1stApril2023 Additions Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognisedintheRevaluation Reserve Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognisedintheProvisionof ServicesCAA Derecognition–disposals AssetReclassification At31stMarch2024 AccumulatedDepreciationand impairment 
	362,201 6,573 (1,095) 0 (2,200) 0 
	61,326 118 (1,266) 44 (94) (75) 
	10,122 762 0 0 (149) 0 
	166 0 0 0 0 0 
	4,203 185 0 0 0 0 
	34 0 0 0 0 75 
	0 0 0 0 0 0 
	438,052 7,638 (2,361) 44 (2,443) 0 

	365,479 
	365,479 
	60,053 
	10,735 
	166 
	4,388 
	109 
	0 
	440,930 

	At1stApril2023 
	At1stApril2023 
	(10) 
	(142) 
	(5,532) 
	(143) 
	(62) 
	(1) 
	0 
	(5,890) 

	Depreciationcharge 
	Depreciationcharge 
	(4,262) 
	(828) 
	(842) 
	(1) 
	(17) 
	(2) 
	0 
	(5,952) 

	Depreciationwrittenouttothe RevaluationReserve 
	Depreciationwrittenouttothe RevaluationReserve 
	3,168 
	761 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	3,929 

	Depreciationwrittenouttothe Surplus/DeficitontheProvision ofServices 
	Depreciationwrittenouttothe Surplus/DeficitontheProvision ofServices 
	0 
	55 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	55 

	Derecognition–disposals 
	Derecognition–disposals 
	0 
	0 
	149 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	149 

	AssetReclassification At31stMarch2024 
	AssetReclassification At31stMarch2024 
	0 
	3 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	(3) 
	0 
	0 

	(1,104) 
	(1,104) 
	(151) 
	(6,225) 
	(144) 
	(79) 
	(6) 
	0 
	(7,709) 

	NetBookValueat31stMarch 2024 
	NetBookValueat31stMarch 2024 
	364,375 
	59,902 
	4,510 
	22 
	4,309 
	103 
	0 
	433,221 

	NetBookValueat31stMarch 2023 
	NetBookValueat31stMarch 2023 
	362,191 
	61,184 
	4,590 
	23 
	4,141 
	33 
	0 
	432,162 

	Movementsin2022/23 
	Movementsin2022/23 
	£'000 CouncilDwellings
	£'000 OtherLandandBuildings
	£'000 Vehicles,Plant, Furniture&Equipment
	£'000 Restated-InfrastructureAssets
	£'000 CommunityAssets
	£'000 SurplusAssets 
	£'000 AssetsunderConstruction
	£'000 Restated-TotalPlant, PropertyandEquipment 

	CostorValuation At1stApril2022 Additions Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognisedintheRevaluation Reserve Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognisedintheProvisionof ServicesCAA Derecognition–disposals AssetReclassification At31stMarch2023 AccumulatedDepreciationand impairment 
	CostorValuation At1stApril2022 Additions Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognisedintheRevaluation Reserve Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognisedintheProvisionof ServicesCAA Derecognition–disposals AssetReclassification At31stMarch2023 AccumulatedDepreciationand impairment 
	337,183 3,990 23,660 49 (2,681) 0 
	58,495 219 1,947 (553) (26) 1,244 
	10,166 271 0 0 (315) 0 
	166 0 0 0 0 0 
	4,057 146 0 0 0 0 
	758 0 0 0 (724) 0 
	1,244 0 0 0 0 (1,244) 
	412,069 4,626 25,607 (504) (3,746) 0 

	362,201 
	362,201 
	61,326 
	10,122 
	166 
	4,203 
	34 
	0 
	438,052 

	At1stApril2022 
	At1stApril2022 
	(10) 
	(72) 
	(5,041) 
	(142) 
	(48) 
	(1) 
	0 
	(5,314) 

	Depreciationcharge 
	Depreciationcharge 
	(3,944) 
	(792) 
	(806) 
	(1) 
	(14) 
	0 
	0 
	(5,557) 

	Depreciationwrittenouttothe RevaluationReserve 
	Depreciationwrittenouttothe RevaluationReserve 
	3,938 
	653 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	4,591 

	Depreciationwrittenouttothe Surplus/DeficitontheProvision ofServices 
	Depreciationwrittenouttothe Surplus/DeficitontheProvision ofServices 
	6 
	67 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	73 

	Derecognition–disposals At31stMarch2023 
	Derecognition–disposals At31stMarch2023 
	0 
	2 
	315 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	317 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	(142) 
	(5,532) 
	(143) 
	(62) 
	(1) 
	0 
	(5,890) 

	NetBookValueat31stMarch 2023 
	NetBookValueat31stMarch 2023 
	362,191 
	61,184 
	4,590 
	23 
	4,141 
	33 
	0 
	432,162 

	NetBookValueat31stMarch 2022 
	NetBookValueat31stMarch 2022 
	337,173 
	58,423 
	5,125 
	24 
	4,009 
	757 
	1,244 
	406,755 


	ImpairmentLosses 
	Thecoderequiresdisclosurebyclassofassetsoftheamountsforimpairmentlossesandimpairmentreversals charged to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services and to other Comprehensive Income and ExpenditureStatement. 
	These disclosures are consolidated in Notes 10 and 12 reconciling movement over the year in the Property, PlantandEquipmentandIntangibleAssetbalances. 
	CapitalBudgets 
	ThemajorschemesintheCapitalProgrammein2024/25,includingslippagefrom2023/24are:-
	Table
	TR
	Capital Programme 2024/25 £'000 

	ShepshedPublicRealm BedfordSquareGateway EnterpriseZone TownDealandRegeneration QueensPark-improvements PlannedBuildingImprovements Carillon–re-imagingLoughborough’sIconicTower Southfield’sOffices-accommodation RefuseCollectionVehicles CarbonNeutralActionFund CarParks-improvements CCTV RevenuesandBenefits–ITSystems PrivateSectorHousingandDisabledFacilitiesGrants HRADecentHomesandNeighbourhoods OtherCommitments 
	ShepshedPublicRealm BedfordSquareGateway EnterpriseZone TownDealandRegeneration QueensPark-improvements PlannedBuildingImprovements Carillon–re-imagingLoughborough’sIconicTower Southfield’sOffices-accommodation RefuseCollectionVehicles CarbonNeutralActionFund CarParks-improvements CCTV RevenuesandBenefits–ITSystems PrivateSectorHousingandDisabledFacilitiesGrants HRADecentHomesandNeighbourhoods OtherCommitments 
	620 1,007 5,839 7,552 223 743 242 500 440 695 472 227 250 2,908 19,046 2,898 

	43,662 
	43,662 


	Revaluations 
	There was a full revaluation of the Council’s Operational and Non-Operational non housing stock (Land and Property), on 1st April 2019. The valuation report was prepared by GSCHarbord MA MRICS IRRV (Hons) RICSRegisteredValuerofWilksHeadandEveLLP,ThirdFloor,55NewOxfordStreet,London(the“Valuer”). The valuations were made in accordance with RICS Valuation Standards the Red Book UK Appendix 5 – ValuationofLocalAuthorityAssets. Eachlandparcelandpropertyhasbeenassessedforthemostappropriate methodofvaluation. Thev
	The operational Housing Revenue stock comprising dwellings, shops, garages and astore were valued as at 1stApril2019. ThevaluationsweremadebytheValuerinaccordancewithRICSValuationStandardstheRed Book UK Appendix 5 – Valuation of Local Authority Assets. The dwellings were valued using the Beacon approach. Thisvaluationincluded: 
	 
	 
	 
	aninspectionofeachbeaconpropertyforeacharchetypegroup 

	 
	 
	researchonsalesofdirectlycomparablepropertywhichtookplaceduringthefinancialyear. 

	 
	 
	informationatlocallevelshowinghousepricemovements 

	 
	 
	regionalandnationalIndices 

	 
	 
	areviewoftheexistingassetgroupsandarchetypes 


	Thedwellings,store,shopsandgaragesarevaluedonanexistingusevalue. 
	Council HRA dwellings, shops, garages and stores along with the Council’s Operationaland Non-Operational non-housing stock (land and property) were revalued at the end of March 2023 on a ‘desktop’ basis by the Valuertoreflecttheirfairvalueasatthattime. 
	Note11InvestmentProperties 
	The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and ExpenditureStatement. 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	(1,571) 0 
	(1,571) 0 
	RentalIncomefromInvestmentProperty DirectOperatingexpensesarisingfrom investmentproperty 
	(1,599) 0 

	(1,571) 
	(1,571) 
	Total 
	(1,599) 


	Thefollowingtablesummarisesthemovementinthefairvalueofinvestmentproperties. 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	25,638 0 93 
	25,638 0 93 
	1st BalanceatApril Disposals ChangeinFairValues 
	25,731 0 237 

	25,731 
	25,731 
	Balanceat31st March 
	25,968 


	FairValueHierarchy 
	FairValueHierarchy 
	DetailsoftheCouncil’sinvestmentpropertiesandinformationaboutthefairvaluehierarchyasat31March 2024areasfollows: 
	st 

	Table
	TR
	Quotedprices inactive marketsfor identicalassets (Level1) £'000 
	Othersignificant observable inputs(Level2) £'000 
	Significant unobservable inputs(Level3) £'000 
	Fairvalueasat 31March2024 £'000 

	InvestmentLand 
	InvestmentLand 
	0 
	15,608 
	204 
	15,812 

	Investment Properties 
	Investment Properties 
	0 
	9,977 
	180 
	10,157 

	Surplus Assets Not Held for Sale 
	Surplus Assets Not Held for Sale 
	0 
	32 
	0 
	32 

	Total 
	Total 
	0 
	25,617 
	384 
	26,001 


	ValuationTechniquesusedtoDetermineLevel2and3FairValuesforInvestmentProperties 

	SignificantObservableInputs–Level2 
	SignificantObservableInputs–Level2 
	Land,Office,Residential,IndustrialandRetailassetshavebeenbasedonthemarketapproachusingcurrent marketconditionsandrecentsalespricesandotherrelevantinformationforsimilarassetsinthelocal authorityarea. Marketconditionsfortheseassettypesaresuchthatthelevelofobservableinputsis significantleadingtothepropertiesbeingcategorisedatLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy. 

	SignificantUnobservableInputs–Level3 
	SignificantUnobservableInputs–Level3 
	CommunityBuildings,SportsGroundandCentresassetshavebeenbasedonacomparableapproacheither byestimatedmarketrentalvaluesasthemajorityoftheseassetsareletatsub-marketorsubsidisedpassing rents. Wehavehadtodrawonanumberofourownassumptionsandutilisedthird-partyresourcesinorder tovaluetheseassets. TheseassetsarethereforecategorisedasLevel3inthefairvaluehierarchyasthe measurementtechniqueusessignificantunobservableinputstodeterminethefairvaluemeasurements(and thereisnoreasonablyavailableinformationthatindicatesthatma
	TypicalvaluationinputswhichhavebeenanalysedinarrivingatourFairValuationsinclude: 
	MarketRentalandSaleValues Yields VoidandLettingPeriods Size Configuration,proportionsandlayout Location,visibilityandaccess Condition Leasecovenants Obsolescence 

	HighestandBestUseofInvestmentProperties 
	HighestandBestUseofInvestmentProperties 
	InestimatingthefairvalueoftheCouncil’sinvestmentproperties,thehighestandbestuseofthepropertiesis theircurrentuse. 

	ValuationTechniques 
	ValuationTechniques 
	Therehasbeennochangeinthevaluationtechniquesusedduringtheyearforinvestmentproperties. 
	QuantitativeInformationaboutFairValueMeasurementofInvestmentPropertiesusingSignificant UnobservableInputs–Level3 
	Table
	TR
	Asat31st March2024 £’000 
	Valuation techniqueused tomeasurefair value 
	Unobservable inputs 
	Range 
	Sensitivity 

	Community 
	Community 
	4 
	Comparative 
	RentalValue 
	£10-£40 
	Changes in 

	Centres 
	Centres 
	based on limited rentalevidence 
	Yields 
	psm 10%-14% 
	rental growth, yields, occupancy will result in a lower or higher fair value 

	Sports 
	Sports 
	380 
	Comparative 
	RentalValue 
	£5,000-
	Changes in 

	Ground 
	Ground 
	based on limited 
	£15,000/ha 
	rental growth, 

	and 
	and 
	rentalevidence 
	yields, 

	Centres 
	Centres 
	Yields 
	8%-12% 
	occupancy will result in a lower or higher fair value 


	Note12IntangibleAssets 
	The Councilaccounts for its software purchases as intangibleassets, totheextentthat thesoftware is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. Thereisnointernallygeneratedsoftware. 
	Allsoftwareassetsaregivenafiniteusefullifeof5years. Thecarryingamountofintangibleassetsisamortised onastraight-linebasis. 
	MovementonIntangibleAssetbalancesduringtheyearisasfollows: 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	2,837 (2,657) 
	2,837 (2,657) 
	1st BalanceatApril: Grosscarryingamounts AccumulatedAmortisation 1st NetcarryingamountatApril Additions:Purchases Amortisationfortheperiod Derecognition–disposals Derecognition–depreciationwrittenout Netcarryingamountat31st March Grosscarryingamounts AccumulatedAmortisation 
	2,802 (2,601) 

	180 80 (59) (116) 116 
	180 80 (59) (116) 116 
	201 127 (69) (233) 233 

	201 
	201 
	259 

	2,802 (2,601) 
	2,802 (2,601) 
	2,696 (2,437) 

	201 
	201 
	259 


	Note13HeritageAssets 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	TR
	279 0 
	1st BalanceatApril Revaluations 
	279 0 

	TR
	279 
	Balanceat31st March 
	279 



	Note14FinancialInstruments 
	Note14FinancialInstruments 
	ThefollowingcategoriesoffinancialinstrumentsarecarriedintheBalanceSheet: 
	Financial Assets 
	Financial Assets 
	Financial Assets 
	Long-Term 
	Long-Term 
	Long-Term 
	Long-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Total 
	Total 

	TR
	Investments 
	Investments 
	Debtors 
	Debtors 
	Investments 
	Investments 
	Debtors 
	Debtors 

	TR
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 

	TR
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 

	LongTerm Investments 
	LongTerm Investments 
	4,356 
	3,935 
	4,356 
	3,935 

	Short TermInvestments 
	Short TermInvestments 
	20,000 
	19,000 
	20,000 
	19,000 

	CashandCashEquivalents 
	CashandCashEquivalents 
	23,056 
	22,120 
	23,056 
	22,120 

	TradeDebtors 
	TradeDebtors 
	4,119 
	3,355 
	4,119 
	3,355 

	LongTerm Debtor 
	LongTerm Debtor 
	1,274 
	5,262 
	1,274 
	5,262 

	Total Financial Assets 
	Total Financial Assets 
	4,356 
	3,935 
	1,274 
	5,262 
	43,056 
	41,120 
	4,119 
	3,355 
	52,805 
	53,672 

	Financial Liabilities 
	Financial Liabilities 
	Long-Term 
	Long-Term 
	Long-Term 
	Long-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Total 
	Total 

	TR
	Borrowings 
	Borrowings 
	Creditors 
	Creditors 
	Borrowings 
	Borrowings 
	Creditors 
	Creditors 

	TR
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 
	31stMarch 2023 
	31stMarch 2024 

	AmortisedCost 
	AmortisedCost 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 

	LongTerm Borrowings 
	LongTerm Borrowings 
	(82,538) 
	(82,538) 
	(82,538) 
	(82,538) 

	Short term Borrowings 
	Short term Borrowings 
	0 
	(4,000) 
	0 
	(4,000) 

	TradeCreditors 
	TradeCreditors 
	(10,411) 
	(11,446) 
	(10,411) 
	(11,446) 

	LongTerm Creditor 
	LongTerm Creditor 
	(3,508) 
	(3,782) 
	(3,508) 
	(3,782) 

	Total Financial Liabilities 
	Total Financial Liabilities 
	(82,538) 
	(82,538) 
	(3,508) 
	(3,782) 
	0 
	(4,000) 
	(10,411) 
	(11,446) 
	(96,457) 
	(101,766) 


	Inadditiontothe above,theCouncilholds 10.2% of theOrdinary Shares of the GreatCentralRailway (1986) plc. These cost £261k and the shares are fully paid-up and there is no further liability to pay any more to the company. Thecompanyisoperatedtore-createthebestyearsofsteamlocomotivesandexperiencemainline railway operation. The company has a non-profit distribution status, and its Memorandum and Articles of Associationprohibitsanydistributiontoshareholders. Assuchtheshareshavenocurrentvalueandareshown atNilasa
	LongTerm Borrowing of£81.19moutstanding is classifiedas a‘Financialliability at amortisedcost’under the CodeandrequiresafairvaluetobedisclosedwherethisisdifferenttothecarryingamountstatedintheBalance Sheet. £2moftheseloanshasbeenattributedafairvalueof£2.058m,(newloanrate)atthedateoftheBalance Sheet,(£2.194m in2022/23).Theoriginalloandates backto1984,and althoughitcarriesaLOBO,(Lender’s Option,Borrower’sOption)itisunlikelytobecalledinbythecounterpartybeforethematuritydateinJune2024. Thiswouldonlyoccurifthepr
	Thefairvalueoftheremaining£79.190mis£67.697m,(£70.661min2022/23)andtheseloansweretakenout tofundarepaymenttothegovernmentinorderto‘buyout’theCouncil’sparticipationintheoldHousingSubsidy system. Alltheloansareatfixedratesofinterestmaturingbetween6monthsand38years’timeandtheloan interest will be serviced from housing rental income. The Council does not currently intend to pay off any of theseloansearly andthey arethereforeheldattheirfacevalue,which isthesamebasis as inpreviousyears whenthefairvaluewaslessthan
	The fair value of all the loans is determined by calculating the Net Present Value (NPV) of future cash flows whichprovidesanestimateofthevalueofpaymentsinthefuture. ThediscountrateusedintheNPVcalculation shouldbeequaltothecurrentrateinrelationtothesameinstrumentfromacomparablelenderorthenewloan rate in respect of the £79.19m of PWLB loans. The discount/loan interest rates were evaluated at between 2.82%and3.53%byLinkTreasuryServicesLtd,theCouncil’streasuryadviser. 
	Thesewillbetheratesapplicableinthemarketonthedateofvaluationforaninstrumentofthesameduration, i.e.equaltotheoutstandingperiodfromvaluationdatetomaturity. Thestructureandtermsofthecomparable instrumentshouldbethesame.Totalinterestof£2.696mispayableintwoinstalmentsontheloanseachyear andischargeddirectlytotheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement. 
	Financial Liabilities in Creditors are in respect of various trade creditors and accruals which are classified as financialinstrumentsandareshownatcost. 
	OtherShort-TermInvestments 
	Short-termlendingiscarriedintheBalanceSheetatamortisedcostattheBalanceSheetdate. Therefore,the materialaccruedinterestat31March2024isincludedintheabovevalueforBalanceSheetpurposes. Interest received during theyearis credited tothe ComprehensiveIncome and ExpenditureStatement. Thereare no costsassociatedwiththesetransactions. 
	Long-TermInvestments 
	The Councilholds atotalat 31 March 2024 of £3.934m Long Term Investments, (£4.354m in 2022/23) in the Lothbury Property Trust and £1.817m, (£2.067m in 2022/23) and in Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust £2.117m,(£2.287min2022/23)asattheBalanceSheetdate.Theseareaccountedforasalong-terminvestment on the Balance Sheet as a Financial Instrument Reserve and the revaluation loss £0.420m, (£1.043m Loss in 2022/23) on the property funds has been accounted for under financing and Investment Income in the Comprehens
	Income,Expense,GainsandLossesonFinancialInstruments 
	Table
	TR
	2022/23 
	2023/24 

	TR
	Financial 
	Financial 

	TR
	Financial 
	Liabilities 
	Financial 
	Liabilities 

	TR
	Assets: 
	at 
	Assets: 
	at 

	TR
	Loansand 
	Amortised 
	Loansand 
	Amortised 

	TR
	Receivables 
	Costs 
	Total 
	Receivables 
	Costs 
	Total 

	TR
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 
	£'000 

	InterestExpense 
	InterestExpense 
	0 
	3,017 
	3,017 
	0 
	3,119 
	3,119 

	TotalExpense 
	TotalExpense 
	0 
	3,017 
	3,017 
	0 
	3,119 
	3,119 

	inSurplusor 
	inSurplusor 

	Deficitonthe 
	Deficitonthe 

	Provisionof 
	Provisionof 

	Services 
	Services 

	InterestIncome 
	InterestIncome 
	(1,576) 
	0 
	(1,576) 
	(3,384) 
	0 
	(3,384) 

	TotalIncomein 
	TotalIncomein 
	(1,576) 
	0 
	(1,576) 
	(3,384) 
	0 
	(3,384) 

	Surplusor 
	Surplusor 

	Deficitonthe 
	Deficitonthe 

	Provisionof 
	Provisionof 

	Services 
	Services 
	TD
	Figure


	Gainon 
	Gainon 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	Revaluation 
	Revaluation 

	Surplus/deficit 
	Surplus/deficit 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	arisingon 
	arisingon 

	revaluationof 
	revaluationof 

	Financial 
	Financial 

	AssetsinOther 
	AssetsinOther 

	Comprehensive 
	Comprehensive 

	Incomeand 
	Incomeand 

	Expenditure 
	Expenditure 

	Net(Gain)/Loss fortheYear 
	Net(Gain)/Loss fortheYear 
	(1,576) 
	3,017 
	1,441 
	(3,384) 
	3,119 
	(265) 


	Note15Short-Term&Long-TermDebtors 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	538 1,091 2,974 3,973 957 5,700 978 904 
	538 1,091 2,974 3,973 957 5,700 978 904 
	Amountsfallingdueinoneyear: HMRevenueandCustoms HousingRents ReservedDebtors SundryDebtors CBCNetShareofCouncilTaxDebtors CouncilTaxPreceptorsCashPaidinAdvance GovernmentDepartments CBCShareofNNDRArrears 
	605 1,047 3,053 4,821 1,133 6,835 1,114 820 

	17,115 
	17,115 
	19,428 



	Short-Term 
	Short-Term 
	Debtors-mostDebtorsareconsideredtobeFinancialInstrumentsandareclassifiedasLoansand Receivables.StatutorydebtssuchasCouncilTaxandNationalNon-DomesticRatesarenotFinancial Instruments.ThosethatareFinancialInstrumentsaremeasuredatamortisedcostattheBalanceSheetdate. Ineffectthatistheinitialamountlessanyrepaymentsoraccruedinterest. TheCouncildoesnotroutinely chargeinterestonthedebtoraccountsandimpairmentisdealtwithassetoutbelow.Theimpairmentofthese assetsisconsideredindepthwhencalculatingtheprovisionfordoubtfulde
	Long-Term Debtor -has three long term debtors: -£400k related to a bond payment for Bedford Square Gateway Deed S278 Agreement, £539k Loughborough Campus Enterprise Zone forward funding grant payment that will be repaid over the next 4year period and £4,324k Campus forward funding grant payment thatwillberepaidoverthenext14years. 
	BadDebtsImpairments 
	TheProvisionforBadDebtImpairmentsareanalysedasfollows:
	-

	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	0 (239) (1,749) (160) (1,144) (617) (10) 
	0 (239) (1,749) (160) (1,144) (617) (10) 
	FinancialInstruments BedandBreakfast HousingBenefits GeneralFundOther HousingRents CBCShareofNNDRBad/DoubtfulDebt GeneralFundRent 
	(863) (315) (1,772) (501) (1,111) (463) (8) 

	(3,919) 
	(3,919) 
	(5,033) 


	Note16CashandCashEquivalents 
	ThebalanceofCashandCashEquivalentsismadeupofthefollowingelements: 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31st March 2024 £'000 

	124 24,220 
	124 24,220 
	CashheldbytheCouncil Short-termdepositswithapprovedinstitutions 
	211 23,200 

	24,344 
	24,344 
	23,411 

	(1,287) 
	(1,287) 
	BankOverdraft 
	(1,291) 

	(1,287) 
	(1,287) 
	(1,291) 

	23,057 
	23,057 
	TotalCashandCashEquivalents 
	22,120 


	Note17SurplusAssetsHeldforSale 
	TheauthoritydoesnotcurrentlyholdanySurplusAssetsheldforSale. 
	Note18ShortandLong-TermCreditors 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	(598) (4,671) (755) (738) (5,160) (3,166) (1,681) (756) (224) (569) (296) (3,797) (1,218) (49) 
	(598) (4,671) (755) (738) (5,160) (3,166) (1,681) (756) (224) (569) (296) (3,797) (1,218) (49) 
	HMRevenueandCustoms GovernmentDepartments LeicestershireCountyCouncil HousingRents OtherSundryCreditors ReservedCreditors Section106Developers’Contributions EnterpriseZone CBCShareofOverpaidCouncilTax AccumulatedAbsencesAccount NNDRPrepayments NNDR-CentralGovernment NNDR-LeicestershirePool CombinedFireAuthority 
	(795) (940) (526) (686) (6,007) (4,836) (1,976) (847) (234) (598) (114) (1,576) (727) (26) 

	(23,678) 
	(23,678) 
	(19,888) 


	Creditorsareregardedasfinancialinstrumentsforaccountingpurposesexceptthoseinrespectofitemssuch as NNDR and payments due to certain government departments. All such items regarded as financial instrumentsarevaluedatfairvalueasat31stMarch2024. 
	LongTermCreditorof£3,782krelatestoareceiptrelatingtotheTownDealFundswhichwillbeheldandpaid overtothirdpartieswhentheyfalldue,andtheworkiscomplete. 
	Note19Provisions 
	The Code requires that the accounts clearly differentiate the provisions from the reserves of the Council. Provisionsarerequiredforanyliabilitiesofuncertaintimingoramountsthathavebeenincurred. 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	(1,035) 116 
	(1,035) 116 
	NNDRProvisionforAppealsBrought Forward1st April ChangestoNNDRProvision: Decrease/(Increase)inProvisionNNDR Appeals 
	(919) (563) 

	(919) 
	(919) 
	Balanceat31stMarch 
	(1,482) 


	Note20UsableReserves 
	GeneralFundBalance 
	PurposeofReserve:Resourcesavailabletomeetfuturerunningcostsfornon-housingservices. Theguideline . 
	usedbytheCouncilrequiresabalancetobemaintainedofatleast£2.5m

	HousingRevenueAccount 
	Purpose of Reserve: Resources available to meet future runningcosts forcouncil houses. It is recommended that there is at least £110 per council house dwelling within this reserve. The actual dwelling amount at 31March2024was£111percouncilhousedwelling. 
	st 

	Movements in the Council’s Usable Reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement, being: -General Fund Balance, General Fund Earmarked Reserves, HRA Balance, HRA Earmarked Reserves in additiontothoseUsableReservesbelow:-
	UsableCapitalReceiptsReserve 
	PurposeofReserve:proceedsofnon-currentassetsalesavailabletomeetfuturecapitalinvestment. 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	(10,382) (2,990) (1,426) 0 1,413 
	(10,382) (2,990) (1,426) 0 1,413 
	Balanceat1stApril GeneralFundamountsreceivable HRAamountsreceivable–1-4-1receipts HRAamountsreceivable–other Amountsappliedtofinancenewcapital investments 
	(13,385) (669) (839) (60) 2,140 

	(13,385) 
	(13,385) 
	Balanceat31stMarch 
	(12,813) 


	UsableCapitalGrantsandContributionsReserve 
	PurposeofReserve:proceedsofgrantsandcontributionstomeetfuturecapitalinvestmentandspecific revenueexpenditure. 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	(1,081) (1,521) 459 
	(1,081) (1,521) 459 
	Balanceat1stApril CapitalGrants Amountsappliedtofinancenewcapital investments 
	(2,143) (2,016) 1,399 

	(2,143) 
	(2,143) 
	Balanceat31stMarch 
	(2,760) 


	Note21UnusableReserves 
	Restated 31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	Restated 31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	Restated 31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	(1,143) (264,199) 442 9,052 (88,144) 569 
	(1,143) (264,199) 442 9,052 (88,144) 569 
	CollectionFundAdjustmentAccount CapitalAdjustmentAccount FinancialInstrumentRevaluationReserve PensionReserveSurplus RevaluationReserve AccumulatedAbsencesAccount 
	(83) (265,803) 863 778 (88,495) 598 

	(343,423) 
	(343,423) 
	(352,142) 


	RevaluationReserve 
	The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property.Thebalanceisreducedwhenassetswithaccumulatedgainsare: 
	 
	 
	 
	revalueddownwardsorimpairedandthegainsarelost. 

	 
	 
	usedintheprovisionofservicesandthegainsareconsumedthroughdepreciation,or 


	 disposedofandthegainsarerealised. TheReservecontains only revaluationgainsaccumulatedsince1st April2007,thedatethattheReservewas created.AccumulatedgainsarisingbeforethatdateareconsolidatedintothebalanceontheCapitalAdjustment Account. 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	(58,638) (33,048) 2,849 25 
	(58,638) (33,048) 2,849 25 
	Balanceat1stApril UpwardRevaluationofAssets DownwardRevaluationofAssetsand Impairment Accumulatedgainsonassetssoldor scrapped 
	(3,110) 1,542 0 
	(88,144) 

	TR
	SurplusorDeficitonRevaluationofnoncurrentassetsnotpostedtotheSurplusor 
	-


	(30,174) 
	(30,174) 
	DeficitontheProvisionofServices 
	(1,568) 

	318 
	318 
	De-recognitionofcomponents DifferencebetweenFairValueDepreciation 
	842 

	350 
	350 
	andHistoricalCostDepreciation 
	375 
	1,217 

	668 
	668 
	AmountwrittenofftotheCapital AdjustmentAccount 

	(88,144) 
	(88,144) 
	Balanceat31stMarch 
	(88,495) 


	CapitalAdjustmentAccount 
	The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the ComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement(withreconcilingpostingsfromtheRevaluationReserveto
	31stMarch2023 £'000 
	31stMarch2023 £'000 
	31stMarch2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 £'000 

	5,001 988 59 3,087 3,087 
	5,001 988 59 3,087 3,087 
	(267,592) 12,222 
	Balanceat1stApril Reversalofitemsrelatingtocapitalexpendituredebitedor creditedtotheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditure Statement: ChargesforDepreciationandImpairmentonNon-currentAssets RevaluationlossesonProperty,PlantandEquipment AmortisationofIntangibleassets RevenueExpenditureFundedfromCapitalunderStatute AmountsofNon-currentAssetswrittenoffondisposalorsaleaspart ofthegain/lossondisposaltothe ComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement AdjustingamountswrittenoutoftheRevaluationReserve Netwrittenoutamountof
	5,853 0 69 4,213 1,452 
	(264,199) 11,587 (375) 

	TR
	(349) 
	(2,093) (6,474) (3,295) (601) (116) 

	(1,413) (3,764) (2,532) (592) (86) 
	(1,413) (3,764) (2,532) (592) (86) 
	(255,719) 
	(252,987) (12,579) (237) 

	TR
	(8,387) (93) 

	TR
	(264,199) 
	(265,803) 


	PensionReserve 
	The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the arrangements for accounting for postemploymentbenefitsandforfundingbenefitsinaccordancewithstatutoryprovisions.TheCouncilaccountsfor post-employmentbenefitsintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatementasthebenefitsareearned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However statutory arrangements
	-

	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	60,370 (54,626) 7,723 (4,415) 
	60,370 (54,626) 7,723 (4,415) 
	Balanceat1stApril Actuarial(gains)orlossesonpensionassetsand liabilities Reversalofitemsrelatingtoretirementbenefitstothe ComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement EmployersPensionContributionsintheyear 
	9,052 (6,990) 3,523 (4,807) 

	9,052 
	9,052 
	Balanceat31stMarch 
	778 


	CollectionFundAdjustmentAccount 
	The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax incomeandproportionateshares ofbusiness rates intheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement asitfallsdue,comparedwiththestatutoryarrangementsforpayingacrossamountstotheGeneralFundfrom theCollectionFund. 
	Purpose of Reserve: Aseparate fund is maintained by billing authorities for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and NNDR of which, in-year surpluses and deficits are due to/from precepting authorities in futureyears. This shows the amount owed(to)/from the Council towards thecurrent CollectionFundbalanceandNotestotheCollectionFundStatement. 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2024 £’000 

	1,785 97 (3,025) 
	1,785 97 (3,025) 
	Balanceat1stApril AmountscreditedtotheComprehensiveIncome andExpenditureStatementaredifferentfrom counciltaxincomecalculatedfortheyearin accordancewithstatutoryrequirements: CouncilTax NDRBusinessRates 
	(1,143) (30) 1,090 

	(1,143) 
	(1,143) 
	Balanceat31stMarch 
	(83) 


	Note22CashFlowStatement 
	OperatingActivitiesincludethefollowingwithintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatement:
	-

	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	(1,578) 3,017 
	(1,578) 3,017 
	InterestReceived InterestPaid 
	(3,384) 3,119 

	1,439 
	1,439 
	Cash(Inflow)/Outflow 
	(264) 


	Note23CashFlowStatement–InvestingActivities 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	4,221 1 0 (4,416) (5,691) 
	4,221 1 0 (4,416) (5,691) 
	PurchaseofProperty,Plant,Equipment,Investment PropertyandIntangibleAssets Purchaseofshort-termandlong-termactivities Otherpaymentsforinvestingactivities ProceedsfromtheSaleofProperty,Plant,Equipment, InvestmentPropertyandIntangibleAssets OtherReceiptsforInvestingActivities 
	7,356 0 4,524 (1,516) (4,536) 

	(5,886) 
	(5,886) 
	Cash(Inflow)/Outflow 
	(5,832) 


	Note24CashFlowStatement–FinancingActivities 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	0 
	0 
	Cashreceiptsofshortandlongtermborrowing 
	(4,000) 

	7,612 
	7,612 
	NetCouncilTax/NNDRDebtorandCreditors 
	3,463 

	7,612 
	7,612 
	Cash(Inflow)/Outflow 
	(537) 


	Note25TradingOperations 
	The Council’s trading operations include Loughborough Market, Shepshed Market, Woodgate Chambers and MuseumCafe.IncreasedexpenditurerelatestoMarketsLoughboroughemployeeandsupportservicecharges andadditionalutility costs atWoodgate Chambers, which is part offset by additionalincomefromtheseareas in2023/24. 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	(339) 439 
	(339) 439 
	Income Expenditure 
	(381) 517 

	100 
	100 
	(Surplus)/Deficit 
	136 


	Note26MembersAllowances 
	TheCouncilpaidthefollowingamountstoMembersduringtheyear.MembersAllowancesexcludeemployer’s NationalInsurance. 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	379 
	379 
	Salaries/Allowances 
	392 

	379 
	379 
	392 


	Note27Officers’Remuneration 
	DetailsofthenumbersofCouncilstaff,whoseremunerationisgreaterorequalto£50,000perannum,grouped in rising bands of £5,000. Remuneration for these purposes includes all sums paid to or receivable by an employee,includingexpensesallowances,lossofofficepayments,compensationpayandthemoneyvalueof anyotherbenefits,butexcludingemployer’snormalpensioncontributionsandanyspecialpensioncontributions payableduetolossofoffice. Onlyrelevantremunerationbandsareshown. 
	TotalNumberof Employees 2022/23 
	TotalNumberof Employees 2022/23 
	TotalNumberof Employees 2022/23 
	RemunerationBand 
	TotalNumberof Employees 2023/24 

	7 
	7 
	£50,000-£54,999 
	12 

	3 
	3 
	£55,000-£59,999 
	7 

	4 
	4 
	£60,000-£64,999 
	3 

	3 
	3 
	£65,000-£69,999 
	2 

	1 
	1 
	£70,000-£74,999 
	1 

	1 
	1 
	£75,000-£79,999 
	2 

	0 
	0 
	£80,000-£84,999 
	1 

	1 
	1 
	£85,000-£89,999 
	0 

	0 
	0 
	£90,000-£94,999 
	1 

	2 
	2 
	£115,000-£119,999 
	0 

	1 
	1 
	£145,000-£149,999 
	0 

	0 
	0 
	£150,000-£154,999 
	1 

	1 
	1 
	£155,000-£159,999 
	0 


	DetailsofRemuneration 
	TheChiefExecutiveandtheDirectorsareshownbelow,andtheirremunerationisalsoincludedintheprevious tableforcompleteness. 
	Total Remuneration including Pension Contribution 2022/23 £ 
	Total Remuneration including Pension Contribution 2022/23 £ 
	Total Remuneration including Pension Contribution 2022/23 £ 
	PostHolderInformation(Post Title) 
	Salary,Fees and Allowances £ 
	Compensation forLossof Officeboth Taxableand Non-Taxable £ 
	Total Remuneration excluding Pension Contribution 2023/24 £ 
	Employers Pension Contribution £ 
	Total Remuneration including Pension Contribution 2023/24 £ 

	199,148 114,917 107,478 94,820 91,174 185,690 
	199,148 114,917 107,478 94,820 91,174 185,690 
	ChiefExecutive DirectorofFinance, Governanceand Contracts DirectorofCommercial andEconomic Development DirectorofHousingand Wellbeing DirectorofCustomer Experience StrategicDirectorof Community,Planningand Housing(left27/11/22) 
	153,534 94,507 80,734 77,099 77,098 0 
	0 0 0 0 0 0 
	153,534 94,507 80,734 77,099 77,098 0 
	55,739 31,658 27,024 25,798 25,798 0 
	209,273 126,165 107,758 102,897 102,896 0 

	793,227 
	793,227 
	482,972 
	0 
	482,972 
	166,017 
	649,989 


	Note28GrantIncome 
	The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and ExpenditureStatement. 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	CreditedtoTaxationandNon-Specific GrantIncome 
	2023/24 £’000 

	(1,154) (1,631) 0 0 (2,043) 
	(1,154) (1,631) 0 0 (2,043) 
	CapitalGrantsandContributions NewHomesBonus FundingGuaranteeGrant NNDRSection31Grant OtherGovernmentGrants/(Covid) TotalCreditedtoTaxationandNon-SpecificGrantIncome BenefitGrantsCreditedtoServices 
	(2,028) (373) (2,289) (4,936) (811) 

	(4,828) 
	(4,828) 
	(10,437) 

	(14,095) 
	(14,095) 
	RentAllowanceSubsidy 
	(14,888) 

	(7,470) 
	(7,470) 
	RentRebateSubsidy 
	(7,338) 

	(373) 
	(373) 
	HousingBenefitAdministrationSubsidy 
	(298) 

	0 
	0 
	AdditionalSubsidy OtherGrantsCreditedtoServices 
	(61) 

	(98) 
	(98) 
	CrimeandDisorderReduction 
	(91) 

	(132) 
	(132) 
	LocalisationofCouncilTax LeicestershireCountyCouncilSports 
	(12) 

	(119) 
	(119) 
	andActiveGrant 
	(131) 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	ArmedForcesCovenantGrant 
	(6) 

	(2,168) 
	(2,168) 
	CapitalGrantsandContributions 
	(2,788) 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	LocalPlans VulnerablePersonResettlement 
	(0) 

	(125) 
	(125) 
	Scheme 
	(168) 

	(76) 
	(76) 
	SaferStreetsGrant 
	(48) 

	(501) 
	(501) 
	HomelessnessPreventionFund 
	(664) 

	(29) 
	(29) 
	TownFundDeal 
	(681) 

	(151) 
	(151) 
	UKShareProsperityFund 
	16 

	0 
	0 
	TransparencyCodeNewBurdens 
	(8) 

	0 
	0 
	RedmondReviewGrant 
	(22) 

	(17) 
	(17) 
	NewBurdenTenantsSatisfactionGrant 
	(18) 

	0 
	0 
	LightbulbService 
	(87) 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Re-openHighStreetsSafely 
	0 

	0 
	0 
	CouncilTaxSupportGrant 
	(241) 

	0 
	0 
	NNDRCostofCollectionAllowance 
	(187) 

	0 
	0 
	PavementLicenseNewBurdens 
	(5) 

	0 
	0 
	PlanningSkillsDelivery 
	(68) 

	0 
	0 
	AffordableHousingNewBurdens 
	(2) 

	0 
	0 
	ElectoralNewBurdens 
	(83) 

	(38) 
	(38) 
	OtherGovernmentGrants TotalGrantscreditedtoServices 
	(59) 

	(25,413) 
	(25,413) 
	(27,938) 


	TheCouncilhasreceivedanumberofcapitalgrantsandcontributionsthathaveyettoberecognisedasincome astheyhaveconditionsattachedtothemthatmayrequirethemoniestobereturnedtothegiver. Thebalances attheyear-endareasfollows: 
	31st March 2023 £’000 
	31st March 2023 £’000 
	31st March 2023 £’000 
	CapitalGrantsandContributions-ReceiptsinAdvance 
	31stMarch2024 £’000 

	(4,444) (1,357) 
	(4,444) (1,357) 
	BalanceBroughtForward S106DevelopersContributionsandother CapitalGrantsandContributions 
	(5,801) (135) 

	(5,801) 
	(5,801) 
	BalanceCarriedForward 
	(5,936) 


	TheCouncilhasanumberofrevenuegrantsandcontributionsthathavenotyetbeenrecognisedastheyhave conditionsattachedtothemthatmayrequirethemoniestobereturnedtothegiver.Thebalancesattheyearendareasfollows: 
	-

	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	RevenueGrantsandContributions-ReceiptsinAdvance 
	31stMarch 2024 £’000 

	(213) (510) 
	(213) (510) 
	S106Developers’Contributions OtherRevenueGrantsandContributions 
	(195) (376) 

	(723) 
	(723) 
	(571) 


	Note29ExternalAuditCosts 
	The Councilhas incurred thefollowing costs inrelationto the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification ofgrantclaimsandstatutoryinspectionsprovidedbytheCouncil’sexternalauditors. 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	67 23 
	67 23 
	Feespayablewithregardtoexternalauditservices carriedoutbytheappointedauditor Feespayableforthecertificationofgrantclaimsand returnsfortheyear 
	181 32 

	90 
	90 
	213 


	Note30RelatedParties 
	The Councilis required to disclose material transactions with related parties –bodies or individuals that have thepotential tocontrol or influencetheCouncil orto becontrolled or influencedby theCouncil. Disclosure of thesetransactionsallowsreaderstoassesstheextenttowhichtheCouncilmighthavebeenconstrainedinits abilitytooperateindependentlyormighthavesecuredtheabilitytolimitanotherparty’sabilitytobargainfreely withtheCouncil. 
	CentralGovernment 
	CentralGovernmenthasasignificantinfluenceoverthegeneraloperationsoftheCouncil–itisresponsiblefor providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates. It provides asignificant proportion of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with otherparties(e.g.counciltaxbills,housingbenefits). Grantsreceivedfromgovernmentdepartmentsandother grantsreceivedinadvancearesetoutinNote28. 
	Members 
	Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total of members’ allowances paid in 2023/24 is shown in Note 26. No members of the Council or senior officers undertookanymaterialrelatedpartytransactionsrequiringdisclosureduring2023/24. 
	LeicesterandLeicestershireBusinessRatesPool 
	UndertheLocalGovernmentFinanceAct2012localauthorities areabletoretainaproportionofthebusiness ratesgeneratedintheirareaandratherthanpayingcertainamounts tocentralgovernment,theycancreatea ‘pool’locally. 
	The Council along with Leicester City Council, Leicestershire County Council, Leicestershire Combined Fire AuthorityandallotherLeicestershireDistrictCouncilsagreedtooperateapoolingagreementforbusinessrates levies andsafetynetpayments for2013/14, theLeicesterandLeicestershirePool(LLP). TheCountyCouncil wastheleadauthorityfortheLLP. ThePoolwasbasedona“nobetter,noworse”position,withDistrictCouncils payinganyleviesintothePoolandanysafetynetpaymentsbeingmadefromthePool. 
	The LLP partners decided not to continue with the Pool in 2014/15 but it was started again for the 2015/16 financial year and has continued in successive financial years up to 31March 2022, with the exception of 2019/20whenPoolmembersparticipatedina75% BusinessRateRetentionpilot andpilotrules applied, with locallyagreedarrangementsbetweenparticipants. 
	st 

	OtherPublicBodies 
	LocalGovernmentPensionSchemeissetoutinNote33. PreceptscollectedonbehalfofotherlocalauthoritiesandbodiesareshownintheCollectionFundStatement. 
	Note31CapitalExpenditureandCapitalFinancing 
	The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital FinancingRequirement(CFR),ameasureofthecapitalexpenditureincurredhistoricallybytheCouncilthathas yettobefinanced. TheCFRisanalysedinthesecondpartofthisnote. 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	106,622 4,627 80 3,087 (1,413) (3,764) (2,532) (85) (592) 
	106,622 4,627 80 3,087 (1,413) (3,764) (2,532) (85) (592) 
	OpeningCapitalFinancingRequirement CapitalInvestment Property,PlantandEquipment IntangibleAssets RevenueExpenditureFundedfromCapitalunderStatute SourcesofFinance CapitalReceipts MajorRepairsReserve GovernmentGrantsandotherContributions Sumssetasidefromrevenue: DirectRevenueContributions MinimumRevenueProvision ClosingCapitalFinancingRequirement Explanationofmovementsinyear Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrowing (unsupportedbygovernmentfinancialassistance) Increase/(Decrease)inCapitalFinancingRe
	106,030 7,638 127 4,213 (2,093) (6,474) (3,295) (116) (601) 

	106,030 
	106,030 
	105,429 

	(592) 
	(592) 
	(601) 

	(592) 
	(592) 
	(601) 


	Note32TerminationBenefits 
	TheCouncilhad1redundancyand3settlementagreementsin2023/24incurringliabilitiestotalling£52k(there were3redundanciesandonesettlementagreementin2022/23totalling£401k).Theredundancypaymentwas for an externally funded post within recreational services. Of the three settlement agreements, one was in committee administration and two were HRA employees within the central controlteam. None of the 2023/24 employeeswereDirectors. 
	Note33DefinedBenefitPensionSchemes 
	ParticipationinPensionSchemes 
	Aspartofthetermsandconditions of employmentof itsofficers,theCouncilmakescontributionstowards the costof post-employment benefits. Althoughthese benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has acommitment to make payments that need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn theirfutureentitlement. 
	Charnwood Borough Council participates in adefined benefit scheme administered by Leicestershire County CouncilinaccordancewiththeLocalGovernmentPensionSchemeRegulations1997,asamended. Thisisa funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund,calculatedatalevelintendedtobalancethepension’sliabilitieswithinvestmentassets. 
	TransactionsRelatingtoPost-employmentBenefits 
	The cost of retirement benefits is reported in the cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather thanwhenthebenefitsareeventuallypaidaspensions.However,thechargewearerequiredtomakeagainst counciltaxisbasedonthecashpayableintheyear,sotherealcostofpost-employment/retirementbenefitsis reversedoutoftheGeneralFundandHRAviatheMovementinReservesStatement.Thefollowingtransactions havebeenmadeintheComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditureStatementandtheGeneralFundBalancevia theMovementinReservesStatementduringt
	ComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditure Statement 
	ComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditure Statement 
	ComprehensiveIncomeandExpenditure Statement 
	Local Government Pension Scheme 2022/23 £’000 
	Local Government Pension Scheme 2023/24 £’000 

	CurrentServicecost PastServicecosts(includingcurtailments) FinancingandInvestmentIncomeand Expenditure NetPensionsInterestcostsandExpectedreturnon schemeassets TotalPostEmploymentBenefitchargetothe 
	CurrentServicecost PastServicecosts(includingcurtailments) FinancingandInvestmentIncomeand Expenditure NetPensionsInterestcostsandExpectedreturnon schemeassets TotalPostEmploymentBenefitchargetothe 
	5,854 222 1,647 
	3,124 9 390 

	(Surplus)/DeficitontheProvisionofServices MovementinReserveStatement Reversalofnetchargesmadetothe(Surplus)/Deficit fortheProvisionofServicesforpost-employment benefitsinaccordancewiththecode ActualamountchargedagainsttheGeneralfund balanceforpensionintheyear 
	(Surplus)/DeficitontheProvisionofServices MovementinReserveStatement Reversalofnetchargesmadetothe(Surplus)/Deficit fortheProvisionofServicesforpost-employment benefitsinaccordancewiththecode ActualamountchargedagainsttheGeneralfund balanceforpensionintheyear 
	7,723 (3,308) 
	3,523 1,284 

	4,415 
	4,415 
	4,807 

	ActuarialGainsand(Losses)intheyear 
	ActuarialGainsand(Losses)intheyear 
	54,626 
	6,690 


	There is a £32k actuarial gain (from CIES/STRGL spreadsheet) reconciling item in 2023/24; this is due to CharnwoodBoroughCouncil’slowerpensioncontributionsinyearcomparedtoHymansValuationReport. 
	PensionAssetsandLiabilitiesRecognisedintheBalanceSheet. 
	TheamountincludedintheBalanceSheetarisingfromtheCouncil’sobligationinrespectofitsdefined benefitsplanisasfollows: 
	Table
	TR
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	FairValueofEmployerAssets PresentValueofFundedLiabilities Assetceilingadjustment 
	FairValueofEmployerAssets PresentValueofFundedLiabilities Assetceilingadjustment 
	143,851 (152,082) 0 
	156,970 (153,942) (3,028) 

	Net(Under)/OverfundinginFundedPlans PresentValueofUnfundedLiabilities 
	Net(Under)/OverfundinginFundedPlans PresentValueofUnfundedLiabilities 
	(8,231) (821) 
	0 (778) 

	NetAsset/(Liability)inBalanceSheet 
	NetAsset/(Liability)inBalanceSheet 
	(9,052) 
	(778) 


	In 2023/24, the local government pension scheme (LGPS) has net assets of £3,028k due to changes in the financial assumptions and in particular the increase in the discount rate used. In accordance with proper accounting practice, an asset ceiling calculation has been undertaken which shows that the net asset cannot berealised.Asaresult,theCouncilsnetassets(andthenetpensionliability)isreducedby£3,028k. 
	BasisforEstimatingAssetsandLiabilities 
	Thebasisforestimatingassetsandliabilitieshavebeenassessedonanactuarialbasisusingtheprojectedunit creditmethod,anestimateofthepensionsthatwillbepayableinfutureyearsdependentonassumptionsabout mortality rates, salary levels etc. Leicestershire County Council’s Fund Liabilities have been assessed by HymansRobertsonLLP,anindependentfirmofactuaries. 
	Charnwood Borough Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme through which pension provision is made for those of its employees who wish to join the scheme. Under the Code, the Council must includeitsshareofthenetPensionFundAssetasat31stMarch2024andthisamountedto£2,250k. Thisisa decreaseof£11,302konthepositionat31stMarch2023. AlthoughthisassetappearsintheCouncil’sBalance Sheet, it is offset by the Pensions Reserve and is not funded from Council Tax or Government Grants. Actual employer’scon
	31stMarch 2023 %Per Annum 
	31stMarch 2023 %Per Annum 
	31stMarch 2023 %Per Annum 
	FinancialAssumptions: 
	31stMarch 2024 %Per Annum 

	3.00% 3.50% 4.75% 
	3.00% 3.50% 4.75% 
	RateofInflation/PensionIncreaseRate SalaryIncreaseRate DiscountRate 
	2.80% 3.30% 4.80% 


	MortalityAssumptions: 
	MortalityAssumptions: 
	MortalityAssumptions: 
	Males 
	Females 

	Longevityat65forpensioners CurrentPensioners FuturePensioners 
	Longevityat65forpensioners CurrentPensioners FuturePensioners 
	21.4years 22.1years 
	24.1years 25.6years 


	ReconciliationoftheMovementsintheFairValueofPlanAssets,DefinedBenefitObligationandNet Liability 
	Assets 2022/23 £’000 
	Assets 2022/23 £’000 
	Assets 2022/23 £’000 
	Obligations 2022/23 £’000 
	Net(Liability) /Asset 2022/23 £’000 
	Assets 2023/24 £’000 
	Obligations 2023/24 £’000 
	Net(Liability) /Asset 2023/24 £’000 

	150,681 
	150,681 
	(210,005) (1,046) 
	150,681 (210,005) (1,046) 
	FairValueofemployerassets Presentvalueoffundedliabilities Presentvalueofunfundedliabilities 
	143,851 
	(152,082) (821) 
	143,851 (152,082) (821) 

	150,681 
	150,681 
	(211,051) 
	(60,370) 
	OpeningPositionasat31stMarch 
	143,851 
	(152,903) 
	(9,052) 

	TR
	(5,854) (222) 
	(5,854) (222) 
	CurrentServiceCost PastServiceCost(including Curtailments) 
	(3,124) (9) 
	(3,124) (9) 

	0 
	0 
	(6,076) 
	(6,076) 
	TotalServiceCost 
	0 
	(3,133) 
	(3,133) 

	4,067 
	4,067 
	(5,714) 
	4,067 (5,714) 
	InterestIncomeonplanassets InterestCostondefinedbenefit obligation 
	6,818 
	(7,208) 
	6,818 (7,208) 

	4,067 
	4,067 
	(5,714) 
	(1,647) 
	TotalNetInterest 
	6,818 
	(7,208) 
	(390) 

	4,067 
	4,067 
	(11,790) 
	(7,723) 
	TotalDefinedBenefitCost RecognisedinProfitor(Loss) 
	6,818 
	(10,341) 
	(3,523) 

	855 4,576 80 (5,358) (80) 
	855 4,576 80 (5,358) (80) 
	(855) 5,358 80 
	0 4,576 80 0 0 
	Cashflows PlanParticipantsContributions EmployersContributions Contributionsinrespectofunfunded benefits Benefitspaid UnfundedBenefitsPaid 
	926 4,757 82 (6,312) (82) 
	(926) 6,312 82 
	0 4,757 82 0 0 

	73 
	73 
	4,583 
	4,656 
	TotalCashflows 
	(629) 
	5,468 
	4,839 

	154,821 
	154,821 
	(218,258) 
	(63,437) 
	ExpectedClosingPosition 
	150,040 
	(157,776) 
	(7,736) 

	(5,056) (5,914) 
	(5,056) (5,914) 
	71,425 1,364 (7,434) 
	71,425 1,364 (12,490) (5,914) 
	Remeasurements Changesinfinancialassumptions Changesindemographic assumptions Otherexperience Returnonassetsexcludingamounts includedinnetinterest 
	6,930 
	7,012 922 (4,878) 
	7,012 922 (4,878) 6,930 

	(10,970) 
	(10,970) 
	65,355 
	54,385 
	TotalMeasurementsrecognisedin OtherComprehensiveIncome 
	6,930 
	3,056 
	9,986 

	143,851 
	143,851 
	(152,903) 
	(9,052) 
	TotalExpectedClosingPosition 
	156,970 
	(154,720) 
	2,250 

	143,851 
	143,851 
	(152,082) (821) 
	143,851 (152,082) 0 (821) 
	FairValueofemployerassets Presentvalueoffundedliabilities Assetceilingadjustment Presentvalueofunfundedliabilities 
	156,970 
	(153,942) (778) 
	156,970 (153,942) (3,028) (778) 

	143,851 
	143,851 
	(152,903) 
	(9,052) 
	ClosingPosition 
	156,970 
	(154,720) 
	(778) 


	Table
	TR
	%of 
	%of 

	TR
	31stMarch 
	Total 
	31stMarch 
	Total 

	ValueofEmployersAssets 
	ValueofEmployersAssets 
	2023 
	Assets 
	2024 
	Assets 

	TR
	£’000 
	£’000 

	EquitySecurities: TotalEquitySecurities DebtSecurities: UKGovernment Other PrivateEquity RealEstate–UKProperty InvestmentFundsandUnitTrusts: Equities Bonds HedgeFunds Commodities Infrastructure Other Derivatives–ForeignExchange CashandCashEquivalents ClosingBalanceat31stMarch 
	EquitySecurities: TotalEquitySecurities DebtSecurities: UKGovernment Other PrivateEquity RealEstate–UKProperty InvestmentFundsandUnitTrusts: Equities Bonds HedgeFunds Commodities Infrastructure Other Derivatives–ForeignExchange CashandCashEquivalents ClosingBalanceat31stMarch 
	452 6,625 608 9,848 10,195 62,989 0 1 3,695 11,768 34,368 66 3,236 
	0% 5% 0% 7% 7% 44% 0% 0% 3% 8% 24% 0% 2% 
	493 7,230 663 10,747 11,124 68,734 0 1 4,032 12,841 37,502 72 3,531 
	0% 5% 0% 7% 7% 44% 0% 0% 3% 8% 24% 0% 2% 

	143,851 
	143,851 
	100% 
	156,970 
	100% 


	SensitivityAnalysis 
	SensitivityAnalysis 
	SensitivityAnalysis 
	Approximate% IncreasetoEmployer Liability 
	Approximate Monetary Amount£’000 

	0.1%DecreaseinRealDiscountRate 
	0.1%DecreaseinRealDiscountRate 
	2% 
	2,557 

	1yearincreaseinmemberlifeexpectancy 
	1yearincreaseinmemberlifeexpectancy 
	4% 
	6,189 

	0.1%IncreaseintheSalaryIncreaseRate 
	0.1%IncreaseintheSalaryIncreaseRate 
	0% 
	259 

	0.1%IncreaseinthePensionIncreaseRate 
	0.1%IncreaseinthePensionIncreaseRate 
	2% 
	2,342 


	TheSensitivityAnalysisabovehasbeendeterminedbasedonreasonablepossiblechangesoftheassumptions occurringattheendofthereportingperiodandassumesforeachchangethattheassumptionanalysedchanges while all other assumptions remain constant. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accountingpoliciesforthescheme,i.e.onanactuarialbasisusingtheprojectedunitcreditmethod. Themethodsandtypesofassumptionsusedinpreparingthesensitivityanalysisdidnotchangefromthoseused inthepreviousperiod. 
	SchemeHistory 
	SchemeHistory 
	SchemeHistory 
	2023/24 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2021/22 £’000 
	2020/21 £’000 
	2019/20 £’000 

	FairValueofEmployer Assets PresentValueofDefined BenefitObligation Assetceilingadjustment 
	FairValueofEmployer Assets PresentValueofDefined BenefitObligation Assetceilingadjustment 
	156,970 (154,720) (3,028) 
	143,851 (152,903) 
	150,681 (211,051) 
	135,706 (220,410) 
	109,203 (172,909) 

	Surplus/(Deficit) 
	Surplus/(Deficit) 
	(778) 
	(9,052) 
	(60,370) 
	(84,704) 
	(63,706) 


	TheliabilityshowstheunderlyingcommitmentsthattheCouncilhas,inthelongrun,topayretirementbenefits. Thetotalliability of £778khasasubstantialimpactonthenet worthof theCouncilasrecordedinthebalance sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remainshealthy. 
	ThedeficitoftheLocalGovernmentSchemewillbemadegoodby increasedcontributionsovertheremaining workinglifeofemployees,asassessedbytheschemeactuary.Theestimatedtotalemployers’contributionsfor 2025willbeapproximately£4,799k. 
	Note34ContingentLiabilitiesandContingentAssets 
	TheCouncildoesnothaveanyContingentLiabilitiesorContingentAssets. 
	Note35NatureandExtentofRisksArisingfromFinancialInstruments 
	TheCouncil’sactivitiesexposeittoanumberoffinancialrisks,themainonesbeing: 
	 
	 
	 
	CreditRisk–thepossibilitythatotherpartiesmayfailtopaytheamountsdue. 

	 
	 
	Liquidity Risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitmentstomakepayments. 

	 
	 
	MarketRisk–thepossibilitythatfinanciallossmightarisefortheCouncilasaresultofchangesin suchmeasuresasinterestratesandstockmarketmovements. 


	The Council’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks tominimise potentialadverseeffects ontheresources available to fundservices. Risk management is carried out by the central Finance team, under policies approved by the Council in the annual Treasury ManagementStrategyStatement. TheCouncilprovideswrittenprinciplesforoverallriskmanagement,aswell aswrittenpoliciescoveringspecificareas,suchasborrowingstrategy,investmentpolicy,creditworthinesspolicy and
	CreditRisk 
	Creditriskarisesfromdepositswithbanksandfinancialinstitutions,aswellascreditexposuretotheCouncil’s owncustomers. 
	ThisriskisminimisedthroughtheAnnualInvestmentStrategy,whichrequiresthatdepositsarenotmadewith financial institutions unless they meet minimum credit criteria. The Council has acontract with Link Treasury Services Ltd (‘LAS’) who advise on investment policy and supply credit ratings for use on the day-to-day managementofinvestments. Thesecriteriaarebasedonsuchfactorsas: 
	 
	 
	 
	Creditratingsofcounterparties, 

	 
	 
	Creditwatchesandcreditoutlooksfromcreditratingagencies, 

	 
	 
	CreditDefaultSwapsspreadstogiveearlywarningoflikelychangesincreditratings,and 

	 
	 
	Sovereignratingstoselectcounterpartiesfromonlythemostcreditworthycountries. 


	Theseratings willalterthroughouttheyearandvariouslimitsareset onthetypeofinvestmentswhichcanbe made. ThesearebasedonSpecifiedandNon-Specifiedinvestmentsforlocalauthoritiesandfurtherinnerlimits aresetandperiodicallyreviewedasbetweeninvestmentsofthesametype,suchasbankswithasimilarcredit rating. ShortterminvestmentsaretypicallyratedF1andamountswitheachinstitution,orgroup,waslimitedto amaximumof£18m. 
	Appropriatechecksaremadeoncustomersforgoodsandservicesbasedonthesizeand/orlengthofcontract with them. The Council’s maximum exposure in relation to its investments in banks and other financial institutionscanrisetoover£60mduringtheyearanditcannotbeassessedgenerallyastheriskofanyinstitution failingtomakeinterestpaymentsandrepaytheprincipalsumwillbespecifictoeachindividualinstitution. There isalwaysapotentialriskofnotrecoveringinvestmentsandthisappliestoalloftheCouncil’sdeposits,butthere wasnoevidenceat31Marc
	The Councildoes allow credit for some types of serviceandamounts thatare due,but not impaired, included aspartofsundrydebtorsareasfollows: 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2023 £’000 
	31stMarch 2024 £’000 

	1,175 257 12 152 
	1,175 257 12 152 
	Lessthanthreemonths Threetosixmonths Sixmonthstooneyear Morethanoneyear 
	749 360 128 282 

	1,596 
	1,596 
	1,519 


	LiquidityRisk 
	The Council needs to manage cash flow to have sufficient funds to pay debts when due. This is done by investingsurpluscashwhenavailableandby arranginginvestmentstocovertheexpectedliabilitydates. The Councilworkstoabalancedbudgetinaccordancewithlegislationwithareserveofrevenuebalancestomanage the cash flow. This is continually changing during the year as creditors and debtors accounts mature. The CouncilalwayshasaccesstoborrowingthroughthePublicWorksLoanBoard. Councilborrowing,ifrequired, is securedonthereve
	The Council has two long term investments, Lothbury Property Trust with a value of £1.817m (£2.067m in 2022/23)andFederatedHermesPropertyUnitTrust£2.117m(£2.287min2022/23).Whilstthisis intendedto bealonger-terminvestmentredemptionnoticesaresettledquarterlythereforecanberecalledonthisbasis. FollowingtheconsultationundertakenbytheDepartmentofLevellingUp,HousingandCommunities[DLUHC] onIFRS9,theGovernmenthasextendedthemandatorystatutoryoverrideforlocalauthoritiestoreverseout allunrealisedfairvaluemovementsresul
	st 

	MarketRisk 
	TheCouncilisexposedtochangesintheinterestrateononeofitsborrowings. This£2mborrowingisatahigh interest rate and it is not anticipated that interest rates will reach this level in the short to medium term, so effectivelyrenderingthisrateasfixed. TheremainderoftheCouncil’sborrowingsareatfixedinterestratesand donotcontainamarketrisk.The£2mborrowingisduetoberedeemedinJune2024. 
	In-house lending is mainly forcashflow purposes and is allforunder twoyears. This lowers risk but prevents thestrategiclonger-termlendingwhichwouldhelptomitigatethevariationsininterestrates. Theinterestrates move in cycles and the Council clearly receives lower interest receipts at the bottom of the cycle. This is 
	In-house lending is mainly forcashflow purposes and is allforunder twoyears. This lowers risk but prevents thestrategiclonger-termlendingwhichwouldhelptomitigatethevariationsininterestrates. Theinterestrates move in cycles and the Council clearly receives lower interest receipts at the bottom of the cycle. This is 
	managed by having aTreasury Strategy in place that forecasts the movements in rates and therefore allows thebudgettobeinformedoftheexpectedinterestreceiptssothatspendingplansarenotbasedonunrealistic interest receipt assumptions. Based on the Short-Term investments at Balance Sheet date of £10m, a 1% changeininterestratewouldequateto£100khigherorlowerreceipttotheCouncilinrevenue. 

	TheCouncilhasnofinancialassetsorliabilitiesdenominatedinforeigncurrenciesandthushavenoexposure tolossesarisingfrommovementsinexchangerates. 

	SupplementaryStatementsandNotes 
	SupplementaryStatementsandNotes 
	HRAIncomeandExpenditureStatement 
	The Housing Revenue Account reflects astatutory obligation under legislation to account separately for local councilhousingprovision.TheAccountis“ring-fenced”andhastobeself-financing.ThecostsofHRAactivities, notmetbysubsidyorotherincome,aremetbytherentspayableanddeficitsontheHRAcannotbemadegood bythecounciltaxpayer. 
	TheHRAIncomeandExpenditureStatementshowstheeconomiccostintheyearofprovidinghousingservices in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from rents and government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with the legislative framework;this may bedifferentfromthe accountingcost. Theincreaseordecrease intheyear, onthebasis onwhichrentsareraised,isshownintheMovementontheHousingRevenueAccount. 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	Note 
	2023/24 £’000 

	6,693 6,507 947 3,660 22 13 
	6,693 6,507 947 3,660 22 13 
	Expenditure SupervisionandManagement RepairsandMaintenance Rents,Rates,Taxesandother charges Depreciation/Revaluation increase/Impairmentofnoncurrentassets Debtmanagementcosts Movementintheallowancefor baddebts(notspecifiedbythe code) TotalExpenditure Income 
	-

	7,189 7,113 1,099 4,296 20 431 

	17,842 
	17,842 
	20,148 

	(21,001) 
	(21,001) 
	Dwellingsrent 
	1 
	(22,226) 

	(398) 
	(398) 
	Non-dwellingrents 
	(392) 

	(711) 
	(711) 
	ChargesforServicesandFacilities 
	(740) 

	(116) 
	(116) 
	Contributionstowardsexpenditure 
	(130) 

	(188) 
	(188) 
	OtherIncome TotalIncome NetcostofHRAServicesas includedintheComprehensive IncomeandExpenditure 
	(205) 

	(22,414) 
	(22,414) 
	(23,694) 

	(4,572) 378 
	(4,572) 378 
	Statement HRAservices’shareofCorporate andDemocraticCore NetCostforHRAServices HRAshareoftheoperating incomeandexpenditure includedintheComprehensive IncomeandExpenditure Statement Capitalgrantsandcontributions 
	(3,546) 441 

	(4,194) 
	(4,194) 
	(3,105) 

	0 
	0 
	receivable LossondisposalofHRAnon
	-

	(15) 

	146 
	146 
	currentassets 
	1 

	(501) 
	(501) 
	Interestandinvestmentincome 
	(1,100) 

	2,737 
	2,737 
	InterestPayable NetCost/(Income)ofHRA Services 
	2,767 

	(1,812) 
	(1,812) 
	(1,452) 




	MovementontheHRAStatement 
	MovementontheHRAStatement 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	(606) 
	(606) 
	BalanceontheHRAattheendoftheprevious year SurplusfortheyearontheHRAIncomeand ExpenditureStatement Adjustmentsbetweenaccountingbasisand fundingbasisunderstatute Netincreasebeforetransferstoorfrom reserves Transferstoreserves (Increase)/DecreaseinyearontheHRA BalanceontheHRAattheendofthecurrent year 
	(603) 

	(1,812) 203 
	(1,812) 203 
	(1,452) 23 

	(1,609) 
	(1,609) 
	(1,429) 

	(1,612) 
	(1,612) 
	(1,425) 

	3 
	3 
	(4) 

	(603) 
	(603) 
	(607) 



	ReconcilingItemsfortheStatementofMovementonthe HRABalance 
	ReconcilingItemsfortheStatementofMovementonthe HRABalance 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	Note 
	2023/24 £’000 

	(146) 18 0 331 
	(146) 18 0 331 
	Adjustmentsbetweenaccountingbasisand fundingbasisunderstatute LossonsaleofHRAnon-currentassets AccumulatedAbsencesAccount ReversalofCapitalGrantsandContributions ReversalofGainonRevaluation 
	(1) (7) 15 16 

	203 
	203 
	23 

	(605) 2,217 
	(605) 2,217 
	Transfers(to)orfromreserves HRAshareofcontributionsto/(from)thePension Reserve Transferto/(from)theHousingFinancingFund 
	7 8 
	694 731 

	1,612 
	1,612 
	1,425 


	NotestotheHousingRevenueAccount 
	Note1GrossRents 
	Grossrentdueintheyear,afterallowanceismadeforemptyproperties,was£22,226kcomparedwith £% in2022/23.Theaveragerentfor2023/24ona52weekbasiswas£85.22(£79.28in2022/23). 
	21,001kin2022/23.Therentlosscausedbyemptypropertieswas7.46%for2023/24comparedwith6.46

	RentArrears 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	538 445 1 
	538 445 1 
	Arrearsat31stMarch: CurrentTenants FormerTenants GaragesandShops 
	488 457 1 

	984 
	984 
	946 

	5.15% 97 139 36 
	5.15% 97 139 36 
	Arrears&courtcostsas%ofgrossdebit CourtCosts RentWrite-off/irrecoverable RechargeableRepairsWrite-off/irrecoverable 
	4.67% 93 142 21 


	AProvisionforBadDebtshasbeenmadeintheaccountsinaccordancewiththerequirementsoftheCIPFACode of Practice. The provision includes an element in respect of rent rebate overpayments. Rent rebates were transferredtotheGeneralFundon1stApril2004. Thisprovisionrelatestooverpaymentsmadepriortothatdate which were financed by the HRA. Landlord Services rechargeable repairs relates to a provision for bad debts wheredamagetoHRApropertyhasbeenrechargedtoitsperpetrators. 
	Abaddebtprovisionof£303khasbeenallocatedtoanticipatedlossesintheCouncil’spropertyinvestmentfund. TheHRAInvestmentreturniscalculatedtoincludethebeneficialreturnonthepropertyfund,sothisisintermsof anticipatedlosses. 
	BadDebtProvision 
	BadDebtProvision 
	Note2DepreciationChargeandCapitalCredit 

	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	1,081 2 40 21 
	1,081 2 40 21 
	Rent OverpaidRentRebate LandlordServicesrechargeablerepairs LeaseholderCharges 
	1,039 1 41 30 

	1,144 
	1,144 
	1,111 


	TotalCapitalFinancingChargesof£20kwasdebitedtotheHRAin2023/24and£22kin2022/23inaccordance withtheItem8determinationsfortheyear.DepreciationChargeisanalysedbelow:
	-

	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	3,944 34 8 5 
	3,944 34 8 5 
	Depreciation: Dwellings GaragesandShops Plant,VehiclesandEquipment Intangibles 
	4,263 34 8 7 

	3,991 
	3,991 
	4,312 

	(331) 
	(331) 
	NetRevaluationincreaseofnon-current assets 
	(16) 

	3,660 
	3,660 
	4,296 


	Note3HousingStock 
	TheCouncilwasresponsibleformanaging5,444HRAdwellingsasat31stMarch2024.Thisexcludesoneshared ownershipdwelling,whichissharedona50%equitybasis.Thestockwasmadeupasfollows:-
	Numberof 
	Numberof 
	Numberof 
	Numberof 

	Dwellings 
	Dwellings 
	Dwellings 

	31stMarch 
	31stMarch 
	31stMarch 

	2023 
	2023 
	2024 

	2,692 
	2,692 
	Flats/Maisonettes 
	2,662 

	2,790 
	2,790 
	Houses/Bungalows 
	2,782 

	5,482 
	5,482 
	5,444 


	Thechangeinstockcanbesummarisedasfollows:-
	Numberof Dwellings 31March 2023 
	Numberof Dwellings 31March 2023 
	Numberof Dwellings 31March 2023 
	Numberof Dwellings 31March 2024 

	5,505 5 (28) 0 
	5,505 5 (28) 0 
	Stockat1stApril Add:Newproperties,acquisitionsand Appropriations PropertySales Demolished 
	5,482 4 (23) (19) 

	5,482 
	5,482 
	Stockat31stMarch 
	5,444 


	On 31st March 2024 there were 3 void properties withheld from letting (9 at 31st March 2023) for major refurbishment. TwoHRApropertiesarebeingusedascommunitycentresonatemporarybasis.Thefigureof 5,444representstheactualHRAdwellingstocktheCouncilowns. 
	ThedwellingsareclassifiedasoperationalassetswithintheHousingRevenueAccount. Inaddition,therewas nomovementtothenumberofnon-dwellingassetswhichwere818garages,12shopsand1storein2023/24. 
	Note4BalanceSheetValueofCouncil’sHousingStock 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	362,191 5,001 1,089 
	362,191 5,001 1,089 
	Dwellings Otherlandandbuildings Garages ShopsandStore 
	364,375 5,132 982 

	368,281 
	368,281 
	Netcarryingamountat31st March 
	370,489 


	Dwellings,Garages,ShopsandStoresareallOperationalAssets.TherearenoNon-OperationalAssets. 
	Vehicles,PlantandEquipment 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	20 0 (8) 
	20 0 (8) 
	1st BalanceatApril Additions:Purchases Depreciation 
	12 0 (8) 

	12 
	12 
	Netcarryingamountat31st March 
	4 


	Intangibles 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2023 £'000 
	31stMarch 2024 £'000 

	14 0 (5) 
	14 0 (5) 
	1st BalanceatApril Additions:Purchases Depreciation 
	9 27 (7) 

	9 
	9 
	Netcarryingamountat31st March 
	29 


	Thevaluationat1April2023of£362.2mandat31March2024of£364.4mislowerthanthevacantpossession valueontheopenmarketof£862.4mand£867.6mrespectively. 
	The difference between the vacant possession value and the opening balance sheet value within the HRA represents the economic cost to government of providing council housing at less than open market rents. The adjustmentfactorfortheeconomiccostofprovidingCouncilHousingfortheEastMidlandsof42%hasbeenused asnotedinthelatestDepartmentforLevellingUp,HousingandCommunitiesguidanceonStockValuationatthe timetheaccountswereclosed. 
	Note5SummaryTotalofCapitalExpenditureandReceipts 
	Housingcapitalexpenditureduringthefinancialyearwas£6,600k. Capitalexpenditureisshownasfollows:
	-

	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	3,990 3,764 0 226 
	3,990 3,764 0 226 
	CapitalExpenditure FinancedBy: MajorRepairsReserve OtherCapitalContributions HRACapitalReceipts 
	6,600 6,474 12 114 

	3,990 
	3,990 
	6,600 


	TotalcapitalreceiptsfromthesaleofHRAassetswere£2,843kasfollows:
	-

	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	2,417 (36) 
	2,417 (36) 
	CouncilHouseSales Less:Administrationcosts 
	2,881 (25) 

	2,381 0 
	2,381 0 
	NetCouncilHouseSales ReclaimableDiscountfromCouncilHouseSales 
	2,856 (13) 

	2,381 
	2,381 
	2,843 


	Note6MajorRepairsReserve 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	(4,248) (3,991) 3,764 
	(4,248) (3,991) 3,764 
	Balanceat1stApril TransfertoMajorRepairsReserve CapitalExpenditurefundedfromMajorRepairs Reserve 
	(4,475) (4,312) 6,474 

	(4,475) 
	(4,475) 
	Balanceat31stMarch 
	(2,313) 


	Note7PensionFund 
	InaccordancewithIAS19,AccountingforRetirementBenefits,accountingadjustmentshavebeenmadeinthe HousingRevenueAccounttoreportpensionliabilities.In2023/24,thisrepresentedadecreaseof£694ktonet costofservicecomparedtoanincreaseof£605kin2022/23. 
	Note8HRAFinancingFund 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £000 

	(14,576) (2,217) 
	(14,576) (2,217) 
	1st BalanceasatApril ContributiontoFinancingFund 
	(16,793) (731) 

	(16,793) 
	(16,793) 
	Balanceasat31st March 
	(17,524) 



	CollectionFundStatement2023/24 
	CollectionFundStatement2023/24 
	Business Rates 2022/23 £'000 
	Business Rates 2022/23 £'000 
	Business Rates 2022/23 £'000 
	Council Tax 2022/23 £'000 
	Total 2022/23 £'000 
	Note 
	Business Rates 2023/24 £'000 
	Council Tax 2023/24 £'000 
	Total 2023/24 £'000 

	0 (45,927) 
	0 (45,927) 
	(119,083) (25) 0 
	(119,083) (25) (45,927) 
	Income CouncilTaxReceivable Covid19DiscretionaryGrantfromGeneralFund BusinessRatesReceivable Expenditure ApportionmentofPreviousYear Surplus/(Deficit) CentralGovernment CharnwoodBoroughCouncil LeicestershireCountyCouncil LeicestershirePoliceandCrimeCommissioner CombinedFireAuthority Precept,DemandsandShares CentralGovernment CharnwoodBoroughCouncil LeicestershireCountyCouncil LeicestershirePoliceandCrimeCommissioner CombinedFireAuthority ChargestotheCollectionFund LessWriteOffsofNon-CollectableAmounts LessI
	2 3 4 7 6 8/9/11 
	0 (46,881) 
	(125,778) (241) 0 
	(125,778) (241) (46,881) 

	(45,927) 
	(45,927) 
	(119,108) 
	(165,035) 
	(46,881) 
	(126,019) 
	(172,900) 

	(2,753) (2,202) (496) 0 (55) 
	(2,753) (2,202) (496) 0 (55) 
	0 122 774 136 38 
	(2,753) (2,080) 278 136 (17) 
	974 779 175 0 20 
	0 0 0 0 0 
	974 779 175 0 20 

	(5,506) 
	(5,506) 
	1,070 
	(4,436) 
	1,948 
	0 
	1,948 

	21,037 16,830 3,787 0 421 
	21,037 16,830 3,787 0 421 
	0 13,577 85,461 15,189 4,370 
	21,037 30,407 89,248 15,189 4,791 
	23,313 18,650 4,196 0 466 
	0 14,247 90,287 16,171 4,693 
	23,313 32,897 94,483 16,171 5,159 

	42,075 
	42,075 
	118,597 
	160,672 
	46,625 
	125,398 
	172,023 

	219 416 (290) 186 161 1,490 
	219 416 (290) 186 161 1,490 
	294 3 0 0 0 0 
	513 419 (290) 186 161 1,490 
	299 (384) 1,409 187 (1,805) 1,721 
	409 (56) 0 0 0 0 
	708 (440) 1,409 187 (1,806) 1,721 

	2,182 
	2,182 
	297 
	2,479 
	1,427 
	353 
	1,779 

	(7,176) 
	(7,176) 
	856 
	(6,320) 
	3,119 
	(269) 
	2,850 

	4,595 
	4,595 
	(874) 
	3,721 
	(2,581) 
	(18) 
	(2,599) 

	(2,581) 
	(2,581) 
	(18) 
	(2,599) 
	538 
	(286) 
	252 



	NotestotheCollectionFundStatement 
	NotestotheCollectionFundStatement 
	Note1General 
	This account reflects the statutory requirements for billing authorities to maintain aseparate Collection Fund, which shows the transactions of the billing Council in relation to non-domestic rates and the Council Tax and illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to preceptors and the General Fund. The Collection FundisconsolidatedwiththeotheraccountsofthebillingCouncil. Thetransactionsareprescribedbylegislation andarepreparedonanaccrualsbasis. 
	: 
	ThemajoritemscontainedwithintheFundare

	* 
	* 
	* 
	CouncilTaxcollectedfromBoroughResidents 

	* 
	* 
	BusinessRatescollectedfrombusinesseswithintheBorough 

	* 
	* 
	TransitionalReliefgrantedtoCouncilTaxpayers 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Precepts,DemandsandSharesonthecollectionfundpaidoutto: 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	CentralGovernment 

	* 
	* 
	CharnwoodBoroughCouncil 

	* 
	* 
	LeicestershireCountyCouncil 

	* 
	* 
	LeicestershirePoliceandCrimeCommissioner 

	* 
	* 
	LeicestershireCombinedFireAuthority 



	* 
	* 
	ThecostofcollectionallowanceforBusinessRatesretainedbytheBillingAuthority 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Additionalitems,suchas 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Writeoffsofnon-collectableamounts 

	* 
	* 
	Provisionforpossiblebadanddoubtfuldebts 

	* 
	* 
	ProvisionforappealsonNNDRbills 

	* 
	* 
	Otherdisregardedamounts 



	* 
	* 
	* 
	ThedeficitorsurplusrelatingtoCouncilTax. Thisisthendistributedbetweenbillingauthoritiesand preceptingauthoritiesonthebasisofanestimatemadeon ofJanuaryineachyear. 

	15th 

	* 
	* 
	The deficit or surplus relating to Business rates. This is distributed between billing authorities, preceptingauthorities and central government on thebasis of anestimate made duringJanuary in eachyear. 


	Note2CouncilTax 
	ThebasisofCouncilTaxisapropertyvaluation. PropertiesarevaluedatApril1991pricesandincludedwithin eight bands. The standard Council Tax is calculated at Band D and all bands are expressed as a Band D equivalenttoascertainatotaltax basefortheCouncil. The2023/24baseis shownbelow. Notethatthere is nowareduced‘BandA’forpropertiesin‘A’thatarereducedforthosewithapprovedDisabledAdaptations. 
	Valuation Band 
	Valuation Band 
	Valuation Band 
	RangeofValues 
	Relationship toBandD 
	Numberof Properties 
	BandD Equivalent 

	X 
	X 
	ReductionsonBandA Uptoandincluding 
	5/9 
	24.75 
	13.8 

	A 
	A 
	£40,000 
	6/9 
	10,352.75 
	6,901.8 

	B 
	B 
	£40,001-£52,000 
	7/9 
	18,986.50 
	14,767.3 

	C 
	C 
	£52,001-£68,000 
	8/9 
	17,187.00 
	15,277.3 

	D 
	D 
	£68,001-£88,000 
	1 
	10,178.75 
	10,178.8 

	E 
	E 
	£88,001-£120,000 
	11/9 
	6,949.25 
	8,493.5 

	F 
	F 
	£120,001-£160,000 
	13/9 
	3,183.75 
	4,598.8 

	G 
	G 
	£160,001-£320,000 
	15/9 
	1,947.25 
	3,224.4 

	H 
	H 
	Morethan£320,000 
	18/9 
	180.75 
	361.5 

	TR
	Contributionsinlieu EstimatedgrowthinBand 
	23.2 

	TR
	Dequivalents 
	331.2 

	TR
	Total(TaxBase) 
	64,192.6 


	Thegrosstaxbase,64,192.6asperthecounciltaxresolutionisadjustedfortheBandDequivalentofdwellings receivingCouncilTaxSupporttogiveanadjustedtaxbaseof60,087.6.Finally,anestimatedcollectionrateof 98.5% for 2023/24 is then applied to the adjusted Band D figure producing a Council Tax Base of 59,186.3 . 
	whichequatesto£2,118.70foraBandDproperty.Thisprovidesatotalrequirementof£125.4m

	Theactualpositionisasfollows: 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	136,140 (17,057) 
	136,140 (17,057) 
	GrossCouncilTaxdue Relief,ExemptionsandTransitionalRelief Granted 
	144,666 (18,888) 

	119,083 
	119,083 
	CouncilTax 
	125,778 


	Note3NationalNon-DomesticRates(NNDR) 
	NNDRisorganisedonalocalbasis. TheCouncilisresponsibleforcollectingratesduefromratepayerswithin the Borough and the total amounts billed to business ratepayers are included within the Collection Fund, less the various relief and exemptions granted. This amount is paid, during the year, to the other precepting authoritiesandtocentralgovernmentbasedontheirproportionateshares.Theamountspaidoverformpartof thefinancingofthebillingandpreceptingauthoritiesGeneralFund. 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	66,054 (20,127) 0 
	66,054 (20,127) 0 
	GrossNon-DomesticRatesdue ReliefsandExemptions TransitionalProtectionPaymentdue to/(from)theCouncil 
	68,332 (21,428) 0 

	45,927 
	45,927 
	NetBusinessRatesReceivable 
	46,904 


	TheGovernmentspecifiesanamount(51.2pin2023/24andsamein2022/23)and,subjecttotheeffectsof transitionarrangementsandratereliefschemes,localbusinessespayratescalculatedbymultiplyingtheir rateablevaluebythatamount.TheRateableValuefortheCouncil’sareaat31stMarch2024was£143.28m (£133.29mat31stMarch2023). 
	Note4CharnwoodBoroughCouncilTaxPrecept 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	17,862 4,250 (122) 
	17,862 4,250 (122) 
	CharnwoodPrecept ParishPrecepts CollectionFundDeficit/(Surplus) 
	19,245 4,566 0 

	21,990 (8,413) 
	21,990 (8,413) 
	RSGandNNDRRedistributedPool 
	23,811 (9,564) 

	13,577 
	13,577 
	14,247 


	Note5ProvisionforNon-Payment 
	CouncilTax 
	There is acumulative provision held as at 31March 2024 amounting to £1,245k for doubtful debts, including costs.(£1,240kasat31March2023) 
	st 
	st 

	NNDR 
	There is acumulative provision held as at 31March 2024 amounting to £1,159k for doubtful debts, including costs.(£1,543kasat31March2023) 
	st 
	st 

	Note6ContributionstoProvisionforBadandDoubtfulDebts 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	3 416 
	3 416 
	CouncilTax NNDR 
	(56) (384) 

	419 
	419 
	(440) 


	Note7Write-offofBadDebts 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2022/23 £'000 
	2023/24 £'000 

	294 219 
	294 219 
	CouncilTax NNDR 
	409 299 

	513 
	513 
	708 


	Note8CouncilTax(Surplus)/DeficitontheCollectionFund 
	TherewasaSurplusbalanceontheCollectionFundat31stMarch2024of£286k(£18kSurplusat31stMarch 2023). Thiswillbecarriedforwardto2024/25andtakenintoaccountinthefuturecalculationofchargestobe metbyCouncilTaxpayers. FurtheranalysisisprovidedinNote10below. Therewerenonetcontributionspaidout.TogetherwiththeSurplusbroughtforwardof£18k,areductioninBad Debt Provisionof£56k andanincreasethe in-yearsurplus of£213k gives asurplusof£286kwhichiscarried forward. 
	Note9CouncilTaxCollectionFundBalance 
	TheCollectionFundisastatutoryfundinwhichtheCouncilrecordstransactionsforCouncilTax. Thebalance on the fund has to be taken into account by the major precepting authorities in determining their respective requirements toberaisedthroughCouncilTax infuturefinancialyears. Thesurplus ontheCollectionFund is apportionedasfollows: 
	Table
	TR
	Amounts accountedfor in2024/25 £'000 
	Amountsto accountfor in2025/26 £'000 
	Total £'000 

	LeicestershireCountyCouncil LeicestershirePoliceand CrimeCommissioner CharnwoodBoroughCouncil CombinedFireAuthority 
	LeicestershireCountyCouncil LeicestershirePoliceand CrimeCommissioner CharnwoodBoroughCouncil CombinedFireAuthority 
	52 9 8 3 
	155 27 24 8 
	207 36 32 11 

	Total NetSurplus 
	Total NetSurplus 
	72 
	214 
	286 


	Note10CouncilTaxAccountingfortheCollectionFundBalance 
	OnthebasisthatsurplusesanddeficitsontheCollectionFundaresharedwithLeicestershireCountyCouncil, Leicestershire Police and Crime Commissioner, Leicestershire Combined Fire Authority and the Borough Council pro-ratatothe precepts levied, theCouncil accountedfor the Collection Fund Balance inthe2023/24 accountsasfollows: 
	IntheBalanceSheetat31March2024,theCouncilincludedanoverallsurplusof£286k(£18ksurplusat31March2023)ofwhich£254krelatestoPreceptorsShareofsurplus(£16kat31March2023Preceptorsshare of Surplus) in the proportions shown below and the balance of £32k (£2k at 31March 2023) related to CharnwoodBoroughCouncil’sshareoftheCollectionFundSurplus. 
	st 
	st 
	st 
	st 

	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	(2) (13) (2) (1) 
	(2) (13) (2) (1) 
	CharnwoodBoroughCouncil LeicestershireCountyCouncil LeicestershirePoliceandCrimeCommissioner LeicestershireCombinedFireAuthority 
	32 207 36 11 

	(18) 
	(18) 
	Deficit/(Surplus)–Balanceasat31st March 
	286 


	Note11BusinessRates(Surplus)/DeficitontheCollectionFund 
	Shares of non-domestic rating income to major preceptors and billingauthorities arepaid out of the collection fund and credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements of precepting and billing authorities. However the transactions presented in the collection fund statement are limited to the cash flows permittedbystatuteforthefinancialyear,whereaseachauthoritywillrecogniseincomeonafullaccrualsbasis, i.e.sharingoutinfullthe(surplus)ordeficitontheCollectionFundattheendoftheyear,eventhoughitwil
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2022/23 £’000 
	2023/24 £’000 

	(1,032) (232) (26) (1,291) 
	(1,032) (232) (26) (1,291) 
	CharnwoodBoroughCouncil LeicestershireCountyCouncil LeicestershireCombinedFireAuthority CentralGovernment 
	215 48 5 269 

	(2,581) 
	(2,581) 
	Deficit/(Surplus)-Balanceasat31stMarch 
	537 


	GlossaryofTerms 
	GlossaryofTerms 
	Accounting Period -The period of time covered by the accounts is normally 12 months commencing on 1st Aprilforlocalauthorities. Accruals -Sums included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to the accounting periodbutforwhichpaymenthasnotbeenmade/receivedatthebalancesheetdate. CapitalCharges-Chargesmadetoservicerevenueaccountsbasedonthevalueoftheassetsthey useand comprisingdepreciation. CapitalExpenditure-Expenditureonnewassetssuchaslandandbuildings,oronenhancementstoexisting ass
	Abbreviationsusedintheaccounts: 
	CIPFA-CharteredInstituteofPublicFinance andAccountancy 
	CIPFA-CharteredInstituteofPublicFinance andAccountancy 
	CIPFA-CharteredInstituteofPublicFinance andAccountancy 
	EUV-SH–ExistingUseValueforSocialHousing 

	EZ–EnterpriseZone 
	EZ–EnterpriseZone 
	HRA-HousingRevenueAccount 

	PWLB–PublicWorksLoanBoard 
	PWLB–PublicWorksLoanBoard 
	MRA-MajorRepairsAllowance 

	IFRS–InternationalFinancialReporting Standard 
	IFRS–InternationalFinancialReporting Standard 
	NNDR-NationalNon-domesticRates 

	PSM–PriceSensitivityMeasurement 
	PSM–PriceSensitivityMeasurement 
	CFR–CapitalFinancingRequirement 

	DWP–DepartmentofWorksandPensions 
	DWP–DepartmentofWorksandPensions 
	BID–BusinessImprovementDistrict 

	MRP-MinimumRevenueProvision 
	MRP-MinimumRevenueProvision 
	VAT–ValueAddedTax 
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